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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the shareholders of
Apples Services, S.A. and Subsidiaries,

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Applus Services, S.A. (“the
Parent”) and Subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2014 and the consolidated income statement, consolidated staterment of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and notes to
the consolidated financial statements for the year then ended.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s directors are responsible for preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements
so that they present fairly the consolidated equity, consolidated financial position and consolidated
results of Applus Services, S.A. and Subsidiaries in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union and the other provisions of the regulatory financial
reporting framework applicable to the Group in Spain (identified in Note 2.a to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements) and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from miaterial misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the audit regulations in force in Spain. Those
regulations require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the preparation by the Parent’s directors of the consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated equity and consolidated financial position of Applus Services, S.A. and
Subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014, and their consolidated results and their consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union and the other provisions of the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable
to the Group in Spain.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The accompanying consolidated directors’ report for 2014 contains the explanations which the Parent’s
directors consider appropriate about the situation of Applus Services, S.A. and Subsidiaries, the
evolution of their business and other matters, but is not an integral part of the consolidated financial
statements. We have checked that the accounting information in the consolidated directors’ report is
consistent with that contained in the consolidated financial statements for 2014. Our work as auditors
was confined to checking the consolidated directors’ report with the aforementioned scope, and did not
include a review of any mformation other than that drawn from the accounting records of Applus
Services, S.A. and Subsidiaries.

DELOITTE, S.L.
Registered in ROAC under no. 50692

Ana Maria Gibert

25 February 2015



Transiation of consclidated financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulatary financial reporting framework applicable to the Group (see Notes 2 and 33), in the
event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-anguage version prevails.

APPLUS SERVICES, 3.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DEGEMBER 2014

(Thousands of Euros}

ASSETS Notes 311122014 3111212013 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Notes 311202014 3111212013
NON-CURRENT ASSETS: EQUITY:
Goodwill 4 503.708 457.682 | Share capital and reserves
Other intangible assets 5 583.815 632.695 | Share capital 11.770 554.731
#roperty, plant and equipment 7 194.143 189.450 | Share premium 360.857 52.926
Non-cusrent financial assets ] 12722 13.831 | Retained earnings and other reserves 238,837 (231.088)
beferred tax assets 203 85921 101.727 | Profit{ (Loss) for the year attributable to the Parent 23.831 (170.079)]
Tota? non-current assets 1.380.315 1.425.585 | Treasury Shares (5407) -
Valuation adjustments
Foreign currency transiation reserve (25.954) (17.944)
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
PARENT 594.934 288.548
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 13 38,708 34.701
Total equity 12 633,643 323.249
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long-term provisions 178 27 29.329 12.761
Bank borrowings 14 753.231 1.070.676
Other financial liabifities 15 28.284 20.400
CURRENT ASSETS: Deferred tax Habilities 204 167,770 220464
Inventories 9 7.878 7.266 | Other non-current liabilities 18 11,281 9.439
Trade and other receivables Tetal nor-current liabilities 989,895 1.342.740
Trade and other receivables 10 363.520 355.695
Trade receivables from related companies M&28 8.351 4,198 | CURRENT LIABILFTIES:
Gther recsivables 10 30.145 27.845 | Shortterm provisions 2475 1.288
Corporate income tax assets 0.2 14,380 12.013 | Bank barrowings 14 36872 37.6T1
Cther current assels 10.216 7.453 | Trade and other payables 18 288638 289.5481
Current financial assets ik 4,525 2.848 | Corporate Income tax liabilities 202 13676 13.787
Cash and cash equivalents 1 148.688 180.877 | Other current liabilities 18 4119 10.604
Total current assets 588.703 598.295 Total current liabilities 345.480 357.891
TOTAL ASSETS 1.969.018 2.023.580 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1.969.018 2.023.880

Barcelona, 24 February 2015.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 33 and Appendices | and || are an integral part
of the consolidated balance statement for 2014,
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Translation of consolidated financia! statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting
framewirk applicable to the Group (see Notes 2 and 33), In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-fanguagé version prevails.

APPLUS SERVICES, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR 2014
(Thousands of Euros)

Notes 2014 2013

CONTINUING OPERATIONS:
Revenue 2a 1.618.717 1.580.501
Procurements (248.125) (244.420)
Staff costs 2t.b (830.372) {784.361)
Cther operaling expenses {354.8908) {362.268)
Operating Profit Befere Depreciation, Amertization and Cthers 185.312 188,452
Depreciation and amaorlisation charge 5&7 (91.773) (97.623)
Impairment and gains or losses on disposal of non-current assets 23 2.972 (117.871)
Other results Me {20.390) (17.024)
OPERATING PROFIT / (LOSS}): 76.121 __142.766)
Net financial expense 22 (36.588) (86.407)
Share of profit of companies accounted for using the equity method 2.256 2.493
Profit / {Loss) before tax 41.788 {126.680)
Corporate Income fax 20 (10.611) ) (38.832)
Net Profit / (Loss) from continuing operations 31477 {165.512)
PROFIT / {LOSS) EROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS NET OF TAX: - -
NET CONSOLIDATED PROFIT f {LOSS): 31.177 (165.512)
Profit / {Loss} attributable to non-controliing interests 13 ) 7.346 4.567
NET PROFIT / {LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE PARENT: 23.831 " (170.079)}
Profit / (Loss) per share (in euros per share): 12

- Basic 0,195 {0,282)

- Diluted . 0,195 [0,282)

The accompanying Notes 1 to 33 and Appendices | and il are an integral part
of the consglidated income statemant for 2014,

Barcelona, 24 February 2015,
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Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulatory
financial reporting framework applicable to the Group {see Notes 2 and 33), In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language

versicn prevails.

APPLUS SERVICES, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR 2014

(Thousands of Euros)

Notes 2014 2013

NET CONSOLIDATED PROFIT / (LOSS): 31.177 (165.512)
1. Other comprehensive incomefloss, net of income tax:
a} Items that wiil not be transferred to results - -
b) Items that could be transferred to results:
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations i3 {7.519) (9.427)
Fair value gain on hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges - 6.974
Income tax effect of other comprehensive income/lcss - (2.092)
2. Transfers to the income statement: - -
Other comprehensive result {7.519) (4.545}
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOMENLOSS) FOR THE YEAR 23.658 (170,057}
Total comprehensive incomef{loss) for the year attributable to:

- Owmers of the company 15.821 {174.100}

- Non-controlling interests 7.837 4.052
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOMENLOSS) FOR THE YEAR '23.658 (170.057}

The accompanying Notes 1 10 32 and Appendices | and Il are an integral part of the consclidated statement of comprehensive

income for 2014.

Barcelona, 24 February 2015.
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Translaticn of consolidated financial statements eriginally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Group {see Notes 2 and 33), In the eventof a
discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevais.

APPLUS SERVICES, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR 2014

{Theusands of Eurcs)

Foreign currency Less far the year
Share Share Retained i t |ati Treasury attributable Non-centrolling Total
{Notes 12 & 13) capital premium and other reserve shares 1o the Parent interests equity
Balance at 39/12/2012 600.825 308.076 (47D.219}] {4.882) {9.032) - (69.157) 34.7838 390,399
Changes In the scope of consolidation - - (630} - - - - (1.521) {2.201)
Alipcation of 2012 loss - - {68.157) B - - 69157 - -
Dividends paid - - - - - - - (2.548) (2548}
Offset of losses from prior years - {308.076) A0B.OTE - - - - - -
Capital increase 53.906 52.926 - - - - - - 106,832
Other changes - - 894 - - - - {70} 824
2013 comprehensive income f (loss) - - - 4.882 {8.912) - (170.079) 4.052 {$70.057)|
Batance at 31/12/2013 654.731 52.926 (231,086} - . {17.944) - {(170.079) 34.701 323.249
Changes in the scope of consolidation - - 826 - - - - 378 1.204
Allgcation of 2013 loss - - {170.078) " - - 170.07¢ - -
Capital increase expenses charged to equity - - (5.683) - - - - - (5.683);
Dividends paid - - - - - - - {4.302) (4.302)
Capital reduction charged to reserves (645.030) - 645.030 - - - - - -
Capital increase 2,088 297931 - - - - - - 300.000
Treasury shates - - - - - (5.407) - - (3.407)
Other changes - - 829 - - - - a5 924
2014 comprehensive income / {luss) - - - - {8.010) - 2383 7.837 23.658
Balance 311122044 11.770 350857 239.837 - (25.954) (5.497) 23,831 38.709 £533.643

Barcelona, 24 February 2015.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 33 and Appendices | and Il are an integral part of the combined statement of changes in equity for 2014.
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Translation of consclidated financial stataments originally issued in Sgranish and prepared in accordance with the regulatory
financial reporting framework applicable to the Group {see Notes 2 and 33}, In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-lariguage
varsion prevails.

APPLUS SERVICES, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR 2014
{Theusands of Euros)

CGAA CCAA
2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING AGTIVITIES:
Profit { (Loss) from cperating activities befare tax 41.788 (126.680)
Adjustments of ftems that do noet give rise to operating cash flows-
Depreclation and amortisation charge 81.773 97.623
Wiitedown of goodwill and impairment of intangible assefs - 118.167
Gain on dispasal of subsidiaries (4.048) -
Changes in provisions and allowances (1.572) -
Financial loss 36.568 86.407
Share of profit in associated companies (2.255) {2,493}
Gains or losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment 1.030 20
Gains or losses on disposals of intangile assels 38 2r
Prafit from cperations before changes in working capital (1) 163.351 174.042
Changes in working capital-
Changes in trade and other receivables (10.822) (21.814)
Changes in invendories {612} 632
Ghanges in trade and other payables {3.256) 24.389
Cash generated by changes in working capitak (Il (14,690} 3,207
Gorporate Income tax (25.486) {22.451)
Cash flows from income tax (lIl} (25.4886) {22.451}|
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)= (IH{HF-{I) 123175 154.798
CASH FLOWS FRCM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Business combinations 1.978 854}
Payments due to acquisition of subsidiaries and other non-current financial asssts (25.676) {18.557)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 13.192; -
Payments due to acquisition of one-off assets {9.240} (5.907)
Payments due to acquisition of intagible and tangible asssts (38.587) {46.389)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B} {58.333) {69.999)|
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANGING ACTIVITIES:
Praceeds from efjuity instruments 291,880 -
Interest received 2.267 1.065
Interest paid (27186} (44.803;
Net changes in non-cumrent financing {proceeds and payments) (383.071) {3.876)
Nel changes in current fi i ds and payments) 6415 4.814
Dividends pai¢ by Group companiss ta non-controfling interests {4.302) {2.548)
Met cash flows used in financing activities {C) {94.007} {45348}
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES (D): §2.024) -
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C +D) {31.189} 39.451
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 180.877 141,426
Cash and tash equivalents at end of year 149.688 180.877

The accompanying Notes 1 to 33 and Appendices | and Il are an integral part of the consolidated statement of cash fiows for

2014,
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Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulatory
financial reporting frarmework applicable to the Group (see Notes 2 and 33). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-
language version prevails.

Applus Services, S.A.
and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Group activities

Applus Services, S.A. (formerly Applus Technologies Holding, S.L. -"the Parent’™) has been the Parent of the
Applus Group (“the Applus Group” or “the Group”) since 29 November 2007 and was incorporated on 5 July 2007
as a private limited liability company for an indefinite period of time under the name of Libertytown, S.L., which
was changed to Applus Technologies Holding, S.L. on 10 July 2008. It adopted its current name on 4 March
2014. On 4 March 2014, the shareholders at the Parent's Annual General Meeting resolved to change the Parent
from a private limited liability company to a public limited liability company.

When the Company was incorporated its registered office was established at calle Aribau no. 171, Barcelona. On
29 November 2007, the registered office was moved to jts current location at Campus de la UAB, Ronda de la
Font del Carme s/n, Bellaterra, Cerdanyola del Vallés (Barcelona).

On 25 March 2014, the Parent’s sole shareholder amended its company object. The Parent's company object is
as follows:

¢ The provision of services related fo the automotive industry and vehicle and road safely (engineering
processes, design, testing, standardisation and certification of second-hand vehicles) and technical
inspections for other non-automotive industries except for reserved activities subject to special
legislation.

» The performance of technical audits of all manner of facilities used for vehicle roadworthiness or
monitoring tests throughout Spain and abroad and any other type of non-vehicle inspections.

= The preparation and performance of all manner of studies and projects relating to the foregoing
activities, whether of an economic, industrial or technical nature or refating to real estate, computing or
market research, and the supervision, management and rendering of services and provision of
counselling on the performance thereof.

« The provision of advisory, administration and management services of a technical, tax, legal or
commercial nature.

= The provision of commercial intermediation services in Spain and abroad. The provision of all manner of
quality and quantity inspection and control services, statutory inspections, cooperation with the public
authorifies, consulting, audit, certification and standardisation services, personnel training and skill-
building and technical assistance in general aimed at enhancing guality, safety and environmental
organisation and management.

« The performance of laboratory or in situ studies, work, measurements, trials, analyses and controls
using the professional methods and means deemed necessary or appropriate and, particularly, relating
to materials, equipment, products and industrial facilities in the mechanical, electrical, electronic and IT
fields and the areas of transport, communications, administrative organisation, office computerisation,
mining, foodstuffs, environment, construction and civil engineering at the design, project, manufacturing,
construction, assembly and start-up phases and subsequent maintenance and production for all manner
of companies and public and private entities including central government, autonomous community,
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» The acquisition, holding and direct or indirect management of shares or other equity investmenis or
ownership interests in share capital andfor securities entitling the holder to obtain shares, equity
investments or ownership interests in companies of any kind and entities with or without legal
personality incorporated under Spanish law or any other applicable legislation in accordance with Article
116 of the Consolidated Spanish Corporation Tax Law, approved by Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004, of
5 March, or any legal provisions that may replace such legislation, and the direct or indirect
management of any such company or entity through the membership, attendance at or holding of
positions on any governing or managing body of the aforementioried companies or entities, performing
such advisory or management services through the related organisation of material and human
resources. The activities expressly reserved by the Collective Investment Undertakings Law and by the
Securities Market Law for securities brokers and dealers are excluded.

The activities making up the company object specified in the foregoing paragraphs may be pursued directly by
the Parent or indirectly through the ownership of shares or other equity interests in companies with the same or a
similar object. The Parent may even carry on all of its activities indirectly, thus acting solely as a holding
company.

On 29 November 2007, the Parent acquired all of the shares of Applus Servicios Tecnologicos, S.L.U., at that
date the holding company of the Applus Group. From that date onwards the Applus Group became a wholly-
owned investee of Azul Holding S.C.A. which, in turn, is an investee of funds managed by The Carlyle Group.

On 20 December 2012, the Velosi Group was acquired by the Applus Group. The transaction was carried out
through the non-monetary contribution of the shares representing the entire share capital of Azul Helding 2 S.a
rl., sole shareholder of the Velosi Group, by Azul Holding, S.C.A., shareholder of the Parent.

On 7 May 2014, the Board of Directors, acting under powers delegated from the Parent's General Meeting of 25
March 2014, resolved unanimously to request admission to listing on the Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia
Stock Exchanges and the concomitant launch of an initial public offering of new shares on the Spanish Stock
Exchanges, a process which was completed successfully. Therefore, the Parent's shares have been listed on the
stock market since 9 May 2014 (see Note 12-a).

The subsidiaries and associates directly or indirectly owned by the Parent and included in the scope of
consolidation are shown in Appendix |.

The subsidiaries and associates directly or indirectly owned by the Parent and excluded from the scope of
consolidation either because they are dormant companies or because effective control over them is not exercised
by the shareholders of the Applus Group are shown in Appendix 1.

Basis of presentation and basis of consolidation

2.a Basis of presentation of the consolidated financial statements
a) Basis of presentation

These consolidated financial statements for 2014 were authorised for issue by the Parent's directors at the
Board of Directors Meeting held on 24 February 2015. The 2014 consolidated financial statemenis of the
Group and the 2014 financial statements of the Group companies have not yet been approved by their
shareholders at the respective Annual General Meetings. The Parent's Board of Directors considers that the
aforementioned financial statements will be approved without any changes. The Group's consolidated
financial statements for 2013 were approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of the
Parent on 22 April 2014.

Since 2005 the Parent's Directors have prepared the Applus Group's consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (EU-IFRSs),
in conformity with Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and of the Council and taking
into account all the mandatory accounting principles and rules and measurement bases and the Spanish
Commercial Code, the Spanish Limited Liability Companies Law and other Spanish corporate law applicable
io the Group. They were prepared from the separate accounting records of the Parent and of each of the
consolidated companies (detailed in Appendix I) and, accordingly, they present fairly the Group's equity,




b)

c)

financial position, results of cperations, changes in consolidated equity and consolidated cash flows under
EU-IFRSs.

The consoclidated financial statements for 2014 were prepared from the separate accounting records of the
Parent and of each of the consolidated companies (detailed in Appendix I} and, accordingly, they present
fairly the Group's equity, financial position, results of operations, changes in consolidated equity and
consolidated cash flows under EU-IFRSs and the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the
Group. However, since the accounting policies and measurement basis used in preparing the Group's
consolidated financial statements for 2014 (EU-IFRSs) occasionally differ from those used by the Group
companies {local standards), all the required adjustments and reclassifications were made on consolidation to
unify the policies and methods used and to make them compliant with the Interational Financial Reporting
Standards adopted in Europe.

The accounting policies used to prepare these consolidated financial statements comply with all the EU-
IFRSs in force at the date of their preparation. The EU-IFRSs provide for certain alternatives regarding their
application. The alternatives applied by the Group are described in Notes 2 and 3.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements for 2014 took into account all the mandatory
accounting principles and rules and measurement bases with a material effect thereon, as well as the
alternative treatments permitted by the relevant standards in this connection, which are specified in Note 3.

Comparative information

The information relating to 2014 contained in these notes to the consoiidated financial statements is
presented, for comparisen purposes, with information relating to 2013.

During the year, there was a correction made to Note 5, modifying the classification of intangible assets,
without affecting the assets identified in the different Business Combinations described in note 5, for the
preceding year among the various subheadings and among the various cash-generating units, although there
was no impact on the total balance of the aforementioned heading.

Responsibility for the information and use of estimates

The information in these consolidated financial statements is the responsibility of the Parent's Directors who
are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the applicable
regulatory financial reporting framework (see Note 2-a above) and for the internal control measures that they

consider necessary to make it possible to prepare the consolidated financial statements free from material
misstatement.

In the Group's consolidated financiai statements for 2014, estimates were made by management of the
Parent and of the consolidated companies, later ratified by their directors, in order to quantify certain of the
assets, liabilities, income, expenses and obligations reported herein. These estimates relate basically to the
following:

- The measurement of goodwill (see Notes 3.a and 4)

- The impairment losses on certain assets (see Notes 3.d, 6 and 23)

- The recovery of deferred tax assets (see Note 20}

- The useful life of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (see Notes 3.b and 3.c)
- The assumptions used in measuring the fair value of the financial instrumentis (see Note 3.m)

- Income from unbilled services (see Note 3.s)

- Provisions and contingent liabilities {see Notes 3.1, 17 and 27}



d}

e)

- Corporate income tax and deferred tax assets and liabilities (see Note 20)

Although these estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at 31 December 2014 on
the events analysed, events that take place in the future might make it necessary to change these estimates
(upwards or downwards) in coming years. Changes in accounting estimates would be applied prospectively in
accordance with the requirements of IAS 8, recognising the effects of the change in estimates in the related
consolidated income statements or consolidated statements of equity, as appropriate.

Presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of euros, since this is the currency of the
main economic area in which the Group operates. Foreign operations are recognised in accordance with the
policies described in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policies

In preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements no changes in accounting policies were
detected that would have made it necessary to restate the amounts included in the consolidated financial
statements for 2013.

Materiality

When determining the information to be disclosed in these notes to the consolidated financial statements on

the various line items in the consolidated financial statements or on other matters, the Group took into
account the materiality principle.

2.b Basis of consolidation and changes in the scope of consolidation

a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities over which the Applus Group directly or indirectly controls the financial and
operafing policies, exercises power over the relevant activities, maintains exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from involvement with the investee; and the ability to use power over the investee to affect the amount
of the investor’s returns. This is generally because it holds more than 50% of the voting power. Also, in order
to assess whether the Applus Group controls another entity the existence and the effect of the exercise or
conversion of potential voting power is taken into consideration. The subsidiaries are consclidated fromi the
date on which control is transferred to the Applus Group and are excluded from consolidation on the date that
control ceases to exist. Appendix [ discloses the most significant information about these entities.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are fully consolidated with those of the Parent. Accordingly, all
miaterial balances and effects of the transactions between consolidated companies are eliminated on
consolidation.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries to adapt the
accounting policies used to those applied by the Group.

The businesses acquired are recognised using the acquisition method so that the assets, liabilites and
contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their acquisition-date fair values. Any excess of the cost
of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill (see Notes
3.a and 4). Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the identifiable net assets
acquired {i.e. a bargain purchase) is credited to profit or loss on the acquisition date. The interest of non-
controlling shareholders is stated at their proportion of the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognised.

Also, with respect to the share of third parties, the following must be taken into account:

- The equity of their subsidiaries is presented within the Group's equity under "Non-Controlling Interests” in
the consolidated balance sheet (see Note 13).



b}

c)

- The profit for the year is presented under “Profit Attributable to Non-Controlling Interests™ in the
consolidated income statement (see Note 13).

The results of subsidiaries acquired during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the date of acquisition to year-end. Similarly, the results of subsidiaries disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the beginning of the year to the date of disposal only.

The foreign companies’ financial statements were translated to euros by applying the year-end exchange rate
method, whereby the companies’ equity is measured at the historical exchange rates, the income statement
items at the average exchange rates for the year and the assets, rights and obligations at the year-end
exchange rates. Translation differences are charged or credited, as appropriate, to “Equity - Translation
Differences” in the consolidated balance sheet.

Also, in accordance with standard practice, the accompanying consolidated financial statements do not
include the tax effects that might arise as a result of the inclusion of the results and reserves of the
consolidated companies in those of the Parent, since it is considered that no transfers of reserves will be
made that are not taxed at source and that such reserves will be used as means of financing at each
company.

Associates

Associates are companies over which the Parent is in a position fo exercise significant influence, but not
contrel or joint control. Normally this capacity exists because the Group holds -directly or indirectly- 20% or
more of the voting power of the subsidiary.

In the consolidated financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method, i.e. at the Group's share of net assets of the subsidiary, after taking into account the dividends
received therefrom and other equity eliminations. In the case of transactions with an asscciate, the related
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the associate.

If as a result of losses incurred by an associate its equity were negative, the investment should be presented
in the Group's consolidated balance sheet with a zero value, unless the Group is obliged fo give it financial
support.

There are ho jointly controlled entities that are proportionately congolidated.

Changes in accouriting policies and in disclosures of information effective in 2014

in 2014 new accounting standards came into force and were therefore taken into account when preparing the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.



The following standards have been applied in these consolidated financial statements, with no significant

impact on the presentation here of and disclosures herein:

New standards, amendments and
interpretations:

Content:

Obligatory application in
annual reporting periods
béginning on or after:

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements (issued in May 2011)

Replaces the consolidation guidance in
IAS 27,

1 January 2014 (1)

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (issued in
May 2011)

Replaces IAS 31 on joint ventures.

1 January 2014 (1)

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities (issued in May 2011)

Single standard that sets out disclosures
related to interests in subsidiaries,
associates, joint ventures and
unconsolidated entities.

1 January 2014 (1)

IAS 57 (Revised} Separate Financial
Statements (issued in May 2011)

The standard was revised because,
following the issuance of IFRS 10, it will
now include only the separate financial
statements of an entity.

T January 2014 (1)

IAS 28 (Revised) n Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures (issued in
May 2011)

Simultaneous revision related to the
issuance of IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements.

T January 2014 (1)

Transition rules: Amendments to IFRS 10,
11 and 12 {issued in June 2012)

Clarification on the transition rules
applying to these staridards.

1 January 2014 (1)

Investment entities; amendments to IFRS
10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (issued in October
2012)

Exception in the consolidation for parent
companies whose businesses qualify as
investment entities.

1 Janﬁary 2014

Amendments to [AS 32 Offéetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(issued in December 2011)

Further clarifications of rules for offsetting
financial assefs and liabilities of IAS 32.

17 Janvary 2014

Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable '
Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets (issued in May 2013)

Clarifies certain disclosure requirements
and réquires additional information when
recoverable amount is based on fair value
less costs of disposal.

1 January 20‘.14 (4]

Amendments to !AS 38 Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting {issued in June 2013)

The améndments determine in what cases
and accarding to what eriteria the navation
of a derivative does not make it necessary
to discontinue hedge accounting.

1 January 2014

(1) The European Union delayed the mandatory effective date by one year. The original effective date of the IASB was

1 January 2013.

(2) These amendments to |IAS 36 were applied early by the Group, effective as of 1 January 2013.

Since their entry into force on 1 January 2014, the Group has applied the aforementicned standards and
interpretations which did not have any significant impacts on the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

In this regard, IFRS 10 amended the definition of control existing until its entry into force and, therefore, the
new definition of control sets out the following three elements of control: power over the investee: exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from involvement with the investee; and the ability to use power over the invesiee
to affect the amount of the investor's returns.

Based on the new assumptions to be considered when defining control, the Group has carried out a review
‘process in order to reassess the situations of control existing over the Group companies. These assumptions
include maost notably the following:

- Only substantive righis are considered in the analysis of control, and certain new requirements for
potential voting rights are also included, which will be considered provided that they are substantive, even
though the rights are not cumentiy exercisabie. The expianation in reiaijon io the difference beiween
substantive and protective rights has been extended.



- To have power over the investee is not sufficient, to the extent that the entity that has power, it must also
have the ability to use its power to affect its returns from the investment. In this regard, the standard has
been extended to analyse principal and agent situations in relation to the exercise of control over other
entities and structured entities operating on "autopilot”.

IFRS 10 also covers the situation commonly known as “de facto control” in which the entity may retain control
even without holding majority voting rights, a case not explicitly dealt with by the standards currently in force.
The amendment to the definition of contral in the new IFRS 10 did not give rise to any significant change in
the method of consolidation of the varicus Group companies, there was only a change at the Andorran
company Inspeccid Técnica de Vehicles i Serveis, S.A. which ceased to be accounted for using the equity
methed and began to be fully consolidated. The accompanying Appendix | provides detail on the total assets,
liabilities and results of the aforementioned subsidiary, which were not significant for consolidation purposes
and, therefore, the Group did not restate the consolidated financial statements for 2013 as established in IAS
1.40.

Also, the fundamental change introduced by IFRS 11 with respect to the previous standard is the elimination
of the option of proportionate consolidation for jointly contrelled entities, which have begun to be accounted
for using the equity method. In 2013 there were no proportionately consolidated companies and, therefore,
the aforementioned new IFRS did not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements for 2014.

With regard to IFRS 12, this new standard relating sclely to disclosures presenis in a singfe standard all the
disclosure requirements for investments in other companies (whether these are subsidiaries, associates, joint
arrangements or other unconsolidated interests) and, in addition to the very significant volume of new
disclosure requirements, mention should be made of the introduction of mandatory disclosures on interests in
unconsolidated vehicles, without any significant impact on the 2014 consolidated financial statements.

IAS 27 was revised as from now on its contents will apply only to stand alone financial statements of an
entity. I1AS 28 now prescribes that jointly controlled entities must be accounted for using the equity method,
without any other possible option, in the same way as associates.

d) Accounting policies issued but not yet in force in 2014
At the date of formal preparation of these consolidated financial statements, the following standards and
interpretations had been published by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) but had not yet come

into force, either because their effective date is subsequent to the date of the consclidated financial statements or
because they had not yet been adopted by the European Union (EU-IFRSs):
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New standards, amendments and interpretations

Obligatory application in annual
reporting periods beginning on or
after:

Approved for use in the European Union:

IFRIC 21 Levies (issued in May 2013}

Guidance on when to recognise a liability
for levies charged for participation by the
entity in an activity on a specified date

17 June 2014 (1)

Not yet approved for use in the European Union at the date of publication of this document

New standards

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments {last phase
issued in July 2014)

Replaces the requirements for classifying
and measuring financial assets and
liabilities and accounting for hedging and
impairmente IAS 39.

1 January 2018

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers {issued in May 2014)

New standard for recognising revenue
(replaces IAS 11, IAS 18, |IFRIC 13,
IFRIC 15, IFRIC 18 and SIC 31)

1 January 2017

Amended and interpreted in

IFRS 14 Regulatdry Deferrai Accounts

Financial reporting requirements for
regulatory deferral account balances that
arise when an entity provides goods or
services to customers at a price or rate
subject to rate regulation.

1 January 2016

Amendments to IAS 19, Defined Benefit | The amendments allow employee | 1 July 2014
Plans: Employee Contributions (issued | contributions to be deducted from service
in November 2013) costs in the same period in which they
are paid, providing certain requirements
are met
Improvements fo IFRSs 2010-2012 Minor amendments to certain standards 1 July 2014

Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle (issued in
Becember 2013)

Amendments to IAS 16 and 1AS 38
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation {issued in May 2014}

Clarifies  acceptable  methods  of
depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and amortisation of intangible
assels

1 January 2016

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations (issued in May 2014)

Specifies the accounting treatment for the
acquisition of an inferest in & joint
aperation that constitutes a business.

1 January 2016

Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle (issued in September 2014)

Minor amendments to cértain standards

1 January 2016

Amendments to IFRS 10 and |IAS 28
Sale or Contribution of Assets hetween
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture (issued in September 2014)

Clarification regarding the results of these
transactions if they are businesses or
assets,

1 January 2016

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements (issued
in August 2014}

An investor may now be accounted for
using the equity method in separate
financial statements.

1 January 2016

Amendments to IAS 16 and 1AS 41
Agriculture: Bearer Plants (issued in
June 2014)

Bearer plants will now be recognised at
cost, instead of at fair value.

1 January 2016

The European Union endorsed [FRIC 21 (EU Journal 14 June 2014), changing the original date of entry into force
established by the IASB from 1 January 2014 to 17 June 2014,

{1

The Parent's Directors have not considered the early application of the standards and interpretations detailed
above and, in any event, application thereof will be considered by the Group once they have been approved,
as the case may be, by the European Union.

In any case, the Parent's Directors have assessed the potential impact of applying these standards in the

future and consider that their entry into force will not have a material effect on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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¢) Changes in the scope of consolidation

e.1. Inclusions in the scope of consolidation in 2014:

In 2014 the following companies were included in the scope of consolidation:

+ Companies acquired in 2014 (all correspond to the Group Ingleog, except for Applus RTD, LLC):
- Ingelog Consultores de Ingenieria y Sisternas, S.A.
- Ingeandina Consultores de Ingenieria, S.A.S
- Ingelog Guatemala Consuliores de Ingenieria y Sistemas, S.A.
- Ingelog Costa Rica, S.A.
- Ingelog Servicios Generales, Ltda.
-~ Applus RTD, LLC
- Applus Velosi Angola, Limited

» Companies incorporated in 2014
- Applus K2 America, LL.C
- Applus Velosi Egypt, LLC
- K1 Total, OY
- Applus RTD USA Aerospace Holding, Inc.
- Applus Laborateries USA, Inc.
- 2445805 Ontario Ltd.

e.1.1. Companies acquired in 2014

On 29 October 2014, the Group acquired all the share capital of the Chilean companies forming part of the
Ingelog Group for a fixed amount of CLP 13,445 647 thousand (approximately EUR 17.4 million at that date)
plus a maximum earn-out of CLP 1,282,508 thousand (approximately EUR 1.7 million). The Group considers
that the conditions to ensure that the earn-out will be paid in full will be met and, accordingly, it was taken info
account when determining the acquisition cost of the ownership interest. Of the companies acquired -Ingelog
Servicios Generales, Lida. and Ingelog Consultores de Ingenieria y Sistemas, S.A.(parent}- the latter forms a
subgroup with three subsidiaries, Ingeandina Consultores de Ingenieria, S.A.S., Ingelog Costa Rica, S.A. and
Ingelog Guatemala Consultores de Ingenieria y Sistemas, S.A.

The most significant informaticn on the main acquisitions in 2014 is as follows (in thousands of euros):
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Group

Ingelog
Non-current assets 1,593
Other non-current assets 36l
Receivables and other 5,654
Cash and cash equivalents 1,928
Current liabilities 2,587
Other non-current liabilities 429
Fair value of net assets acquired 6,520
Acquisition cost 19,083
Goodwill (Note 4) 12,563

On 18 November 2014, the subsidiary Velosi Africa {Luxembourg), S.4 r.l. incorporated with another partner
Applus Velosi Angola, Limited of which it holds 49% of the share capital amounting to AQA 191,404 (EUR
1,508).

On 24 December 2014, RTD Holding B.V. (99%) and Arctosa Holding B.V. (1%) acquired Applus RTD, LLC
with a share capital of RUB 10 thousand (EUR 0.1 thousand).

e.1.2. Companies incorporated in 2014

On 23 June 2014, Applus Velosi America, LLC incorporated Applus K2 America, LLC with a share capital of
USD 1 thousand {EUR 833).

On 11 August 2014, Velosi Africa (Luxembourg) S.a r.l. and Velosi S.A. (Propietary) Ltd. incorporated Applus
Velosi Egypt, LLC with a share capital of EGP 200 thousand (EUR 21 thousand).

On 25 August 2014, Applus lteuve Technology S.L.U. incorporated K1 Total, OY with a share capital of EUR
2,500.

Additionally, the following companies have been incorperated and as indicated in Appendix I, are not
included in the scope of consolidation since they are Holding companies with no activity:

- On 25 November 2014, Libertytown USA 2, Inc. incorporated Applus RTD USA Aerospace Holding Inc.
with a share capital of USD 1 (EUR 0.8).

- On 25 November 2014, LGAIl Technological Center, S.A. incorporated Applus Laboratories USA, Inc.
with a share capital of USD 1 (EUR 0.8).

- 0On 12 December 2014, RTD Holding B.V. incorporated 2445805 Ontario Lid. with a share capital of
CAD 1 (EURQ.7).

e.2. Changes in the scope of consolidation in 2014

On 1 January 2014, the investees A-Inspektion, AS and Applus Denmark, S.A. merged. Also, the companies
A-Inspektion Invest Aps and Synshallen Arhus havn Aps, that was a subsidiary of A-Inspektion, AS.

Additionally, Steel Test (PTY) Limited and Velosi SA (PTY) Ltd. incorperated Velosi Mozambique LDA on an
equal-fooling basis with a share capital of MZN 100 thousand (EUR 2 thousand); this subsidiary was included
in the scope of consolidation in 2014.

The subsidiary John Davidson Australia, Pty. Limited incorporated Applus Velosi DRC, $.a r.l. through
monetary contributions of USD 9 thousand (EUR 7 thousand), giving it an ownership interest of 90%. Also, on
28 February 2014 the non-controlling shareholder entered into an agreement to transfer 10% of the shares to
John Davidson Australia, Pty. Ltd., making the latter the sole shareholder of Applus Velosi DRC, S.a r.l. This
company was included in the scope of consolidation in 2014.
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On 11 December 2013, Velosi Malta 1l Limited incorporated Applus Velosi Czech Republic, S.R.O. with a
share capital of CZK 200 thousand (EUR 7 thousand).

e.3. Exclusions from the scope of consolidation in 2014

On 26 February 2014, Applus RTD K.K., which was dormant, was liquidated, without significant impact on the
Group's consolidated profit or loss.

On 14 March 2014, the Group sold the agrofood business division owned partly by LGAI Technological
Center, S.A., Applus Neorcontrol, S.L.., Applus Portugal, LTDA and Applus Quality Inspection Co, Ltd. for a
total of EUR 10,394 thousand, and all of the ownership interest of irtapplus, S.L. (including 75.42% of the
shares of Applus Agroambiental, S.A.). A portion (EUR 8,244 thousand) of the price obtained from the sale of
the food and agriculture business was collected when the purchase and sale agreement was executed, and
the remaining EUR 2,150 thousand was deposited in the form of a guarantee by the buyer to cater for
possible adjustments to the price, the deadline for payment of which is 30 June 2016. The impact of this sale
on the consolidated profit or loss for 2014 amounted to a gain of EUR 2.789 thousand (see Note 23).

On 30 September 2014, Rontgen Technische Dienst Holding, B.V. sold Réntgen Technische Dienst, N.V. for
EUR 6 million. A paition (EUR 5,608 thousand) of the price obtained from the sale of the business was
collected when the purchase and sale agreement was executed, and the remaining EUR 392 thousand was
deposited in the form of a guarantee by the buyer to cater for possible adjustments to the price, the deadline
for payment of which is 31 March 2015. The impact of this sale on the consolidated profit or loss for 2014 -
amounted to a gain of EUR 4,100 thousand (see Note 23).

e.4. Inclusions in the scopé of consolidation in 2013:

In 2013 the following companies were included in the scope of consolidation:

» Companies acquired in 2013;
- Group A-Inspektion A/S
- Applus Velosi OMS Co Lid.
- Téestex Inspection LLC
- Ringal Invest, S.L.U.
+ Companies incorporated in 2013:
- Applus Il Meio Ambiente Portugal, LDA
- Velosi Turkmenistam
- Applus Velosi Mongolia, LLC
- Applus Norcontrol Consultoria e Ingenieria SAS
- Applus Arabia, 1.1.C

e.4.1. Companies acquired in 2013

On 12 December 2013, the subsidiary Applus Danmark A/S acquired all the share capital of the Danish
company A-Inspektion A/S for EUR 98 thousand. The acquired company includes one subgroup with two
subsidiaries, A-Inspektion Invest Aps and Synshallen, Arhus Hawn ApS, which are fully owned by A-
inspektion A/S.

On 12 December 2013, the subsidiary Velosi Industries SDN BHD acquired 66.6% of the share capital of
Applus Velosi OMS Co Ltd. for a fixed amount of KRW 86,580 thousand (EUR 59 thousand at the acquisition
date) plus an earn-out of USD 2,000 thousand (EUR 1,451 thousand at 31 December 2013). The Group
considers that the conditions to ensure that the earn-out will be paid in full will be met and, accordingly, it was
taken into account when determining the acquisition cost of the ownership interest.
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On 12 December 2013, Applus Velosi America, LLC acquired all the share capital of Testex Inspection LLC
for a fixed amount of USD 10,000 thousand (EUR 7,436 thousand at the acquisition date) plus a maximum
earm-out of USD 6,000 thousand (EUR 4,360 thousand at 31 December 2013). The Group considers that the
conditions to ensure that the earn-out will be paid in full will be met and, accordingly, it was taken into account
when determining the acquisition cost of the ownership interest. Pursuant to IFRS 3, only USD 4,800
thousand (EUR 3,488 thousand) -the part to be paid to sharehclders who do not remain in the company’s
employ- was recognised as an addition to the acquisition cost of the investment. The earn-out of USD 1,200
thousand (EUR 872 thousand) to be paid to shareholders who remain in the company's employ was
recognised as an expense.

Also, on 17 May 2013, the subsidiary Applus Servicios Tecnoldgicos, S.L.U. acquired all of the share capital
of Ringal Invest, S.L.U. for EUR 3 thousand.

The most significant information on the main acquisitions in 2013 is as follows (in thousands of euros):

Applus A-
Inggzgt:i}im Velosi | Inspektion Total
LLC OMS Co A/S
Ltd. Group

Non-current assets 26 95 352 473
Other non-current assets - - 292 292
Receivables and other 2,779 365 285 3,429
Current investments - 9 - 9
Cash and cash equivalents 675 8 171 854
Current liabilities - 357 1,160 1,587
Other non-current liabilities 121 - - 121
Fair value of net assets acquired 3,359 120 (60) 3,419
Acquisition cost _ 10,924 1,510 98 12,532
Goodwill 7,565 1,300  158| 9113

e.4.2. Companies incorporated in 2013

On 14 January 2013, Applus Norcontrol, S.L.U. and Applus Servicios Tecnologicos, S.L.U. incorporated the
Portuguese company Applus | Meio Ambiente Portugal, LDA. with a monetary contribution of EUR 1
thousand of share capital.

On 15 February 2013, Velosi Industries Sdn Bhd and Velosi Europe Limited (UK} incorporated Velosi
Turkmenistan for TMT 142,500 (EUR 37 thousand).

e.5. Changes in the scope of consolidation in 2013

On 29 July 2013, Idiada Investimentos do Brasil, Ltda merged with idiada Tecnologia Automotiva, Ltda.

On 8 July 2013, RTD Holding Deutschland GmbH sold all the shares of Applus RTD Personalservices GmbH
to the Group company Réntgen Technische Dienst Holding, B.V. for EUR 27 thousand. Also, on 12 August
2013 Libertytown Germany GmbH merged with Libertytown Applus RTD Germany GmbH.

On 17 July 2013, Libertytown Australia PTY LTD exercised the option to purchase 30% of the shares that had
been owned by the non-controlling shareholders of John Davison and Associates PTY LTD and JDA
Wokman Limited. AUD 1,815 thousand and AUD 1,184 thousand (EUR 1,181 thousand and EUR 770
thousand, respectively) were paid for the acquisitions. At 2013 year-end the Group wholly owned the JDA
subgroup.
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On 1 September 2013, Ringal Invest, S.L.U acquired Ringal Brasil Investimentos Lid. from Réntgen
Technische Dienst Holding, B.V. (99.9%) for EUR 4,043 thousand. On 29 November 2013, Applus Servicios
Tecnologicos, S.L.U. increased the share capital and share premium of Ringal Invest, S.L.U. by EUR 100
thousand and EUR 3,943 thousand, respectively.

e.6. Exclusions from the scope of consolidation in 2013

On 25 July 2013, the dormant company Applus lteuve Andalucia, S.A. was liquidated, with no significant
impact in the income statement of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

On 27 August 2013, the dormant company Velosi Project Services Pte Ltd. was liquidated, which did not have
a material impact on the Group's consolidated profit or loss, with no significant impact in the income
statement of the Group’s consoclidated financial statements.

On 19 December 2013, the dormant company Velosi (S) PTE LTD was liquidated, with no significant impact
in the income statement of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies used in preparing the Group's consolidated financial statements, in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, were as follows:

a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the combination over the fair value of the interest in the net
identifiable assets of a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or acquired associate at the acquisition date.
Goodwill relating to the acquisition of subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities is included in intangible assets
and goodwill relating to the acquisition of associates is included in investments accounted for using the equity
methed.

The cost of a business combination is the aggregate of:

- The acquisition-date fair value of the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and the equity instruments
issued.

— The fair value of any contingent consideration that depends on future events or on the fulfiment of certain
specified conditions.

The costs incurred to issue equity or debt securities given up in exchange for the items acquired are not
included in the cost of a business combination.

Also, the cost of a business combination does not include the fees paid fo legal advisers and other
professionals involved in the combination or, clearly, any costs incurred internally in this connection. Such
amounts are charged directly to profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages and, therefore, the acquirer already held an equity interest
in the acquiree immediately before the acquisition date (the date on which control is obtained), the goodwill or
gain on a bargain purchase is the difference between:

~ The cost of the business combination, plus the acquisition-date fair value of any equity interest previously
held by the acquirer in the acquiree; and

- The fair value of the identifiable assets acquired less the fair value of the liabilities assumed, determined as
indicated above.

Any gain or loss resulting from the remeasurement at fair value of the previously held equity interest in the
acquiree at its acqguisition-date fair value on the date contral is obtained is recognised in the income
statement of the consolidated financial statements. If the investment in this investee had previously been
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measured at fair value, any valuation adjustments not yet recognised in profit or loss will be transferred to the
consolidated income statement. Also, the cost of a business combination is presumed fo be the best
reference for estimating the acquisition-date fair value of any previously held equity interest.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of companies with a functional currency other than the euro is measured in
the functional currency of the acquire and is translated to euros at the exchange rates prevailing at the
balance sheet date.

If, exceptionally, a gain on a bargain purchase arises from the business combination, it is recognised as
income in the consolidated income statement,

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the acquirer shall report in its financial statements provisional amounts for the items
for which the accounting is incomplete and the provisional amounts may be adjusted in the period required to
obtain the necessary information. However, the measurement period shall not exceed one year from the
acquisition date. The effects of the adjustments made in that period are recognised retrospectively and
comparative information for prior periods must be revised as needed.

Subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss, unless
the consideration has been classified as equity, in which case subsequent changes in its fair value are not
reCognised.

if, subseqguent to obtaining confrol, there are transactions to sell or purchase the shares of a subsidiary
without losing control thereover, the impacts of these transactions not ieading to a change in control are
recognised in equity and the amount of goodwill arising on consolidation is not adjusted.

Pursuant to paragraph 81 of I1AS 36, when goodwill cannot be allocated to an individual cash-generafing unit,
it is allocated to hamogensous groups of cash-generating units that correspond to the loweést level at which
the goodwill can be monitored by the directors for internal management purposes.

Other intangible assets

The other intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance which arise as a
result of a legal transaction or which are developed internally by the consolidated companies. Only assets
whose cost can be estimated reasonably objectively and from which the consolidated companies consider it
probable that future economic benefits will be generated are recognised.

intangible assets are recognised initially at acquisition or production cost, which includes the allocation of the
value of goodwill as a result of the business combinations, where applicable, and are subsequently measured
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets are measured and amortised as follows:

- Administrative concessions or similar items that have been acquired by onerous title are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the concession term. The initial cost (fee) and, where applicable, the present value
of the future payments which are deemed to be necessary when the assets are handed over to the grantor
are included in this line item.

- Trademarks and trademark licence agreements are measured based on the future royalty income stream
from their use. Trademarks and trademark licence agreements are considered to have a finite useful life
and are amortised over 25 years, with the exception of the trademark and trademark licence agreement
associated with the Velosi Group, which are being amortised over 10 years,

- The administrative authorisations relate to vehicle roadworthiness testing services in Spain and abroad
which the Group manages under this name. The main administrative authorisations relate to Spain and
Fintand. in the case of Spain, considering the opinion of the Group's advisers regarding the possible
positioning of the Catalonia Autonomous Community Government regarding the renewal of the
administrative authorisation of that Autonomous Community at finalization of the current established
period, which concludes in 2035, management decided in 2013 to start amortizing the cost of the
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authorisation over the 23 years remaining to maturity, until 2035. (See Note 27.b). In the case of Finland,
although the administrative authorisation has an indefinite useful life, it is estimated that the economic
value of this authorisation will be recovered in 10 years and, therefore, it is being amortised over this
period.

- Customer portfolios are amortised based on the life of the agreements entered into with the customers.

- Asset usage rights relate to machinery and fixtures used by the Group in the performance of its business
activity and are subject to reversal. They are amortised over the residual useful life of the assets to which
they correspond, from the acquisition date of the right of use, based on an estimate by an independent
valuer.

- Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over five years. Computer system maintenance
costs are recognised with a charge to the consolidated income statement for the year in which they are
incurred.

¢} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recognised at acquisition or production cost.

The costs of expansion, modemisation or improvements leading to increased productivity, capacity or
efficiency or to a lengthening of the useful lives of the assets are capitalised.

Replacements or renewals of complete items that lead to a lengthening of the useful life of the assets or to an
increase in their economic capacity are recognised as additions to property, plant and equipment, and the
items replaced or renewed are derecognised.

Periodic maintenance, upkeep and repair expenses are recognised in the income statement on an accrual
basis as incurred.

The companies depreciate their property, plant and equipment using the straight-line method on the basis of
the remaining years of estimated useful life of the various items, the detail being as follows:

Years of
estimated
. useful life
Buildings 20 to 40
Plant Jto 12
Machinery and tools 3t0 10
Furniture 21010
Computer hardware 4
Transport equipment Jto 10

The assets that have to be handed over to the Government at the end of the concession term will have been
fully depreciated at this date.

Property Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised
impairment losses.

Assets held under finance leases (see Note 3.g) are recognised in the corresponding asset category and are
depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, over the
term of the lease agreement. At 31 December 2014, “Property, Plant and Equipment” in the consofidated
balance sheet included EUR 19,520 thousand (31 December 2013: EUR 17,202 thousand) relating to assets
held under finance leases (see Note 7).
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The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets that cannot be used are not amortised or
depreciated and are tested for impairment annually. Assets that are amortised or depreciated are tested for
impairment whenever an event or a change in circumstances indicates that their carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of
impairment loss assessment, assels are grouped at the lowest level for which there are largely independent
separately identifiable cash inflows {cash-generating units {CGUs)). The cash-generating units defined by the
Group are detailed in Notes 4 and 5.

Pursuant to paragraph 81 of IAS 36, when goodwill cannot be allocated to an individual cash-generating unit,
it is allocatéd to homogengous groups of cash-generating units that correspond to the lowest level at which
the goodwill can be monitored by the diréctors for internal management purposes. In these cases, as
established in paragraphs 88 and 89 of IAS 36, these individual cash-generating units are tested for
impairment to assess the recoverability of the intangible assets specifically associated with them (see Note
6). In this case, impairment losses on these intangible assets could arise even when the related goodwill is
not impaired. ’

The impairment losses on non-financial assets recognised previously (other than goodwill} are reviewed for
possible reversal at each reporting date.

In order to estimate value in use, the future cash flows of the asset analysed (or of the cash-generating unit to
which it belorigs) are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects market conditions
and the risk specific to the asset. Where the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised for the amount of the difference with a charge to the
consolidated income statement.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, without exceeding thé carrying amount existing prior to the
recognition of the impairment loss, less any depreciation or amertisation that should have been recognised.
The reversal of an impairment loss on an asset is credited to thé consolidated income statement.

The method used by the Group to test impairment distinguishes beétween businesses with indefinite and
definite lives. Five-year projections and a perpetuity rate of return from the sixth year are used for businesses
with indefinite lives. Projections based on the actual term of the related contract are used for assets with finite
lives relating to the rendering of services or concessions. In this case, the probability of their renewal was not
considered in preparing the related cash flow projections.

In both cases the projections were based on reasonable and well-founded assumptions and were prepared in
accordance with the Group's strategic plan for 2015-2019 based on past experience and the best estimates
available at the date on which the related impairment tests were carried out using the market information
available. The projections envisage growth in volume and improvements to margins arising solely from the
arganic growth that the Parenf's management expects for the coming years. Consequently, the possible
acquisitions or mergers that might take place in the future were not taken into accournit in the projections and
impairment tests.

Together with the impairment test on the various cash-generating units carried out at least at each year-end,
the Group also performs a sensitivity analysis of the main assumpticns affecting the calculation. The main
assumptions used by the Group in testing for impairment and the results of the sensitivity analysis are
described in Note 6.
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from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is controlled for internal management
purposes.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets and loans and receivables.

The classification of financial assets depends on their nature and puipose at the time of their initial
recognition. All acquisitions and sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised at the transaction
date.

At 2014 year-end the only financial assets the Group had were held-to-maturity investments (see Notes 8 and
11) and loans and receivables (see Note 10).

The effective interest method is used to measure the amortised cost of a financial instrument. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of a
financial instrument. However, given the nature of the assets classified under “Financial Assets’, they are
generally recognised at their original acquisition cost, since they mature within less than one year.

Upon completion of such impairment tests as might be required, any losses arising therefrom are recognised
directly by reducing the amounts presented under “Non-Current Financial Assets” in the consolidated balance
sheet.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the rights fo the cash flows from the financial asset expire or
have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset have also
been transferred, such as in the case of firm asset sales, non-recourse factoring of trade receivables in which
the Group does not retain any credit or interest rate risk, ales of financial assets under an agreement to
repurchase them at fair value and the securitisation of financial assets in which the transferor does not retain
any subordinated debt, provide any kind of guarantee or assume any other kind of risk.

However, the Group does not derecognise financial assets, and recognises a financial liability for an amount
equal to the consideration received, in transfers of financial assets in which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained, such as in the case of bill discounting and the recourse factoring.

Lastly, at least at each halance sheet date, it is determined whether there is any indication that an asset or
group of assets might have become impaired so that an impairment loss can be recognised or reversed in
order to adjust the carrying amount of the assets to their value in use.

Information on the environment
Environmental assets are considered to be assets used on a [asting basis in the operations of the Group
companies whose main purpese is to minimise adverse environment effects and to protect and enhance the

environment, including the reduction or elimination of the poliution caused in the future by the Applus Group's
operations.

In view of the Group's business activity, at 31 December 2014 and 2013 it did not have any significant assets
of this nature.

Operating and finance leases

The Group has been assigned the right to use certain assets under leases. Leases that transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as finance leases; otherwise they are
classified as operating leases.
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Finance leases

At the commencement of the finance lease term, the Group recognises an asset and a liability for the lower of
the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The initial direct
costs are included as an increase in the value of the asset. The minimum lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charge and the reduction of the cutstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to
each period in the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability. Contingent lease payments are recognised as an expense when it is probable that they wilt be
incurred.

These assets are depreciated using similar criteria lo those applied to the items of property, plant and
equipment owned or, if shorter, over the lease term,

Qperafing leases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless
some other systematic basis of allocation is more representative of the time pattern of the benefits generated.

Leases do not have grace periods or compensation clauses giving rise to a future payment obligation that
could have a significant impact on these consolidated financial statements.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at weighted average co'st, which comprises materials and, where applicable, direct
labour costs and other costs that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

The Group assesses the net realisable value of the inventories at the end of each year and recognises the
appropriate loss if the inventories are overstated. When the circumstances that previously caused inventories
to be written down no longer exist or when there is clear evidence of an increase in net realisable value
because of changed economic circumstances, the amount of the write-down is reversed.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are recognised at their recoverable amount, i.e, reduced, as appropriate, by the
adjustments required to cover balances of a certain age (generally more than one year old), in the event that

they can reascnably be classified as doubtful receivables in the circumstances.

The heading also includes the balances of Projects in progress pending to be billed in relation to the
execution of work to order for which a firm agreement generally exists.

Current financial assets, cash and cash equivalents

Current financial assets relate mainly to cash surpluses invested in short-term fixed-income securities that are
generally held to maturity and are recognised at acquisition cost. Interest income is calculated on a time
proportion basis in the year in which it accrues.

The balance of cash and cash equivalents recognised in the consolidated balance sheets at 31 December
2014 and 2013 includes the bank balances, available cash and the current financial assets maturing within
three months.

Government grants

Government grants related to property, plant and equipment are treated as deferred income and are taken to
income over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned. In addition, the Group accounts for other
grants, donations and legacies received as follows:
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a) Nen-refundable grants, donations or legacies related to assets: these are measured at the fair value of the
amount or the asset received, based on whether or not they are menetary grants, and they are taken to
income in proportion to the period depreciation taken on the assets for which the grants were received or,
where appropriate, on disposal of the asset or on the recognition of an impairment loss, except for grants
received from shareholders or owners, which are recognised directly in non-current liabilities and do not
give rise to the recognition of any income.

b) Refundable grants: while they are refundable, they are recognised as a non-current liability.

c) Grants related to income: grants related to income are credifed to income when granted, unless their
purpose is to finance losses from operations in future years, in which case they are allocated to income in
those years. If grants are received o finance specific expenses, they are allocated to income as the
related expenses are incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
When preparing the consclidated financial statements the Parent's Directors make a distinction between:
- Provisions:

The Group recognises a provision where it has an obligation or liability to a third party arising from past
events the settiement of which will give rise to an outflow of economic benefits whose amount and/or
timing are not known with certainty but can be reasonably reliably estimated. Provisions are quantified on
the basis of the best information available on the event and the consequences of the event and are
reviewed and adjusted at the end of each reporting period. The provisions made are used to cater for the
specific risks for which they were originally recognised, and are fully or partially reversed when such risks
cease to exist or are reduced.

- Contingent liabilities:

Contingent liabilities are all the possible obligations that arise from past events and whose future
existence and associated loss are estimated to be unlikely. In accordance with IFRSs, the Group does not
recognise any provision in this connection. However, as required, the contingent liabilities are disclosed in
Note 27-b.

The Group's legal advisers and directors consider that the outcome of litigation and claims will not have a
material effect on the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present obligation, whether legal or constructive, as a result of past events with respect to which
it is mare likely than not fo entail an outflow of resources to settle the obligation and when the amount thereof
has been estimated reliably.

Provisions are recognised when the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under onerous contracts
exceed the benefits expected to be received thereunder.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the amount necessary to seftle the obligation at the balance
sheet date based on the best estimate available.

When it is expected that a portion of the disbursement necessary to settle the provision will be reimbursed by
a third party, the reimbursed amount is recognised as an independent asset, provided that receipt thereof is
virtually assured.

m) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses financial derivatives to eliminate or significantly reduce certain interest rate and foreign
currency risks relating to its assets. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative
pUrposes.
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The Group's use of financial derivatives is governed by and envisaged in its policies, which provide guidelines
for their use (see Note 16).

The sole financial derivative product held by the Group at 31 December 2014,, i$ the one related fo treasury
shares detailed in Note 3.z. In 2014 the Group did not arrange any other financial derivative products either.

Pension obligations, post-employment benefits and other employee benefit obligations

The defined benefit liability recognised in the consolidated balance sheet relates to the present value of the
defined benefit obligations existing at year-end, less the fair value at the aforementioned date of the plan
assels.

The income or expense related to the defined benefit plans is recognised in the consolidated income
statement and is obtained as a result of the addition of revenue from services in 2014 and the actuarial
losses. The difference between the projected and actual performance of the plan assets forms part of the
actuarial gains or losses. Also, the Group immediately recognises the past service cost as a period expense
in the consolidated incéme staferiient.

The present value of the defined benefit obligations, the cost of services rendered and past service costs are
calculated annually by independent actuaries in accordance with the projected unit credit method. The
discount interest rate is determined based on the market rates of high-quality company bonds and debentures
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and with terms and maturities similar to those
of the related benefits.

The asset or liability for defined benefits is recognised as current or non-current based on the realisation
period or maturity of the related benefits.

The group recognises the contributions to the defined contribution plans while workers render their services.
The amount of the contributions earned by the employees is registered as an expense in the consolidated
income statement and as a liability if the amounts paid are inferior to the experse. In case that the amounts
paid are higher than the expense, the Group cnly recognizes assets in the way that can be used to offset the
future payments, or can be settled in cash.

The contributions made are registered under the epigraph “staff costs” in the consclidated income statement,

However, the Group's defined benefit and defined contribution pension and other post-employmént benefit
obligations are not material {(see Note 17).

Other employvee benefif gbligations

The Group has established specific employee remuneration plans based on the following characteristics:

a) Variable remuneration for certain executives of the Group subject to the achievement of certain
financial aggregates in 2014.

b} Variable three-yearly remuneration for certain executives of the Group subject to the achievement
by the Group of certain financial aggregates in 2014, 2015 and 2016 (see Notes 19 and 29).

c) Special incentive plan granted to certain executives of the Group that consists of conferring RSU’s
(convertibles in Group shares) in favour of the senior executives based on a continuing service for a
determined period of time. The first delivery of shares will be made in May 2015 (see Notes 19 and
29).

Debts and current/non-current classification

eporting

Debts are recognised at their present value and are classified on the basis of their maturity at the r
> dua to be

date, i.e. debts due to be settled within twelve manths are classified as current liahilities and thos
settled within more than twelve months are classified as non-current liabilities.
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p} Financial liabilities

q)

Financial liabilities are classified into the following categories: financiat liabilities at fair value through the
consclidated income statement and other financial liabilities.

At 2014 year-end the Group only had other financial liabilities. Other financial liabilities (including loans and
trade and other payables) are recognised at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is used to measure the amortised cost of a financial instrument. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of a
financiat instrument. The Group recognises trade payables at their nominal value, without any explicit interest
accrual, since they mature within less than one year.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities only when the obligations are settled, cancelied or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of derecognised financial liabilittes and the payment made is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Transactions in currencies other than the euro

The Group's functional currency is the euro. Therefore, all balances and transactions in currencies other than
the euro are deemed to be “foreign currency transactions”. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
assets and fiabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to euros at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Any resulting gains or losses are recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. The balances in the financial statements of the consolidated companies with a functional currency
other than the euro are translated to euros as follows:

Assets and liabilities are translated by applying the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date.

- Income, expenses and cash flows are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.

- Equity items are translated at the historical exchange rates.

- Translation differences arising as a consequence of the application of this method are presented under
"Equity Aftributable to Shareholders of the Parent - Foreing Currency translation reserve" in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

The detait of the equivalent euro value of the main assets in foreign currency held by the Group at 31
December 2014 and 2013 is as foliows (in thousands of euros):
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Balances held in: 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
US dollar 446,118 387,530
Canadian dollar 66,606 69,674
Pound sterling 55,854 53,463
Danish krone 55,593 56,936
Chilean peso 39,220 16,617
Australian dollar 37,252 44,137
Qatari riyal 22,213 15,100
Singapore dollar 21,219 22294
Colombian peso 19,620 22,075
United Arab Emirates dirham 16,755 14,775
Brazilian real 15,821 13,751
Chinese yuan 15,549 13,243
Czech koruna 14,309 12,467
Saudi riyal 13,687 10,830
Malaysian ringgit 11,120 10,682
Indonesian rupiah 10,643 11,962
Norwegian krone 9,469 8,795
Argentine peso 8,854 8,246
Mexican peso 7,145 6,752
Papua New Guinean kina 5,784 3,806
Other 31,383 32,746
Total 924,214 835,881
The detail of the main foreign currency balances according to their nature at year end 2014 and 2013 is as
follows:
2014
_ Thousands of euros
Nature of the balances us Danish Canadian Pound Australian | Chilean Czech
dollar krone dollar sterling dollar peso koruna
Non-current assets 304,324 52,322 46,678 33,494 24,811 26,365 6,955
Current assets 141,795 3,271 19,928 22,360 12,441 12,856 7,354
Liabilities — equity 298318 4,680 5,185 9,890 6,783 4,304 4,541
Thousands of euros
Nature of the balances Brazilian Chinese | Colombian | Norwegian { Singapore Qatari " Mexican
real yuan peso krone dollar tiyal | peso
Non-current assets 7,220 6,079 2,066 4,517 3,108 1,539 1,768
Current assets 8,601 9471 17,555 4,952 18,112 20,674 5,378
Liabilities — equity 3,641 3,924 8,600 2,738 4,490 7,635 2,842
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Thousands of euros

p N United
Nature of the balances Malaysian apua ew Argentine Sandi Indonesian Arab
N Guinean . ) . Other
ringgit Kina peso riyal rupiah Emirates
dirham
Non-current assets 2,901 213 314 930 190 916 4,426
Current assets 8,219 5,570 8,040 12,757 10,454 15,839 26,954
Liabilities — equity 31,910 2,147 3,351 5,306 6,237 4,825 7,739
2013
Thousands of euros
Nature of the balances Us Danish | Canadian Pound Australian | Chilean Czech
dotlar krone dollar sterling dollar peso koruna
Non-current assets 285,951 52,753 45,831 30,843 23,477 8,183 7,094
Current assets 101,579 4,183 23,843 22.620 20,660 8,434 5373
Liabilities — equity 308,680 5,367 8,135 10,269 13,072 | 2,356 3,290
Thousands of euros
Nature of the balances Brazilian Chinese | Colombian | Norwegian | Singapore Qatari Mexican
real yuan pPESO krone dollar riya_l peso
Nobp-current assets 5,467 5,531 4,534 4,553 2,909 1,524 1,531
Current assets 8,284 7,712 17,541 4,242 19,385 13,576 5,221
Liabilities — equity 3,747 2,242 9,657 2,334 5,339 5,624 2,790
Thousands of euros
_ ' United
Nature of the balances Malaysian |Guatemalan] Argentine Saudi Indonesian Arab
L7, . . ) Other
ringgit quetzal peso riyal rupiah Emirates
dirham
Non-current assets 841 268 1,232 1,114 1,005 941 6,140
Current assets 9,841 4,006 7,014 9,716 10,957 13,834 26,138
Liabilities — equity 26,278 335 3,810 4,656 7,260 6,336 8,143
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The average and closing rates used in the translation to euros of the balances held in foreign currency for
years 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

2013

2014
1 Buro Average | opocingrate | V8% 1 Cloging rate
rate rate

Danish krone 7.46 7.44 7.46 7.46
Norwegian krone 834 831 7.79 848
Czech koruna 27.55 27.63 2592 27.57
United Arab Emirates dirham 490 4,58 4.87 5.05
Canadian dollar 1.47 1.45 1.36 1.46
Singapore dollar 1.69 1.63 1.66 1.73
US dollar 133 1.25 1.33 1.38
Papua New Guinean kina 3.52 333 3.10 335
Pound sterling 0.81 0.79 0.85 0.84
Argenting peso 10.79 10.66 7.23 8.67
Chilean peso 758.04 771.80 656.23 72640
Colombian peso 2,655.94 3,064.00 2,479.33 2,664.94
Mexican peso 17.66 1834 16.92 17.78
Brazilian rea) 312 3.40 2.86 321
Qatari riyal 4.86 4.54 4.84 5.06
Malaysian ringgit 435 434 419 452
Saudi riyal 5.00 4.68 498 5.16
Indonesian rupiah 15,773.61 15,857.60 13,814.44 16,498.20
Chinese yuan 820 7.64 8.23 8.41

r} Corporate income tax, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

The corporate income tax expense represents the sum of the current corporate income tax expense and the
effect of the changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities. The corporate incorme tax expense is calculated by
aggregating the current tax arising from the application of the tax rate to the taxable profit (tax loss) for the
year, after deducting the tax credits allowable for tax purposes, plus the change in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Certain Group companies with registered office in Spain file consolidated tax returns as part of tax
group 238/08 of which Applus Services, S.A. is the Parent. The Spanish consolidated tax Group comprises
the following companies:

Companies _
LGAI Technological Center, S.A.
Applus Energy, S.L.U.

Ringal Invest, S.L.U.

Applus Automotive Services, S.L.T.
Applus Iteuve Technology, S.L.1J.

Applus Services S.A.

Applus Servicios Tecnolégicos, S.L.U.
Idiada Automotive Technology, S.A.
Applus Norcontrol, S.L.U.

Novotec Consultores S.A.U.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities include temporary differences measured at the amount expected to be
payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax
bases, and tax credits for tax losses carryforwards and other tax credits. These amounts are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except for those associated to
investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates, or with share in a joint venture, when the Group can
control when to revert the temporary difference and it is considered probable that will not be reverted in a
foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for temporary differences to the extent that it is considered probable that
the consolidated companies will have sufficient taxable profits in the future against which the deferred tax
asset can be utilised. The other deferred tax assets (tax credits for tax losses carryforwards and other tax
credits) are only recognised if it is considered probable that the consolidated companies will have sufficient
future taxable profits against which they can be utilised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised are reassessed at each balance sheet date in order to
ascertain whether they still exist, and the appropriate adjustments are made on the basis of the findings of the
analyses performed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the
amounts receivable for the goods and setvices provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts,
value added tax (or equivalent tax) and other sales-related taxes.

Revenue associated with the rendering of services is also recognised by reference to the percentage of
completion of the fransaction at the balance sheet date, provided the outcome of the transaction can be
estimated reliably. In particular, revenue from prajects in progress related to the multi-industry certification or
engineering business is recognised by the Group on the basis of the percentage of completion of each
individual project, giving rise to a balancing entry consisting of an asset for the difference between the amount
billed and the amount yet to be billed for each project.

A part of the Group's activity consists of the execution of work under contract for which a firm agreement
generally exists.

As regards work units completed for output, each year the Group recognises as profit or loss the difference
between period output and the costs incurred during the year. Output each year is measured at the selling
price of the units completed in the year that, since they are covered by the contract entered into with the
owners, do not give rise to any reasonable doubts regarding their final billing.

Expense recognition

An expense is recognised in the consolidated income statement when there is a decrease in the future
economic benefits related to a reduction of an asset or an increase in a liability, which can be measured
reliably. This means that an expense is recognised simultaneously to the increase of a liability or the

reduction of an asset.

An expense is recognised immediately when a disbursement does not give rise to future economic benefits or
when the requirements for recognition as an asset are not met.

Also, an expense is recognised when a liability is incurred and no asset is recognised, as in the case of a
liability relating to a guarantee.

Discontinued operations
A discontinued operation is a business segment that it has been decided to abandon andfor dispose of in full
whose assets, liabilities and net profit or loss can be distinguished physically, operationally and for financial

reporting purposes.

Pursuant to IFRS 5, the revenue and expenses of discontinued operations are presented separately in the
consolidated income statement and the net assets and net liabilities are presented separately in consolidated
current assets and consolidated current liabilities, respectively, for the current period only.

The Group did not discontinue any significant operation in 2014 or 2013.
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v)

w)

x)

¥

Segment information

The business segments broken down in the notes to the consolidated financial statements are consistently
included by the Parent's Directors on the basis of the available internal information.

The operating segments are the components of the Applus Group that involve business activities from which
income is generated and expenses are incurred, including ordinary income and expenses arising from
transactions with other Group components. Financial information on segments is regularly disclosed and
operating results are reéviewed by the Group's Directors with a view to deciding on the resources that should
be allocated to the segments and evaluating their performance.

The Parent's Directors considered the following segments in these consolidated financial statements of the
Applus Group: Applus + RTD, Applus + Velosi, Applus + Norcontrol, Applus + Laboratories, Applus +
Automotive, Applus + IDIADA and Others.

Consolidated statenient of cash flows

The following terms are used in the consolidated statements of cash flows:

- Cash flows: inflows and outflows of cash and equivalent financial assets, which are short-term, highly
liquid investments that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vaiue.

- Operating acfivities: the Group's principal revenue-producing activities and other activities that are not
investing or financing activities.

- Investing activities: the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments not included in
cash and cash equivalents.

- Financing activities: activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the equity and
borrowings of the Group companies that are not operating activities.

Equity
The share capital is represented by ordinary shares.

The costs relating to the issuance of new shares or options, net of taxes, are recognised directly in equity as
a reduction of reserves.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a decrease in equity when approved.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to the Parent
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding in the year, excluding the average number of
shares of the Parent held by the Group companies.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit or loss atiributabie to ordinary sharehclders
adjusted by the effect attributable fo the dilutive potential ordinary shares by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding duririg the year, adjusted by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all the potential erdinary shares into ordinary
shares of the Parent. For these purposes, it is considered that the shares are converted at the beginning of
the year or at the date of issue of the potential ordinary shares, if the |atter were issued during the current
year.
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2) Treasury shares

In October 2014 the Group arranged an equity swap with a bank to cover the acquisition cost of 550,000
treasury shares, to be partially delivered to Group executives in May 2015 (see Notes 12 and 16). Since such
contract is an equity instrument the accounting principles described in Note 3.m, do not apply.

Acquisitionis of treasury shares are recognised at acquisition cost, reducing equity until they are sold. The
gains and losses obtdined on the disposal of treasury shares are recognised in "Reserves’ in the
accompanying consclidated balance sheet.

. Goodwill

The detail, by cash-generating unit, of the goodwill at the end of 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Thousands of euros
31/12/14 31/12/13
Cash-generating unit Gross Accumulated Gross Accurpulated Net
impairment | Net value impatrment

value losses value losses value
Auto Spain (*) 170,972 - 170,972 170,972 - 170,972
RTD Europe 139,287 (36,101) 103,186 139,287 (36,101 103,186
RTD US and Canada 66,142 - 66,142 63,058 - 63,058
IDIADA 56,433 - 56,433 56,555 - 56,555
Velosi 26,888 - 26,888 26,469 - 26,469
Norcontrol Spain 21,708 (11,370) 10,338 21,708 (11,370) 10,338
Laboratories 29,239 - 29,239 29,239 - 29,239
RTD Asia and Pacific 27,490 (15,674) 11,816 27471 (15,674) 11,797
Auto Denmark 7,501 (642) 6,859 7,501 (642) 6,859
Auto US (*) 23,274 (17,133) 6,141 23,274 (17,133) 6,141
Norcontrol Latam 14,545 - 14,545 1,982 - 1,982
Auto Finland 52,782 (52,782) - 52,782 (52,782) -
Other 1,150 - 1,150 1,286 - 1,286
Total goodwill 637,411 (133,702) 563,709 | 621,584 (133,702) | 487,882

(*} Includes the aggregate business of various concessions and administrative authorisations (see Notes 3.d and 5).

The changes in 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

Thousands
of euros

Balance at 1 January 2013 571,168
Changes in the scope of consolidation (Note 2.b.e.4) 9,113
Translation differences (8,413)
Disposals {2,701)
Impairment (81,285)
Balance at 31 December 2013 _ 487,882
Changes in the scope of consolidation (Note 2.b.e.1) 12,563
Translation differences 3,264
Impairment -

Balance at 31 December 2014 503,709

The changes in the scope of consolidation in 2014 related mainly to the acquisition of the Ingelog Group for EUR

12,563 thousand, which corresponds to the Norconirol Latam cash-generating unit {see Note 2.b.e.1).
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The changes in the scope of consolidation in 2013 related mainly to the acquisition of Testex Inspection, LLC and
Applus Velosi OMS Co, Ltd for EUR 7,565 thousand and EUR 1,390 thousand, respectively, which correspond to
the Velosi cash-generating unit.

The assumptions used in the tests to determine the impairment recognised in 2014 and 2013 are detailed in Note

6.

5. _ Other intangible assets

The changes in 2014 and 2013 in intangible asset accounts and in the related accumulated amortisation were as

follows:

2014 - Thousands of euros

Balance at 1 Changes in Additions or | .. Changes in Balance at 31
the scope of . Disposals or | Transfers exchange .
January consolidation charge for reductions (Note 7) rates and December
2014 the year 2014
{Note 2.b.e.1} other

Cost:
Administrative concessions 112,164 - - - - - 112,164
Patents, licences and trademarks 271,970 - 1,779 - (1,086) 69 272,732
Administrative authorisations 259,910 - - - - - 259,910
Customer portfolio 139,501 - - - - 442 139,943
Computer software 49,932 {541) 3,637 (448) 2,215 900 35,695
Goodwill acquired 12,132 {160) - (2,616) 1 328 9,685
Asset usage rights 72,960 - - - - - 72,960
Other 37,919 (437 3,502 (11,203) {1,789) 2,174 30,166
Total cost 956,488 (1,138) 8,918 (14,267) (659) 3,913 953255
Accumulated amortisation:
Administrative concessions (49,690) - (6,269} - - (2,706) (58,665)
Patents, licences and trademarks (60,273) - (12,697} - (353) 124 (73,199)
Administrative authorisations (33,257) - {15,994) - - 156 (49,093)
Customer portfolio (47,026) - (8,516) - {184) (73) (55,799)
Computer software (43,777} 594 (3,334) 433 (1,109) (527} (47,720}
Goodwill acquired (105} 27 - - - - (78)
Asset usage rights (29,470) - (3,052) - i3 21) (32,530)
Other (22,313) 141 (4,689) 11,203 2,433 (1,247) (14,472)
Total accumulated amortisation (285,911) 762 (34,351) 11,636 800 (4,294) (331,558)
Taotal impairment losses (Note 6) (37,882) - - - - - (37,882)
Total carrying amount 632,695 (376) (45,633) (2,631) 141 (381) 583,815
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2013 - Thousands of euros

Balance at 1 Changes in Additions or | . Changes in Balance at 31
the scope of Disposals or | Transfers exchange
January e charge for - 7 ) p December
2013 consolidation the year reductions (Note 7) rates an 2013
{(Note 2.b.e.4) other

Cost:
Administrative concessions 112,164 - - - - - 112,164
Patents, licences and trademarks 271,952 - 93 - 15 (50) 271,970
Administrative authorisations 259,910 - - - - - 259,910
Customer portfolio 139,501 - - - - - 139,501
Computer software 46,812 131 3,180 (156) 1,056 (1,091) 49,932
Goodwill acquired 9,334 - 3,211 - 9 (422) 12,132
Asset usage rights 72,960 - - - - - 72,960
Other 28,880 8 4,920 {13} 4,913 (789) 37,919
Total cost 941,513 139 11,404 (169) 5,993 (2,392) 956,488
Accumulated amortisation:
Administrative concessions (41,855} - (7,835} - - - (49,690)
Patents, licences and trademarks {46,827y - (13,432) (69} - 53 (60,273)
Administrative authorisations (17,523} - {13,734 - - - {33,257)
Customer portfolio {37.148) - (5,730 - - {148) {47,026)
Computer software (36,935) (132) (7,337) 115 (75) 587 (43,777)
Goodwill acquired (106) - - - - 1 (105)
Asset usage rights (25,9907 - (3.471) - 6] - (29,470)
Other (18,741) - {(2,888) (7 (1,377) 700 {22,313)
Total accumulated amortisation (225,125) (132) (60,427) 39 (1,461) 1,195 (285,91_1)'.
Total impairment losses (Note 6) - - (37,882) - - ) - (37,882)
Total carrying amount 716,388 7 (86,905) (130} 4,532 (1,197) 632,695
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Identification and measurement of infangible assets in business combinations

In 2014 the Group completed the process of measuring at fair value the assets and liabilities of Applus Velosi
OMS Co Ltd. and Testex Inspection LLC, acquired on 12 December 2013. The measurement of the assets and
liabilities did not disclose any intangible assets.

In 2014 the Group’s measurement at fair value of the assets and liabilities of the Ingelog Group, acquired on 29
October 2014, was being performed and the fair value of the assets and liabilittes acquired as part of the
aforementioned business combination was provisionally recognised.

In 2012 the Group's measurement at fair value of the assets and liabilities of Assinco - Assessoria, Inspecao e
Controle, Ltda., acquired on 9 June 2011, of BK Werkstofftechnik - Priifstelle Fiir Werkstoffe, GmbH., acquired
on 27 July 2011, and of Kiefner & Associates, Inc., acquired on 16 November 2011, was completed and the fair
value of the assets and liabilities acquired was definitively and retrospectively recognised. [n the measurement of
assets and liabilities intangible assets were identified amounting to EUR 5,577 thousand (EUR 3,796 thousand
net of the related tax effect at the date of valuation) relating to a customier portfolio, which are being amoertised
over 15 years,

Iin 2012, based on a valuation by an independent valuer, the Group carried out the assessment at fair value of the
assets and liabilities of the Velosi Group acquired on 20 December 2012. The measurement of the assets
acquired and liabifities assumed identified intangible assets valued at EUR 62,407 thousand (EUR 55,363
thousand net of the related tax effect) relating to the following;

Amount
(thousands

of europs)
Trademark 26,183
Customer portfolio 19,012
Trademark licence agreement 16,939
Databases 273
Total 62,407

in 2011 the Group's assessment of the assets and liabilities of Quality Inspection Services, [nc. acquired on 28
February 2010 and of Valley Industrial X-Ray ahd Inspection Services, Inc. acquired on 9 April 2010 was
completed and the goodwill generated on these acquisitions was definitively and retrospectively recognised. In
the measurement of assets and liabilities intangible assets were identified amounting to EUR 24,354 thousand
(EUR 17,048 thousand net of the related tax effect at the date of valuation) relating to a customer portfolio.

In 2008, based on a valuation by an independent expert, the assessment of the assets and liabilities acquired by
the Parent from the Applus Group on 29 November 2007 was completed and the fair value of the assets and
liabilities arising from the acquisition was definitively and retrospectively recognised. Assets of EUR 734,957
thousand {EUR 514,470 thousand net of the related tax effect at the date of valuation) were identified when
measuring the assets and liabilities.

The deferred taxes of such business combinations are calculated at a 28% for 2015 and at a 25% for the
remaining years (30% as at 31 December 2013, see Note 20), except for the deferred tax of Velosi Group. The
deferred tax of EUR 7,044 thousand arising from this combination amounts to 13% since the customer portfolio
relates mainly to Middle Eastern countries with a non-existent or very low tax rate, the frademark license
agreement relates mainly to the Malaysian company with a 25% tax rate and thé future taxation of the surplus
from the trademark relating to the Luxembourg-based Parent will only amount to 6%.
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The assets and liabilities identified in the four combinations referred to above are as follows:

Thousands of euros
31/12/14 31/12/13
Administrative authorisations 259,910 259,910
Applus and RTD trademarks 228,441 228,441
Administrative concessions 102,319 102,319
RTD customer portiolio 67,949 67,949
Rights of use 57,515 57,515
Quality and Valley customer portfolio 24,354 24,354
Velosi trademark 26,183 26,183
Velosi customer portfolio 19,012 19,012
UF Narcontrol contract 18,822 18,822
Velosi trademark licence agreement 16,939 16,939
Assinco, BKW and Kiefner customer portfolios 5,577 5,577
Velosi databases 273 273
Total allocation of goodwill to assets 827,294 827,294

The most significant assumptions used to measure at fair value the assets identified in the business
combinations were as follows:

¢« The income approach and specifically the multi-period excess eamings method, whereby the value of
the asset is the present value of the projected flows from that asset over the useful life assigned to the
related contract, was used to calculate the fair value of administrative authorisations.

* The royally relief method, whereby the value of the asset is the present value of future royalty income
from the use of the trademarks by the licensees, was used to calculate the value of the trademarks and
trademark licence agreements.

« The income approach and specifically the multi-period excess earnings methed, taking into account the
useful lives of the customers and the discounted revenue they account for, was used to calculate the
value of the customer portfolios.

= The income approach and specifically the multi-period excess earnings method, whereby the value of
the asset is the present value of the projected flows over the useful life assigned to the related contract,
was used to calculate the fair value of administrative concessions and rights of use. The possibility of
contract renewals for cash-generating units with finite lives was not considered.

The main intangible assets are therefore as follows:
- Administrative authorisations and concessions;

The administrative authorisations relate to vehicle roadworthiness testing services in Spain and abroad which the
Group manages under this name. The main administrative authorisations relate to Spain and Finland. In the case
of Spain, considering the opinion of the Group's advisers regarding the possible positioning of the Catalonia
Autonomous Community Government regarding the renewal of the administrative authorisation of that
Autonomous Community at finalization of the current established period, which concludes in 2035, management
decided in 2013 to start amortizing the cost of the autharisation over the 23 years remaining to maturity, until
2035. (See Note 27-b). In the case of Finland, although the administrative authorisation has an indefinite useful
life, it is estimated that the economic value of this authorisation will be recovered in ten years and, therefore, it is
being amortised over this period, up until 2020.

Administrative Concessions includes mainly the operating rights for vehicle roadworthiness testing facilities for a
specified period of time. At 31 December 2014, the Applus Group was managing various administrative
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concessions relating to vehicle roadworthiness testing services, mainly in the US, Spain (Alicante, Aragon, the
Basque Country and Menorca), Ireland, Argentina and Chile. These administrative concessions, which are
amortised on the basis of their useful life, expire on various dates from 2015 to 2023.

For the specific case of the cash-generating-units of Auto Spain and Auto USA, even though intangible assets
classified, on an individual basis, as concessions and administrative authorisations subject to impairment tests
measured individually {based on Autonomous Community in Spain, and on states in North America,
respectively}, the business synergies relating to the various concessions and authorisations in both countries are
also faken into account. In this regard, the goodwill is allocated to the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are independent of the cash inflows from other assets since, in the Applus +
Automotive segment, geographical tocation is taken into account as the main factor for determining CGUs, since
geographical areas involve the same applicable legislation and regulations in a regulated industry, a common
currency and macroeconomic variables that are closely linked to the capacity to generate economic flows and,
therefore, to growth capacity. In addition, all of the authorisations and concessions managed in the various
countries are unified under one single management. The purpose of this unified management is, inter alia, to
manage the various risks and relationships with regulators more efficiently and in a more coordinated manner.

With respect to the intangible assets, each of the concessions or authorisations is granted by means of a
concession tender process or regulatory resolution, the existence of a tender process or resolution being habitual
at Autonomous Community level in the case of Spain, or at a State level in the case of the United States.

- Patents, licences and trademarks:

"Patents, Licences and Trademarks" includes the Applus, RTD and Velosi trademarks and the Velosi trademark
licence agreement. The three trademarks are considered to have a finite useful life. The first two are being
amortised over 25 years while the Velosi trademark is being amortised over 10 years. The Velosi trademark
licence agreement is also being amortised over 10 years.

- Customer portfolio:
The customer portfolio relates to the value of the various contracts entered into by the various Group companies.

For the purposes of valuation, the probability of renewal and contract term were taken into account. The contracts
are being amortised over the estimated useful life thereof, as follows:

Years of
estimated
useful life

RTD Europe and Asia-Pacific customer portfolio 25
RTD US and Canada customer portfolio 15-25
Velosi customer portfolio 5
Laboratories Customer portfolio 15
Norconfrol Latam customer portfolio 15

- Asset usage rights:

These inciude mainly the carrying amounts of the usage rights transferred by Laboratori General d'Assaig i
Investigacid {(now the Catalonia Autonomous Community Government) on the incorporation of LGAI
Technological Center, S.A. and the carrying amount of the assets assigned by Institut d'investigacid Aplicada de
FAutomdbil (now Empresa de Promocid i Localitzacio Industrial de Catalunya (AVANCSA)) to |diada Automotive
Technology, S.A., relating basically to machinery and other fixtures. These usage rights are amortised over the
shorter of the useful life of the assets and the estimated useful life of the licensing agreements, which last until
2024 (IDIADA) and 2033 {Laboratories).
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Intangible assets by cash-generating unit

The detail, by cash-generating unit, of the intangible assets at year end 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

2014 - Thousands of Euros

e | S | ey | Ve | " and | uava | egeotol | 1005 | nda o [ e | Noms | A | o | o
anada Pacific
Cost:
Administrative concessions 94,102 - - - - - 182 - - 17,880 - - - 112,164
fﬁ:ﬁ;ﬁgﬂnces and 18598 | 89,550 wiae | w22 220 12,204 40,096 8772 15,448 6,361 - - 195 | 272732
Administrative authorisations 165,985 - 93,925 - - - - - - - - - - 259,910
Customer portfolio - 41,532 - 19,012 47,718 - 18,822 4,142 8,119 - 598 - - 139,943
Computer software 3,275 5,934 13 2,178 651 4567 6,175 3,212 254 7,524 1,832 1,962 18,118 55,695
Goodwill acquired - 111 768 - 3,555 3,538 1,381 265 - - - 66 - 2,685
Asset usage rights 1.241 - - - - 36,729 3 34,987 - B - - - 72,960
Other 702 10,084 353 273 - 14,73 3,387 1,699 - 990 4 241 - 30,166
Total cost 283,903 | 147211 | 105204 64,585 0,134 68,861 70,046 | 53,077 23,813 32,755 2,434 2069 | 18263 | 953,258
Accumulated amortisation:
Administrative concessions (49,193) - - - - - (182) - - (9,290) - - - (58,665)
g‘;;e:;f;r]i:e“ws and s | s | esim| een| cen]| o] ouwsem] s was| s - - e | 3,199
Administrative authorisations (12,447} - (35,648) - - - - - - - - - - (49,095)
Customer portfolio and other - (11,767} - {7,50%) | (14,218) - (18,822) (951) (2,300) - {138) - - (55,799)
Computer software (2,881) (5,201} amn £1,454) (453) 3,297 GAI9 [ @519 (205) (6,097 (1,382) 0,003y | 16880y | (47,720)
Goodwill acquired - - - - - - {7 o) . - - - - 78
Asset usage rights {1,196) - - - - (11,826) {3)| {19,505) - - - - - {32,530)
Other @nl 60 (i49) (109) - (6,610) wron | a4 - (610) m - - (14,472)
:&t::g;:;::l“lated o226 | wsasn| eeen | anmnl| ezesn| essy|  enon| ceswm] e | arssn|  wsmy|  asen | anen| easss
Total net valae @050 | 6,749 (8,115) - - - - - - (5,972) - - - (37.882)
Total carrying amount 204,606 85,301 58,474 46,793 57,472 43,630 32316 | 26,169 16,933 8,901 913 1,066 1241 | 583,815
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2013 — Thousands of Euros
RTDUS RTD
Auto RTD Auo | veog | ang | IDIADA | Norontiol | Laborat § o na | Auous | Noreowrel [ Ao gl peta
Spain Europe Finland Spain oties P Latam Denmark
Canada Pacific
Cost:
Admmx;tratlve 94,102 . . N - 182 - “ 17,480 - - - 112,164
concessions
Pateats, licences and gsos b se3es| 10162  aim|  msamwef|  1zam s0006 | 3772 15890 5,759 2| e
trademarks
Admlq]sqat:ve 165,985 R 03,925 B B _ . . R R 159,910
autherisations
Customer porttfolio - 41,532 - 19,012 47276 - 18,822 4,142 8,119 - 508 - - 139,501
Computer software 3,104 5,654 25 321 535 3,847 6,364 3,161 207 5,343 1,617 1,899 17,855 49,932
Goodwill acquired 112 3,385 3,540 3,211 1,553 266 - - - 65 - 12,132
Asset usage rights 1,241 - - - - 36,729 3] 34,987 - - - - 72,968
Other 544 6,914 241 273 - 10,132 3,230 2,002 - 13,718 4 861 - 37,919
Total cost 283,574 | 143,607 | 107,738 62,728 79,561 66,193 70,250 | 53,330 23,766 42,700 2,219 2,825 17,997 956,488
Accumulated
amortisation:
Administrative
) 40,760 . - - - - 152 - - 8,748 - - - 49,690
concessions ¢ ) {182) @ ) (45,690)
Fatents, licences and
> 4,531 21,754 2,467 4312 5,864 08 5,913 2,135 3,757 1,412 - . 141 60,273
trademarks @3] } (2,467) (4312) (6,864) (2.987) (8.913)| (2,135) (3,757) (1,412) (141 ( )
Administrative
o 6,184 - 27,073 - - - - - - - - “ 33,257
authorisations (6.184) ¢ ) (33,257)
oCtLl:i[;Jmer portfolio and y (10,196) . o800 | (1,547 - s | @ 0979 - (68) - 47.,026)
Computer software (2,711) (4,993) ) (246) (3203 (2,830 (5367 | (2,486) (170) (5,339) (1,428) (1,829 | (16,052 (43,777
Goodwilt acquired - - - - (9%) 6] - - - - {105)
Assset usage rights (1,172) - B - - {10,156) 3| (18,139 - - - - - (29,470)
Other (195) (2,547} (21) (53) - (5,365) (1,190 (1,242) (11,634) @) - - (22,313)
Total accumulated 65553 | @%am | een | esas| wmn| @sm| ossis | easgl  Ess | @73 asm | asz29 ] asm| s
amortisation
Total net value {7,051y | (16,744) (8,115) - . - - - - (5.972) - - - (37,882)
Total Carrying amount 220,970 87,463 69,996 54,313 60,330 44,855 34,675 28,646 17,863 9,595 G689 956 1,804 §32,695

Additionally, note the correction made to 2013 figures, modifying the classification of intangible assets among the
various subheadings and among the various cash-generating units with no impact on the total baiance of the
aforementioned heading (see Note 2.a.b), nor in the assets identified in the business combinations.

In 2014, the amortisation charge associated with the aforementioned revalued assets recognised in the
accompanying consolidated income statement amounted to EUR 45,320 thousand (2013; EUR 48,232
thousand).

Impairment of intangible assets

The main assumptions used in the impairment tests are detailed in Note 6.

Other matters

At 31 December 2014, fully amortised intangible assets in use amounted to EUR 42,190 thousand (31 December
2013: EUR 38,925 thousand). The Group did not have any temporarily idle items at 31 December 2014 or 2013.
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had no material firm intangible asset purchase commitments.

Certain Group companies have intangible assets that must be handed over to the Government at the end of the
related concession ferms. The deiaii of the carrying amouni of the assets subject to reversion at 31 December
2014 and 2013 is as follows:
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2014 - Thousands of euros

Accumulated
Gross cost | amortisation/ Net cost
provisions
Applus Iteuve Euskadi, S.A.U. 996 (952) 44
LGAI Technological Center, S.A. 14.200 {13.842) 358
Total 15.196 (14.794) 402

2013 - Thousands of euros

Accumulated
Gross cost | amortisation/ Net cost
provisions
Applus Iteuve Euskadi, S.A.U. 996 (927) 69
LGAI Technological Center, S.A. 14,200 (13,275) 925
Total 15,196 (14,202) 994

Impairment of assets

The Parent's management reviews the business performance by business type and geographical area. As a
result of these tests, no impairment losses have been recognised in 2014 (2013: EUR 119,187 thousand, which
relate to the following line items):

2014 2013
Goodwill - 81,285
Intangible assets - 37,882
Impairment losses - 119,167
Deferred tax - (11,363)
Total - 107,804
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The detail of the impairment recognised, by cash-generating unit and geographical area, is as follows:

By cash-generating unit-

Thousands of euros
2014 2013
Norcontrol Spain - 11,370
Auto Finland - 52,782
Auto US - 17,133
Total impairment of goodwill - 81,285
Auto Finland - 8,115
Auto US - 5,972
RTD Europe , - 16,744
Auto Spain _ - 7,051
Total impairment of intangible assets _ - 37,882
Total impairment losses _ - 119,167
By geographical area-
2014 2013
Spain - 18,421
Rest of Europe - 77,641
LS and Canada - 23,105
Total - 119,167

Impairment test assumptions

The key assumptions to determining value in use that were used to test for impairment were as follows:

a)

b)

Perpetuity growth rate:

To perpetuity it was considered that the cash flows generated by each asset grow at a rate equal to the
growth of each industry in the geographical area in which it operates (see following table).

The growth forecast in each industry in the geographical area in which the Group operates is estimated to be
very similar to the growth rate expected in that area as the industries in which the Group operates are the
most representative core industries in each area and largely determine their performance; the data were
obtained from the long-term inflation projections published by the Economist Intelligence Unit.

Discount rate:

The discount rates were calculated using the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) measured after tax
based on the following assumptions:

- The time value of money or risk-free interest rate of each couniry or geographical area (weighted average

of the main countries where the Group operates in these geographical areas) relates to the return on ten-
year sovereigh bonds in the related country (cr the average of the geographical area).
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- The estimated risk premium based on the estimated betas for comparable companies in the industry and a
market risk premium for each country, which are observable variables, after tax.

- The average financing structure and conditions for comparable companies in the industry.

The detail of the discount rate (WACC) and of the perpetuity growth rate in 2014 and 2013, by business and

geographical area is as follows:

- By business:
2014
. Discount rate Dichunt ra.te
Business Discount rate before tax after tax cor‘ls1dered in
(WACC) calculating the terminal
(WACC)
value (g)
Auto 8.8%-10.9% 6.8%-7.6% 1.1%-2.2%
RTD 10.5%-12.4% 8.0%-8.4% 1.5%-2.5%
Velosi 12.0% 9.7% 2.0%
Norcontrol 8.1%-15.7% 6.7% - 11.8% 1.1%-3%
Laboratories 8.1% 6.4%. 1.1%
Idiada 10.5% 8.0% 1.1%
2013
Discount rate Discount rate Discount rate considered
Business before tax after tax in calculating the
(WACC) (WACC) terminal value (g)
Auto 9.8%-11.6% 6.9%-7.9% 1.8%-2.5%
RTD 10.9%-11.4% 8.0%-8.4% 2.0%-2.6%
Velosi 11.1% 9.5% 2.50%
Norcontrol 11.3%-18.3% 8.0%-13.7% 1.8%-5.0%
Laboratories 9.6% 7.4% 1.8%
Idiada 11.9% 8.9% 1.8%
- Country/geographical area:
2014
Discount rate Discount rate D}sc?unt raFe
Country/geographical area: before tax after tax conslde'red n
(WACC) (WACC) cals:ulatmg the
terminal value (g)
Spain 8.1%-9.0% 6.7%-7.0% 1.1%
Rest of Europe 8.8%6-11.0% 7.4%-8.4% 1.5%-2.2%
US and Canada 10.9%-12.4% 7.0%-8.1% 2.0%
Latin America 15.7% 11.8% 3.0%
Asia and Pacific 10.5% 8.0% 2.5%
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2013

Discount rate Discount rate Discount rate considered

before tax after tax in calculating the
Couniry/geographical area: {WACC) (WACC) terminal value (g)
Spain 10.5%-11.3% 7.6%-8% 1.80%
Rest of Furope 9.8%-11.0% 7.4%-8.4% 1.8%-2.1%
US and Canada 11.4%-11.6% 6.9%-8.0% 2.5%
Latin America 18.3% 13.7% 5.0%
Asia and Pacific 10.9% 8.4% 2.6%

¢) Five-year Ebitda projections:

Applus Group management prepares and updates @ business plan by geographical market and line of
business. The main components of this plan are projectiofis on operating income and expenses, investments
and working capital. The business plan prepared by the management includes the 2015 budget approved by
the Board of Directors of the Parent together with the projections for 2016-2019.

In order to calculate the recoverable amount of each asset the present value of its cash flows was
determined using the budget and the business plan for 2015-2019 prepared by the Parent’s management.

The business plan and, consequently, the projections were prepared on the basis of past experience and on
the best estimates available. Consequently, the forecast increases in sales and margins reflect a continuity
of the increases in activity seén in recent years at the various businesses while also considering the best
estimates avaifable on the developments expected in the industries in which the Applus Group is present.

d) Capex, working capital, corporate income tax and other agsumptions:

The only investments in assets taken into account in the projections were those involving maintenance of the
present assets.

The working capital considered in the projections is a percentage of sales that is consistent with the historical
figure for the last three years without, in any circumstances, taking into account any significant improvements
therein.

The financial projections took into account the payment of cofporate income tax (or the equivalent tax in
each country). In the case of Spain a tax rate of 28% was considered for 2015 and 25% for 2016 and
subsequent periods (see Note 20.5).

Justification of key assumptions

As mentioned in Note 1, the Group's main activity is the provision of services by its professional staff The
Business Plan prepared by management and approved by the Board of Directors is based on a detailed sales
plan broken down mainly by industry, geographical area and customer. Due to the specific nature of the Group,
the existence of multiproducts and multiservices, multiple industries and geographical areas, as well as very
diverse customers in certain cases, the Group considers Ebitda to be the main key business assumption and
management variable. As a result, this variable is the maih aggregate used by the Directors to monitor the
business.

In the past four years, the global variances between the actual EBITDA figures and the budgeted figures were
positive. The negative variances that arose per individual business did not exceed 10%. Therefore, a sensitivity
analysis was performed, combining changes of +/- 5% and +/- 10% in Ebitda.

in addition, sensiiivity to changes in the perpefuity growih rate and changes in the discount rate were taken into
account. See below,

41



Sensitivity analysis

if the recoverable amounts calculated based on the values in use were subject to an analysis of the sensitivity
of changes in the different variables; the discount rate ("WACC™)}, the perpetual growth rate (“g") or the cash
flow projections (Ebitda), the changes, by cash-generating unit, in the Group's consolidated income statement
({excluding the tax effect} would be as follows:

a) Change in discount rate (WACCQC) after tax of 0.5 or 1.0 points (thousands of euros):

-1.0 WACC -0.5 WACC | Cash-generating unit | +0.5 WACC | +1.0 WACC

4,325 4,118 | Auto Spain - -

- Auto Denmark - -

6,834 4,037 | Auto Finland (3,356) (6,192)

- - RTD Eurape (%) - (10,092)

- - Velosi - -

- - RTD US and Canada - -

- - Idiada - -

- - Norcontrol Spain - -

- - Laboratories - -

- - RTD Asia and Pacific - -
2,199 2,105} Auto US - -

- Norcontrol Latam - -

13,358 10,2601 TOTAL {3,356) (16,284)

b} Change in the perpetuity growth rate {g) of 0.2 or 0.8 points (thousands of euros):

+0.89 +0.2 g Cash-generating unit {2g -08g

- - Auto Spain - -
- - Autc Denmark - -
5,878 1,301 [ Auto Finland {1,208} (4,369)
- - RTD Europe(*) - -
- - Velosi w -
- - RTD US and Canada - -
- - idiada - -
- - Norcontrol Spain - “
- - Laboratories - -
- - RTD Asia and Pacific - -
- - Auto US - -
- - Norcontrol Latam - -
5878 1,301 TOTAL {1,208) {4,369)
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¢) Change in EBITDA of 5% or 10% (thousands of euros)

+10% Ebitda

+5% Ebitda

Cash-generating unit

-5% Ebitda

-10% Ebitda

4,877

4,368

2.587

4,398

2,184

2,102

Auto Spain

Auto Denmark

Auto Finland

RTD Europe(*)
Velosi

RTD US and Canada
ldiada

Norcontrol Spain
Laboratories

RTD Asia and Pacific
Auto US

Norcontrol Latam

(—4,367)
(13,031)

11,832

8,684

TOTAL

(_2,1 83)

(17.398)

("} The impairment disciosed at the RTD Europa CGU in 2013 related to the trademark and,
therefore, although there are minor variances in WACC, g and Ebitda, they would not give
rise to additional impairment since the fair value of the trademark is calculated based on a
percentage of revenue.

The combined effect of these sensitivities would be similar to the aggregation of the net individual effects, except
for the positive effects of applying the intangible asset impairment charge, which would only be reversed up to the

limit of the amount recognised.

For the carrying amount to equal the recoverable amount, the extent of the impairment. arising from reductions in
the percentage of EBITDA, WACC after tax and the perpetuity rate of return with respect to the cash-generating
units that were not impaired in the sensitivity test previously performed, would be as follows:

Ebitda reduction | WACC after tax Perpetuity rate
which would which would of return (g)
Cash-generating unit give rise to give rise to which would
impairment impairment give rise to
impairment
Auto Spain 24 5% 9.4% <0
Auto Denmark 19.6% 9.6% <0
Velosi 58.2% 24.1% <0
RTD US and Canada 23.8% 11.4% <0
Idiada 47.4% 18.8% <0
Lahoratories 16.7% 8.2% <0
RTD Asia and Pacific 10.6% 9.1% 0.8%
Norcontrol Latam 28.9% 19.2% <0
Auto US 16.3% 8.7% <0
Auto Finland 4.2% 7.8% 1.9%
RTD Europe 5.9% 9.0% 0.6%
Norcontrol Spain 25.0% 9.9% <0

The Parent's Directors consider that, in view of the current margins, any possible negative outcome of the
lawsuits filed against Auto Spain (especially those referring to authorisations in Catalonia see Note 27-b) would
not significantly affect the impairment of the net assets associated with the aforementioned cash-generating unit.
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7. Property, plant and equipment

The changes in 2014 and 2013 in the various property, plant and equipment accounts and in the related
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses were as follows:

2014 - Thousands of euros

Balance at | PO | A qditions | Changes in | o) once at
1 January the scope ‘of or charge Disposa_ﬂs or| Transfers exchange 31 December
2014 consolidation for the year reductions (Note 3) rates and 2014
(Note 2.b.e.1) other
Cost:
Land and buildings 134,371 902) 5,138 (351} 1,505 3,865 143,626
Plant and machinery 229,436 (5,005) 17,750 (37,646) 1,712 7,454 213,701
Other fixtures, tools and furniture 61,849 (2,473) 3,974 450 540 526 63,965
Other items of property, plant and equipment 67,616 1,264 5,089 (7,462) (1,131) 3,712 69,088
Advances and pro; i i
Advances and propery,| plant and equipment in 3,909 (39) 6,958 (532) 2,972) 25 7,349
Grants (646) - - 206 - - (440)
Total cost 496,535 (7,155) 38,909 (46,236) (346) 15,582 497,289
Accumulated depreciation:
Land and buildings (45,559) 638 {4,453) 164 67 717y (49,860)
Plant and machinery (153,714) 3,311 (20,139 37,255 108 (5,925} {139,104)
Other fixtures, tools and furniture (46,070 1,696 (3,667) 381 9 (406} (48,057)
Orther items of property, plant and equipment (60,045) (447 (8,506) 6,828 21 (2,795) (64,944)
Totaf accumulated depreciation (305,388) 5198 (36,765) 44,628 205 (9,843) (301,965)
Provision {1,697) - 457 978 - - (1,176)
Total net value 189,450 (1,957) 1,687 {630} (141) 5,739 194,148
2013 - Thousands of euros
Balanceat | CHanges in Additions . Changes in Balance at
1 Tanuary the scope pf or charse Dlspose}]s or | Transfers exchange 3] December
2013 consolidation for the year reductions {Note 5) rates and 2013
(Note 2.b.e.4) other

Cost:
Land and buildings 136,183 932 1,454 (1,936) 534 (2,796} 134,371
Plant and machinery 215,412 865 24,397 (10,682) 2,783 (3,539} 229436
Other fixtures, tools and furniture 73,759 43 5,273 (1,903) 216 (15,539} 61,849
Other items of property, plant and equipment 61,258 391 3,852 {3,062) 483 5,660 67,616
g‘i":;ffsi i‘}“cgg‘;ﬂiﬁo plant and equipment in 7,601 ; 5,802 (408) (9,043) (43) 3,909
Grants (1,197) - 114 437 - - (646)
Total cost 493,216 2,231 40,892 (17,554) (5,993) (16,257} 496,335
Accumulated depreciation:
Land and buildings (42,253) (743) (4,789) 1,058 308 860 (45,559)
Plant and machinery (151,904) (699) {20,583) 10,246 1,292 7,934 (153,714)
Other fixtures, tools and furniture (44,120) 4 (3,596) 1,392 (7N 321 (46,070)
Other items of property, plant and equipment (56,681) (327 (8,223) 2,889 (68) 2,365 (60,045)
Total accumulated depreciation (294,958) (1,765) (37,191) 15,585 1,461 11,480 (305,388)
Provision (1,692) - {5) - - - {1,697)
Total net value 196,566 466 3,696 {1,969} (4,532) (4,777) 189,450




In 2014 the additions related basically to plant and machinery amounting to EUR 17,750 thousand (24,347
thousand for 2013), which were acquired in the course of the Group’s normal operations.

The disposals of plant and machinery relate mainly to fully depreciated US assets associated with concessions
due and, therefore, they have become obsolete and have been eliminated from the consoclidated balance sheet.

The changes in exchange rates gave rise to a positive impact on the cost of the assets (adverse in prior yean),
which was due mainly to changes in the exchange rates of the US dollar, the Sterling Pound, the Canadian
dollar and the Australian dollar.

The gross value of fully depreciated items of property, plant and equipment in use at 31 December 2014
amounted to EUR 147,924 thousand (31 December 2013: EUR 119,100 thousand). The Group did not have any
temporarily idle items at 31 December 2014 or 2013.

The Group has taken out insurance policies to cover the possible risks to which its property, plant and equipment
are subject and the claims that might be filed against it for carrying on its business activities. These policies are
considered to adequately cover the related risks.

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group did not have any significant. finm property, plant and equipment
purchase commitments.

No borrowing costs had been capitalised to property, plant and equipment at the end of 2014 and 2013 and fno
disbursements made or advances granted at 31 December 2014 or 2013.

Certain Group companies have property, plant and equipment items that must be handed over to the
Government at the end of the related concession term. The detail of the carrying amount of the assets subject to
reversion at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

. 2014 - Thousands of euros

Accumulated
Gross cost dgpre(}latlon/ Carrying
Impairment amount
losses
Applus Iteuve Technology, S.L.U. 41,377 (36,474) 4,903
Idiada Automotive Technology, S.A. 34,690 (20,140) 14,550
Applus Fteuve Euskadi, S.A.U. 2,429 (1,715) 714
Total ' 78,496 (58,329) 20,167

2013 - Thousands of euros

Accuomulated
Gross cost deprec_:lation/ Carrying
Impalrment amount
losses

Applus Iteuve Technology, S.L.U. 40,644 (35,025) 5,619
Idiada Automotive Technology, S.A. 30,905 (18,334) 12,571
Applus Tteuve Euskadi, S.AU. 2,470 (1,676) 794
Total 74,019 (55,035) 18,984
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The detail of the items of property, plant and equipment located outside Spain at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is

as follows:
Thousands of euros
31/12/14 31/12/13

Cost:

Land and buildings 75,834 68,341
Plant and machinery 97,080 116,181
Other fixtures, tools and furniture 11,426 9,258
Other items of property, plant and equipment 49,949 53,664
Advances and property, plant and equipment in 890 502
the course of construction : _
Total cost 237,109 247,946
Accumulated depreciation (128,529) (143,128)
Total carrying amount 108,580 104,818

The detail of the main assets held by the Group under finance leases at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as

follows:
2014 - Thousands of euros
Average Average [ Original Lease
Jease teym]| PUmber cost payraents paid Lease Value of
(years) of years | including Pei payments 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | Remainder | purchase
elapsed | purchase HOF 4 2014 | outstanding option
option years
Plant and machinery 3 2 1,374 91 185 218 113 98 7 - - -
Furniture 3 1 20t 51 62 88 73 15 - - - -
Computer hardware 3 1 2,880 1,672 910 298 298 - - - - -
Transport equipment 4 2 15,050 7,002 3,459 44991 26221 1,597 235 34 11 -
Other items of property, 3 ) 15 15 0 ) . } } } } -
plant and equipment _
Total assets held under finance lease 19,520 2,801 | 4616 5103| 3,106| 1,710 242 34 11 -
2013 - Thousands of euros
Average Average | Original Lease
lease term rumber cost payments paid Lease Value of
(years) of years | including Prior payments 2014 | 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | Remainder |purchase
elapsed | purchase 2013 | outstanding option
option years

Plant and machinery 4 2 1,370 847 245 251 186 77 15 - - 27
Computer hardware 3 1 2,011 614 894 1,103 836 267 - - - -
Transport equipment 4 2 13,206 3,817 3,006 6,383 | 2,843 2,145] 1,277 109 9 -
Other items qf property, 3 1 15 9 6 N ) . ) ) ) )
plant and equipment
Total assets held under finance lease 17,202 5,287 | 4,151 7,737 | 3,865| 2,489 1,292 109 9 27

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, no significant property, plant and equipment were subject to restrictions or

pledged as security for liabilities.
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8.

Non-current financial assets

The changes in the various non-current financial asset accounts in 2014 and 2013 were as foliows:

_ 2014 - Thousands of euros
Balance at | Additions or Translation Balance at
1 January charge for Disposals differences 31 December
2014 the year 2014
Investments in other companies 5,897 2,255 (3,510) 541 5,183
Fixed-income securities 10 - (10) - -
Non-current receivables 1,309 NE {1,200} an 865
Deposits and guarantees 7,281 1,241 (1,305) 57 7,274
Impairment losses {666) - 66 - (600)
Total 13,831 4,269 (5,959) 581 12,722
2013 - Thousands of euros
Balance at | Additions or Translation Balance at
1 Jamnary | charge for the | Disposals differences 31 December
2013 year 2013

Investments in other companies 4,705 2,493 (1,143) (158) 5,897
Fixed-income securities 10 - - 10
Norni-current receivables 1,248 253 (172) (20) 1,309
Deposits and guarantees 7,868 2,067 (2,567) (87) 7,281
Impairment losses {668) 2 - (666)
Total 13,163 4,813 (3,880) (265) 13,831

Investments in other companies

in 2014 the Group recognised additions under “Investments in other companies™ relating to the effect of
associates. accounted for using the equity method earning profits of EUR 2,255 thousand in 2014 (2013: EUR

2,493 thousand).

The main financial information on "Investments in Other Companies” at the end of 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

2014 - Thousands of Euros
. Kurtec Kurtec
. Velosi I I
Velosi Pipeline Pipeline
(B) Sdn . ; Total
LLC Bhd Services Services,
Ltd. LILC
Country Oman Brunei |Luxembourg| UAE
Percentage of ownership 50% 50% 45% 45%
Non-current assets 1,797 282 33 (576) 1,536
Current assets 15,199 3,720 - (303) 18,614
Liabilities {11,311} (1,475) 66 3,611 (9,109)
Net assets 5,685 2,527 99 2,730 11,041
Revenue 31,672 4,822 - 10 36,504
Profit (Loss) after tax 2,661 1,851 (11) (1,797) 2,704
Yalue of the investment 2,965 1,289 - - 4,254
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20113 — Thousands of Euros
Velosi Velosi 5 urltfec PKHIFC
elosi ipeline ipeline
LLC (Blgffn Se?vices Sefvices, Total
Ltd. LLC
Country Oman Brunei |Luxembourg| UAE
Percentage of ownership 50% 50% 45% 45%
Non-current assets 1,826 175 30 726 2,757
Current assets 13,393 1,465 - 1,141 15,999
Liabilities (6,168) (1,065) (49) (4,196)| (11,478)
Net assets 9,051 575 (19) (2,329) 7,278
Revenue 29,717 3,149 - 861 33,727
Profit (Loss) after tax 4,773 213 (7) (764) 4,215
Value of the investment 4,531 280 - - 4,811

Deposits and guarantees

At 31 December 2014, “Deposits and Guarantees” included EUR 4 million (2013: EUR 3.4 million) relating to
restricted cash deposits to secure certain contracts entered into.

. __Inventories

The detail of the Group's inventories at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:;

Thousands of euros
31/12/14 | 31/12/13

Goods held for resale 7,274 6,631
Raw materials and other supplies 604 635
Total inventories 7,878 7,266

These inventories relate mainly to x-ray material used in non-destructive testing by the RTD subgroup: reagents,
fungibles and chemical compounds used in [aboratory or field tests by the Laboratories subgroup and spare parts
and items used at the inspection centres of the automotive division.

Obsolete, defective or slow-moving inventories were reduced to realisable value.
The inventories will be realised in less than twelve months.

The Group did not recognise any inventory write-downs since inventories are derecognised when they are found
to be defective or obsolete.
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10. Trade receivables for sales and services, trade receivables from related companies and other receivables

The detait of these current asset headings in the accormpanying consolidated balance sheets at 31 December
2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Thousands of euros
31/12/14 31/12/13
Trade receivables for sales and services 329,686 319,762
Work in progress 56,469 55,958
Write-downs (22,635) (20,025)
Trade receivables for sales and services _363,520' 355,695
Trade receivables from related companies (Note 28) 8,351 4,198
Other receivables 20,623 17,742
Other accounts receivable from public authorities 9522 10,203
Total trade and other receivables 402,016 387,838

The Group's average collection period for services rendered was 53 days in 2014 (2013: 54 days).

The Group does not charge interest on receivables maturing within one year. The fair value and the nominal
value of these assets do not differ significantly.

The detail of the age of the debt under "Trade Receivables for Sales and Services" is as follows:

Thousands of euros

31/12/14 31/12/13
Not past-due 216,005 213,368
0-30 days 43,449 46,792
31-90 days 25,130 24,119
91-180 days 14,819 11,858
181-360 days 13,310 9,107
More than 360 days _ 16,973 14,518
Total trade receivables for sales and services 329,686 319,762
Provision for doubtful debts (22,635) (20,025)
Tota_l trade receivables for sales and 307,051 299,737
services, net

"Woark in progress” relates to the valuation at the selling price of completed units of output not yet billed to
customers or certified, for which Group management considers that there is reasonable assurance of their being
ultimately certified (see Note 3-g).

The Directors of the Parent consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their
fair value.

The Group has established a custorner acceptance policy based on the periodic evaluation of liquidity and
solvency risks and the establishment of credit limits for its debtors.
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11.

Credit risk

The Group's main financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and investments,
which represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

The Group's credit risk is therefore mainly atiributable to its trade receivables. The amounis presented in the
consolidated balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful debts, estimated by Group management based on
prior experience and its assessment of the current economic environment.

The Group does not have a significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
customers, business lines, markets and geographical areas.

However, the Group’s financial management considers credit risk to be key to day-to-day management of the
business and focuses its efforts on controlling and supervising receivables and doubtful debts, particularly in the
industries with a higher risk of insolvency. In 2014 and 2013 particular attention was paid to monitoring and
recovering past-due receivables and a detailed analysis of customers with associated insolvency or default risks
was performed.

The Group has established a customer acceptance policy based on the periodic evaluation of liquidity and
solvency risks and the establishment of credit limits for its debtors. The Group also periodically analyses the age
of its trade receivables in order to cover possible bad debts.

The changes in 2014 and 2013 in the allowance for doubtiul debts were as follows:

Thousands
of euros
Balance at 1 January 2013 22,664
Additions 8,890
Amounts used (7,284)
Disposals (3,670)
Effect of exchange rate changes {575)
Balance at 31 December 2013 20,025
Additions 7,072
Amounts used (2,023)
Disposals (3,478)
Effect of exchange rate changes 1,039
Balance at 31 December 2014 22,635

In 2014 the Group derecognised EUR 3,478 thousand of provisioned accounts receivable (2013: EUR 3,670
thousand) since they were considered to be uncollectible.

Current financial assets, cash and cash_equivalents

Currentt financial assels

At 31 December 2014, the amount included short-term deposits and guarantees amounting to EUR 4,512
thousand (31 December 2013: EUR 2,444 thousand) and other financial assets of EUR 13 thousand (31
December 2013: EUR 404 thousand).

Cash and cash equivalents

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the amount classified as "Cash and Cash Equivalents” in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet retated in full to cash, except for EUR 4,015 thousand (2013: EUR 1,658 thousand)
that related to five deposits with a term of less than three months.
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12. Equity

The changes in 2014 and 2013 in “Equity” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets were as follows:

Thousands of euros
2014 2013
Beginning balance 323,249 390,399
Share capital and share premium increases:
Capital reduction with a charge to reserves (645,030) -
Capital increases and share premium 300,000 -
Conversion of participating loan - 106,832
Treasury shares (5,407) -
Capital increase expenses (5,683) -
Changes in reserves 646.685 214
Changes in foreign currency {ranslation reserve (8,010) (8,912)
Adjustments due to the re-measurement of derivatives - 4,882
Consolidated net profit/loss for the year 23,831 (170,079)
Changes in non-controlling interests 4,008 (87)
Balance at 31 December 633,643 323,249

a} Share capital and share premium

The Parent was incorporated on 5 July 2007 with a share capital of EUR 3,100, divided into 3,100 equal,
cumulative and indivisible shares of EUR 1 par value each, fully subscribed and paid by Azul Holding, 5.C.A.

On 29 November 2007, the Parent increased share capital by EUR 12,312,500 through the issuance of
12,312,500 shares of EUR 1 par value each with a share premium of EUR 110,812,500, i.e. EUR 9 per share.
The shares and the share premium were fully subscribed and paid by the sole shareholder at that date, Azul
Helding, S.C.A., through a monetary contribution. Transfer tax on the capital increase amounted to EUR
1,231,250 and was recognised as a deduction from share capital.

On 29 December 2011, the Parent increased its share capital by EUR 20,000 thousand through the issuance
of 20 million new shares of EUR 1 par value each with a share premium of EUR 180,000 thousand, i.e. EUR
9 per share. This capilal increase was carried out through the non-monetary contribution of a portion of the
participating loan that Azul Finance, 8.4 r.l. had granted to the Parent. The value of the amount of the
aforementioned loan converted into capital corresponds to its fair value, on the basis of reports prepared by
independent valuers and, therefore, this transaction did not have any impact on the consoclidated income
statement.

On 20 December 2012, the shareholders increased the Parent's share capital by EUR 238,765 thousand
through the issuance of 238,764,894 shares of EUR 1 par value each with a share premium of EUR 7,235
thousand, i.e. EUR 0.0303033 per share. Both the shares and the share premium were fully subscribed and
paid by Azul Holding, S.C.A. through the non-monetary contribution of the shares representing all of the share
capital of Azul Holding 2 S.a r.|. valued at EUR 246,000 thousand.

The aforementioned non-monetary contribution qualified for taxation under the special tax regime for
mergers, spin-offs, asset contributions, security exchanges and changes of registered office of a European
Company or a European Cooperative Society from one EU Member State to another provided for in Chapter
VIIl of Title VIl of Legislative Royal-Decree 4/2004, of 5 March, approving the Consolidated $panish
Corporation Tax Law, as a security exchange defined in Articles 83.5 and 87. All of the information relating to
this process is disclosed in the separate financial statement of the Parent in such year.

On 21 December 2012, the Parent increased share capital by EUR 330,875 thousand through the issuance of
330,975,863 new shares of EUR 1 par value each with a share premium of EUR 10,028 thousand, i.e. EUR
0.0303033 per share. This capital increase was cairied out through the non-monetary contribution of a portion

of the participating loan that Azul Finance, S.a r.l. had granted to the Parent. The value of the amount of the
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aforementioned loan converted inte capital was its fair value, on the basis of reports prepared by independent
valuers and, therefore, this transaction did not have any impact on the consolidated income statement.

On 20 December 2013, the Parent increased share capital by EUR 53,906 thousand through the issuance of
53,906,285 new shares of EUR 1 par value each with a share premium of EUR 52,926 thousand, i.e. EUR
0.9818 per share. This capital increase was carried out by converting into capital the outstanding amount of
EUR 108,832 thousand of the participating loan that Azul Finance, S.a r.l. had granted io the Company. The
value of the amount of the aforementioned loan converted into capital was its fair value on the basis of reports
prepared by independent valuers and, therefore, this transaction did not have any impact on the consolidated
income statement.

At 31 December 2013, the share capital amounted to EUR 655,962,642 (31 December 2012: EUR
602,056,357) and was represented by 655,962,642 fully subscribed and paid indivisible and cumulative
shares of EUR 1 par value each, numbered sequentially from 1 to 655,962,642, inclusive, less the associated
expenses of EUR 1,231,250 incurred in the 2007 transaction.

On 4 April 2014, the shareholders at the Parent's Annual General Meeting resolved unanimously to reduce
capital by EUR 645,029,932 through the redemption and writing-off of ordinary shares of EUR 1 par value
each of which 398,112,474 were held by Azul Finance, S.a ri. and 248,917 458 by Azul Holding, S.C.A,,
respectively, with a charge to voluntary reserves. Also, on that sale date the Parent's Annual General Meeting
resolved unanimously to reduce the par value of each outstanding share to EUR 0.10, leaving the share
capital at EUR 10,232,710 represented by 109,327,100 shares.

On 7 May 2014, the Board of Directors, acting under powers delegated from the Parent’s General Meeting of
25 March 2014, approved unanimously the public offering of subscription and sale of shares in the Spanish
Stock Exchange agreeing with the following:

1- Execution of a capital increase through a monetary contribution by issuing 20,689,655 new shares at a
EUR 0.10 par value each and a share premium of EUR 14.40 per share, with the same rights and
obligations as the previously existing shares. The total amount disbursed in capital and share premium
is EUR 300 million.

2- Set the number of shares subject to the public offering: The 20,689,655 new shares will be offered as
part of the sale and subscription offering, to qualified investors through the Global Coordinating Entities,
having Azul Finance, S.a.r.l. and Azul Holding S.C.A. {the "Sharehclders sellers”) renounced expressly
and individually the right to subscribe for them. Additionally, 55,172,414 existing shares of Azul Finance
S.A r.l. will be offered as part of the sale and subscription offer to qualified investors through the Global
Coordinating Entities. Additionally, it is agreed to set the volume of the purchase option {over-allotment
option) at 7,586,207 shares to be confetred by Azul Finance S.ar.l.

3- Set the price of the sale and subscription offer at EUR 14.50 per share.

On 9 May 2014, the Spanish National Securities Market Commission (CNMV) allowed the total amount of
the Parent's shares (130,016,755 shares) fo frade on the Stock Exchange.

The shares subject to the initial public offering (75,862,089 shares) were sold entirely in the stock market for
a price of EUR 14.50 and on 20 May 2014, the Global Coordinating Entities exercised the option granted by
Azul Finance, S.a r.l. to purchase 7,586,207 shares for a price of EUR 14.50 per share.

Therefore, at 31 December 2014, the Parent's share capital was represented by 130,016,755 fully
subscribed and paid ordinary shares of EUR 0.10 par value each.

Per the notifications of the number of shares submitted to the CNMV, the shareholders owning significant
direct and indirect interests in the share capital of the Parent representing more than 3% of the total share
capital at 31 December 2014, are as follows;
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Compan % .share

pany 3112714
CEP III Participations, 8.4 r.1. SICAR 35.50%
GIC Private Limited 6.15%
Ameriprise Financial, INC 3.85%

The Parent's Directors are not aware of any other ownership interests of 3% or more of the share capital or
voting rights of the Parent, or of any lower ownership interests that might permit the holder to exercise a
significant influence over the Parent.

On October 2014 the Group arranged an Equity swap with a bank to fix the price of 550.000 treasury shares
that will be acquired by the Group at 30 April 2015. The price is 5.407 thousand euros, amount that has been
registered as treasury shares in the consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2014 (see note 3z).

b) . Profit/{Loss) per share
The profit or loss per share is calculated on the basis of the loss attributable to the shareholders of the Parent

divided by the average number of ordinary shares outstanding in the year. At 31 December 2014 and 2013
the profit / (loss) per share is as follows:

2014 2013

Number of shares 130,016,755 655,962,642
Average number of shares 122,817,889 603,828,618
Consolidated net loss attributable to the Parent (thousands of euros) 23,831 (170,079)
Number of treasury shares 550,000 -
Number of shares outstanding 130,016,755 655,962,642
Loss per share (in euros per share)

- Basic 0.195 {0.282)

- Diluted 0.195 (0.282)

There are no financial instruments that could dilute the profit / (loss) per share.
c) Foreign currency translation reserve

The detail of “foreign currency translation reserve” in the consolidated balance sheets at 31 December 2014
and 2013 is as follows:
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Thousands of euros

31/12/14 | 31/12/13
Libertytown USA I, Inc. subgroup (19,1013 (9,778)
Arctosa Holding, B.V. subgroup - (5,438) (4,194)
Velosi, S.ar.l subgroup 3,080 (2,511)
Applus Iteuve Technology, S.L.U. subgroup (3,319} (1,542)
Applus Argentina, S.A. (594) (458)
[diada Automotive Technology, S.A. subgroiip 708 125
LGAI Technological Center, S.A. subgroup (791) 620
Other (499) (206)
Total (25,954)}  (17.,944)

d) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that its subsidiaries can continue to operate in accordance with the
going-concern principle of accounting. The Group is also committed to maintaining leverage levels that are
consistent with its growth, solvency and profitability objectives.

The data relating to the financial leverage ratios at the end of 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Thousands of euros
31/12/14 31/12/13
Bank borrowings 790,103 1,108,347
Other financial liabilities 28,284 29,400
Current financial assets (4,525) (2,848)
Cash and cash equivalents (149,688) (180,877)
Net financial debt 664,174 954,022
Total equity and participating loan 633,643 323,249
Leverage (Net financial debt / Net debt + equity) 51% 75%

13._ Non-controlling interests

“Non-controlling interests” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheset reflects the equity of the non-
controlling shareholders in the consolidated companies. Also, the balance of "Profit Atiributable to Non-
Controlling Interests” in the accompanying consclidated income statement reflects the share of these non-
controlling interests in the consolidated profit or loss for the year.

The detail of the non-controlling interests of the fully consolidated companies in which ownership is shared with
third parties is as follows:
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2014 - Thousands of euros

Share capital Profit
and res’efves {Loss) Total
LGAI Technological Center, 5.A. subgroup 10,953 (51)| 10,902
Idiada Autometive Technology, S.A. subgroup 6,571 2,681 9,252
RTD subgroup Y] 7 3
Velosi subgroup 13,777 4,564 18,341
Applus Heuve Technology, S.L.U., subgroup 66 145 211
Total non-controlling interests 31,363 7,346 38,709
2013 - Thousands of euros
Share capital Profit
_ _ and resefves (Loss) Total
LGAI Technological Center, S.A. subgroup 11,431 {147 11,284
Idiada Automotive Technology, S.A. subgroup 5,456 2,710 8,166
RTD subgroup 35 G9 4
Velosi subgroup 13,212 2,043 ] 15,255
Total non-controlling interests 30,134 4,567 34,701
The changes in “Non-Controiling interests” in 2014 and 2013 are summarised as follows:
Thousands of euros
2014 2013
' Beginning balance 34,701 34,788
Changes in the scope of consolidation (Note 2-b-e.1) 378 (1,521)
Dividends (4,302) (2,548)
Translation differences 491 (515)
Other differences 95 (70)
Profit for the year 7,346 4,567
Ending balance 38,709 34,701

14. Bank borrowings

The detail, by maturity, of the bank borrowings in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at 31

December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

2014 - Thousands of euros
Limit Currgnt Non-current maturity
maturity 2016 2017 2018 2019 Total
Syndicated loan 850,000 731 - - - 746,874 746,874
Other loans - 21,450 1,485 1,484 1,390 - 4,359
Credit facilities 41,671 6,178 - - - - -
Obligations under finance leases - 3,105 1,710 242 34 12 1,998
Treasury shares - 5,408 - - - - -
Total 891,671 36,872 3,195 1,726 1,424 746,886 753,231
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2013 - Thousands of euros
Limit Curre_nt Non-current maturities
maturity 2015 2016 2017 Other Total
Syndicated loan 1,058,550 7,976 - 763,215 303,539 - 1,066,754
Other loans - 14,548 31 34 34 17 116
Credit facilities 33,005 11,188 - - - - -
Obligations under finance leases - 3,939 2,398 1,291 109 8 3,800
Total 1,091,555 37,671 2,429 764,540 303,682 25| 1,070,676

a) Sindicated loan

On 27 November 2007, the Group arranged a syndicated loan with Société Générale, London Branch, as the
agent bank, and Barclays Capital; Bayerische Hypo-und Vereinsbank, AG, London Branch; Catalunya Caixa;
Caixa Bank; Bankia; Calyon, Sucursal en Espafia; Commerzbank Aktiengeselischaft; Landsbanki Islands h.f. and
Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. as the participating lenders for an initial total maximum amount of EUR 1,085,000
thousand, divided into various tranches of financing.

On 21 November 2012, the Group refinanced a portion of its bank borrowings, renegotiating the terms and
conditions of 95% of the Capex Facility and 85% of the Revolving Facility, extending the term of both tranches by
two years to 25 May 2016 and establishing a single maturity at the end of the term, which also applies to the
Capex Facility.

On 13 May 2014, the Group repaid early the amount drawn down of the loan granted on 27 November 2007 and
refinanced on 21 November 2012. Then, and on the same day, the Group arranged a new syndicated loan with
Société Geénérale, Sucursal en Espafia, as the agent bank and with Caixabank, S.A., BNP Paribas Fortis S.A.
N.V., Banco Santander, S.A., Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank, Sucursal en Espafia, RBC Capital
Markets (Royal Bank of Canada), London Branch, Sumitomo Mitsui Finance Dublin Limited, Mizuho Bank Ltd.,
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UF.J Ltd., UBS Limited, J.P. Morgan Limited and Citigroup Global Markets Limited.
as the subscribing banks, for a total initial limit of EUR 850,000 thousand, divided into two financing tranches.

The interest rate of the loan is Euribor (for tranches in Euros) / Libor (for tranches in foreign currencies) and a
spread depending on the level of debt, which currently stands at 2.25 percentage points.

The two tranches have a single maturity on 13 May 2019.

The financial structure of the aforementioned syndicated loan is, therefore, as follows:

2014
Thousands of euros
Amount
drawn down
+ interest
added to
Tranche ] Limit principal Maturity
Facility A 700,000 695,733 13/05/19
Facility B 150,000 35,000 13/05/19
Effect of exchange rate changes - 23,412
Interest 731
Debt arrangement expenses - {7,271)
Total 850,000 747,605
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2013

Thousands of euros
- Amount
drawn down
+ interest
added to
Tranche Limit principal Maturity
Facility B 610,000 610,000 26/05/16
Second Lien Facility (Senior D) 100,000 100,000 29/05/17
Revolving Facility 1 10,500 5,281 29/11/14
Revolving Facility 2 64,500 32,441 25/05/16
Capex Facility 1 5,800 2,900 29/05/14 -29/11/14
Capex Facility 2 117,750 117,750 25/05/16
Mezzanine Facility 150,000 150,000 29/11/17
Interest added to principal- Mezzanine Facility - 53,539
Effect of exchange rate changes - 8,665
Debt arrangement expenses - (5,846)
Total 1,058,550 1,074,730

At 31 December 2014, the Group had drawn down a portion of the principal in US dollars -USD 268 million -
(approximately EUR 213 million) and a portion of the principal in sterling - GBP 20 million - (approximately EUR
25 million) of the Facility A tranche, which totals EUR 700 million, and a portion of the nominal amount in euros
totalling EUR 479 million.

The amount drawn down of EUR 35 million from the Facility B tranche, which totals EUR 150 million, is entirely in
euros at 31 December 2014.

a.1) Obligations and restrictions relating to syndicated borrowings:

The new syndicated loan agreement establishes the achievement of a financial ratio - consolidated net financial
debt/consclidated EBITDA - that must not exceed certain values set for each six-month period throughout the
term of the loan, with the ratio being less than 4 in 2016 and onwards. At 31 December 2014, the aforementioned
ratio had to be lower than 4.50. The actual ratio based on the accompanying consolidated financiat statements at
31 December 2014 is 3.12 and, therefore, it was being achieved af 31 December 2014.

The Parent's Directors expect the aforementioned financial ratio to be achieved in the coming years.

The Group also has certain obligations under the financing agreement which relate mainly to disclosure
requirements concerning its financial statements and business plans; positive undertakings to carry out certain
actions, such as guaranteeing the accounting closes, guaranteeing compliance with the legislation in force, etc.
and negative undertakings not to perform certain transactions without the lender's consent, such as certain
mergers, changes of business activity or certain assignments.

a.2) Guarantees given
Shares of certain Applus Group subsidiaries have been pledged to secure the aforementioned loan.

b)  Credit facilities and other loans

The interest rates on the credit facilities and loans are tied to Euribor and Libor, plus a market spread.

The detail of the main current and non-current bank borrowings at 31 December 2014 and 2013, by currency and
excluding hedging instruments, is as follows:
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15.

2014 - Thousands of euros
Euro dUS Poupd Mqlays‘ian Colombian Others Total
oflar sterling ringgit peso
Syndicated loan 508,977 213,339 25,289 - - - 747,605
Other loans 7 3 a1 25,708 - - 25,809
Credit facilitics 921 - (G4 2,246 2,262 781 6,176
Finance leases 158 4,099 16 395 - 434 5,102
Total 510,063 217,441 25,362 28,349 2,262 1,215 784,692
2013 - Thousands of euros
Euro us Poup.d Ma_.lays.i an | Colombian Others Total
dollar sterling ringgit peso
Syndicated loan " 831,779 219,188 23,763 - - < 1,074,730
Other loans 6 31 - 14,438 - 189 14,664
Credit facilities 2,882 32 31 5,091 2,293 859 11,188
Finance leases 208 7.066 25 227 - 239 7,765
Total 834,875 226,317 23,819 19,756 2,293 1,287 1,108,347

On 17 December 2014, the Group entered into a non-recourse factoring agreement for the assignment of
outstanding trade receivables from 31 customers for a maximum amount of EUR 20 million, bearing interest at a
market rate. At 2014 year-end EUR 3,862 thousand had been factored.

Other non-current financiat liabilities

16.

The detail of the related headings in the accompanying consolidated balance shéets at 31 December 2014 and
2013 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
31/12/2014 | 31/12/2013
Payable due fo reversion (Note 27.a) 16,025 16,025
Other non-current financial Habilities 12,259 13,375
Total other non-current financial liabilities 28,284 29,400
Total 28,284 29,400

"Payable due to reversion” for 2014 and 2013 includes the provisions for the guarantees covering the reversion
of land on which certain vehicle roadworthiness testing centres are located, amounting fo EUR 16,025 thousand
(see Note 27.a). The payment period relating to these guarantees will not be known until the proceeding
described in Note 27.b has ended.

“Other financial liabilities" includes mainly various loans with favourable terms and conditions that the
subsidiaries have been granted by various public bodies, mainly the Centre for Industrial Technological
Development {(CDTI) and Institut Catald de Finances (ICF). These loans mafure between 2015 and 2023.

Financial risks and derivative financial instruments

Financial risk management policy

The main purpose of the Group's financial risk management activity is to assure the availability of funds for the
timely fulfilment of financial obligations and to protect the value in eurcs of the Group's economic flows and
assets and liabilities.

This management is based on the identification of risks, the determination of tolerance to each risk, the analysis
of the suitability of the hedging of financial risks, and the control, if applicable; of the hedging relationships
established.
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The Group hedges all significant and intolerable risk exposures as long as there are adeguate instruments for
this purpose and the hedging cost is reasonable.

The Group's financial risks are managed on a single and integrated basis, which enables it to identify the
existence of natural hedges between and within the various lines of business and fo thus optimise the
arrangement of hedges in matkets. All external hedges, including those relating to subsidiaries and those
arranged on their behalf, must be authorised and arranged on a centralised basis at Group level.

Following is a description of the main financial risks to which the Group is exposed and the practices established:

a) Foreign currency risk

The increased volatility of currency markets with respect to other markets (such as the interest rate market) and
the significant international activity of the Group as a long-term investor in couniries outside of the eurozone
make foreign currency risk (loss of value in euros of long-term investments in countries whose currency is not
the euro} the most significant financial risk for the Group.

To manage foreign currency risk, the Group takes the following measures:

- If the financial market of the country in which the investment is made allows for adequate financing to be
obtained in terms of fiming and cost, hedging is naturally obtained through financing taken in the same
currency as that of the investment.

- If the above is not possible, the Group determines asset and liability sensitivity to exchange rate fluctuations
on the basis of the extent and severity (volatility) of the risk exposure.

In relation to foreign currency risk, the estimated sensitivity in the Group's consolidated statements of profit of
loss for 2014 and 2013 to a change of +/-6% in the exchange rates against the eure of the main currency in
which the Group operates, US Dollar, would entail a +/-1% variation of the Group’s revenues.

b)  Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the effect on profit or loss of rises in interest rates that increase borrowing costs.
Exposure to this risk is significantly mitigated by the natural hedging offered by businesses in which inflation
and/or interest rates are factors which are part of the periodical tariff and price revision process. The other
exposure is assessed periodically and, taking into consideration the projected interest rate fluctuations in the
main borrowing currencies, the desirable fixed-rate protection levels and periods are determined.

The structure thus established is achieved by means of new financing and/or the use of interest rate derivatives.

Net debt at floating rates is generally tied to Euribor for the debt in euros and to Libor for the debt in US dollars.

The detail of the average interest rate and of the average financial debt drawn down is as follows:

2014 2013
Average interest rate 3.06% 4.56%
Average financial debt drawn down (thousands of ewros) 861,268 | 1,083,942

On the basis of the financial debt drawn down, the impact on borrowing costs of a change of half a point in the
average interest rafe would be as foliows:
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17.

2014 2013

Change in interest rate 0.50% {0.50%) 0.50% (0.50%)
Change in borrowing costs (thousands of euros) 4,306 (4,306) 4,373 (4,373)
¢} Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the possibility of adverse situations in the capital markets preventing the Group from
financing, at reasonable market prices, its obligations relating to both non-current financiat assets and working
capital requirements, or of the Group being unable to implement its business plans using stable financing
sources.

The Group takes various preventative measures to manage liquidity risk:

- The capital structure of each company is established taking into account the degree of volatility of the cash
generated by it.

- Debt repayment periods and schedules are established on the basis of the nature of the needs being
financed.

- The Group diversifies its sources of financing through continued access to financing and capital markets.

- The Group secures committed credit facilities for sufficient amounts and with sufficient flexibility.

Hedging instruments arranged

The Group arranged over-the-counter derivative financial instruments with Spanish and international banks with
high credit ratings.

In the prior years the only derivatives held by the Applus Group were interest rate derivatives.

The objective of these interest rate hedges was to mitigate, by arranging fixed-for-floating interest rate swaps, the
fluctuations in cash outflows in respect of payments tied to floating interest rates (Euribor and USD libor) on the
Group’s borrowings. The Group opted to account for hedges as permitted under IFRSs, designating in the
appropriate manner the hedging relationships in which the derivatives are hedges of net investments in foreign
operations that neutralise changes in value due to the spot rate of the foreign currency.

In October 2014 the Parent arranged an equity swap with a bank to hedge the acquisition cost of 550,000
treasury shares that the Group must partially hand over to cerfain executives. At 31 December 2014, this
agreement had a fair value of EUR 5,407 thousand and maturity on 30 April 2015. On 9 May 2015, the Group
must confer part of the aforementioned shares to certain executives (see Note 12).

Long-term provisions

The detail of "Long-Term Provisions™ in 2014 and 2013 is as follows (in thousands of euros):

31/12/14 31/12/13

Long-term employee cbligations 5,596 5,260
Other 23,733 7,501
Long-term provisions 29,329 12,761
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The changes in “Long-Term Provisions” in 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Thousands
of euros
Balance at 1 January 2013 8,965
Additions ' 4,902
Amounts used (912)
Effect of exchange rate changes {194)
Balance at 31 December 2013 12,761
Additions ' 19,522
Amounts used (3,325)
Effect of exchange rate changes _ 371
Balance at 31 December 2014 29,329

The provisions recognised constitute a fair and reasonable estimate of the effect on the Group's equity that could
arise from the resolution of the lawsuits, claims or potential obligations that they cover. They were quantified by
management of the Parent and of the subsidiaries, with the assistance of their advisers, considering the
circumstances specific to each case.

a) Long-term employee obligations:

Long term employee obligations contain pension plans and other obligations to employees of Vefosi amounting to
EUR 3,812 thousand (2013: EUR 2,949 thousand) and to employees of RTD amounting to EUR 1,784 thousand
(2013: 2,311 thousand).

The pension plans of RTD relate to loyalty bonuses with current employees of the companies located in the
Netherlands and Germany. These plans include the provision to pay one salary payment to current employees
upon completing 25 years of service and two salary payments upon completing 40 years of service.

The pension plans at Velosi also relate to loyalty bonuses of current employees at companies located, mainly, in
the Middle East and Italy.

b) COther provisions:
Other provisions contains mainly:
» Litigation in progress due to alleged breach by one of the subsidiaries of an agreement with a third
party. A provision of EUR 1,500 thousand was recognised refating to the risk estimated by the Directors
and their fegal advisers arising from the outcome of this litigation.

¢ An arbitral award ordering a Group subsidiary to pay USD 3,347 thousand to a third party and ordering a
third party to pay USD 2,220 thousand to a Group subsidiary due to discrepancies in the final outcome
of work performed in a project. The Group has recognised a provision of EUR 1,429 thousand in this
connection.

» Additionally, there are EUR 2,071 thousand to cover contingencies in connection with an early
settlement of certain employment claims in USA and related opposing counsel fees EUR 18.1 million for
certain tax contingencies to which the Group is exposed (see Note 20.1)

See Notes 20.6 and 27.b for the most notable litigation and mast significant contingencies to which the Group is
exposed.
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18.

Other current and non-current liabilities

19.

The detail of "Other Non-Current Liabilities" and "Other Current Liabilities" in 2014 and 2013 is as follows (in

thousands of euros):

31/12/14 31/12/13

Variable price of the acquisition of ownership

interest payable at long term {earn outs) 10,154 8,186
Other non-current liabilitics 1,127 1,253
Other non-current liabilities 11,281 9,439
Variable price of the acquisition of ownership

interest payable at short term (earn outs) - 6,386
Other current Habilities 4,119 4,218
Other current liabilities 4,119 10,604
Total other liabilities 15,400 20,043

In 2014 the Group recognised as a non-current liability the provision for the variable portion of the price of the
new acquisition of the Chilean company Ingelog Consuliores de Ingenieria y Sistemas, S.A., amounting to EUR
1,662 thousand (see Note 2.b.e.1.1). Payment is scheduled for 2016.

In 2013 the Group recognised under "Long-Term Provisions" those relating to the portion of the earn-outs of the
new acquisitions made, namely Testex Inspection I.L.C and Applus Velosi OMS Co Ltd, for USD 6,000 thousand
(EUR 4,360 thousand) and USD 2,000 thousand (EUR 1,453 thousand), respectively (see Note 2.b.e.1.1).
Payment is scheduled for 20186.

Also, at 31 December 2014 and 2013 it included EUR 2,566 thousand relating to the deferred payment on the
acquisition of the subsidiary [diada Autormotive Techrology, S.A. payable in 2016.

"Other Current Liabilities" includes accrual accounts of EUR 2,801 thousand and other financial payables not

relating to bank borrowings amounting to EUR 1,318 thousand (2013: EUR 3,002 thousand and EUR 1,216,
respectively).

Trade and other pavables

The detail of trade and other payables in 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Thousands of euros
31/12/14 31/12/13
Trade and other payables 172,876 171,529
Trade and other payables with related parties (Note 28) 1,713 -
Remuneration payable 58,297 63,005
Tax payables 55,752 53,007
Total 288,638 289,541

The difference between the reasonable and nominal value does not differ significantly.

The Group's average payment period in 2014 was 48 days (2013: 43 days).

“Remuneration Payable” includes, among other concepts:

a) 8,277 thousand euros corresponding to the incentives to be received in RSU’s by 10 senior executives
of the Group derived from the initial public offering (See Note 29).
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b) EUR 833 thousand (31 December 2013; EUR 3,093 thousand) relating to the incentives receivable by
some Group senior executives if the Group achieves certain financial aggregates in 2014, 2015 and
2016 (see Note 29).

The remainder of the balance of this line item relates to ordinary remuneration payable as annual bonus and
extra and holidays accruals,

In “Tax Payables” the Group recognised the amounts payable of value added taxes, social security taxes and
personal income tax withholdings {or equivalent taxes in each country).

Disclosures on the payment periods to suppliers. Additional Provision Three. "Disclosure obligation™
provided for in Law 15/2010, of 5 July

The Group companies with tax domicile in Spain have adjusted their payment periods to adapt them to Additional
Provisicn Three "Disclosure obligation” of Law 15/2010, of 5 July. As required by the aforementioned Law, the
disclosures relating to the payments made and outstanding at year-end are as follows:

Amounts paid and payable at year-end (in
thousands of euros)
2014 2013
-1 Amount % Amount %
Paid in the maximum payment period 69,520 48% 58,623 46%
Remainder _ 74,055 52% 67,636 54%
Total payments made in the year ' 143,575 100% 126,259 100%
Weighted average period of late payment (days) 104 108
Weighted average period of late payment (days) 44 48
Payments at the end of the period not made in the
L L 4,311 5,171
maximum payment period

The data shown in the foregoing table relate exclusively to the Spanish companies, which are those with a
payment period that is significantly greater than the Group average of 48 days. The data shown in the foregoing
table on payments to suppliers relate to the suppliers that because of their nature are trade creditors for the
supply of goods and services and, therefore, it includes the figures relating to “Trade Payables” under “Current
Liabilities” in the consolidated balance sheet. However, the vast majority of the aforementioned payables was
paid within 2015.

Weighted average period of late payment was caiculated as the quotient whose numerator is the result of
multiplying the payments made to suppliers outside the maximum payment period by the number of days of late
payment and whose denominator is the total amount of the payments made in the year outside the maximum
payment period. The maximum payment period applicable to the Spanish consolidated companies under Law
3/2004, of 29 December, on combating late payment in commercial transactions, is 60 days. The maximum legal
payment period for 2013 was 60 days.
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20. Tax Matters

20.1 Corporate income tax expense/{benefit) recognised in the consolidated income statement

The detail of the corporate income tax expensef/(benefit) recognised in 2014 and 2013 is as follows (in

thousands of euros):

2014 2013
Current tax:
For the year 29,398 28,032
Prior years 18,101 -
Deferred tax:
For the year (12,070) (41,364)
Prior years (10,307) (2,627)
Adjustments due to changes in corporate income tax rates
and laws (14,511) -
Net decrease in deferred tax assets (Note 20.3) - 54,791
Corporate Income fax expense (benefit) 10,611 38,832

The current tax expense of prior years relates mainly to the provision for tax contingencies described in Note

20.8.

The deferred tax benefit of prior years arpse mainly from the tax audit initiated in March 2013 at the Group’s
Parent in refation to corporate income tax for 2008 to 2011. On 24 July 2014, an assessment was received,
which became final 30 days later, which led to the regularisation of certain tax assets and liabilities amounting to

EUR 8.8 million {(see Note 20.6).

The adjustments arising from changes in corporate income tax rates and laws reflect the impact of revaluing the
deferred tax assets and liabilities of the consolidated tax group headed by the Group's Parent based on the
reduction of the standard corporate income tax rate to 28% for 2015 and to 25% for subsequent years {(see Note

20.6).
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The detail of the changes in deferred taxes, recognised as corporate income tax expensef/{benefit} in the

consolidated income statement, is as follows:

2014 2013
Tax credits for tax loss carry forwards 16,492 40,286
‘Withholding taxes and other unused tax credits 390 (5,912)
Temporary differences
\fjx;:;rtlsatlon of intangible assets recognized at fair (36,098) (24,496)
Impairment of the Spanish company portfolio 419 8,711
Other provisions - Spanish companies (2,507) (4,009
Finance costs - Spanish companies 1,971 (2,626)
Spanish Companies Goodwill (16,021) 643
Mea§urement an‘d depreciation of fixed assets - 3,666 2,600
Foreign companies
Provisions - Foreign companies 1,562 (2,320)
Spanish depreciation and amortisation charge (1,197) 967
Qther (4,727) (3,044)
Deferred corporate income tax expense (benefit) (36,888) 10,800
The corporate income tax expense/(benefit) is calculated as follows (in thousands of euros):
2014 | 2013
Loss before tax 41,788 (126,680)
Consolidated corporate income tax rate of 30% 12,536 (38,004)
Tax effect of:
Differences due to corporate income tax rates in different countries 4,492 1,253
Non-deductible impairment of goodwill - 24,386
Non-deductible expenses 1,911 6,632
Tax-exempt income (1,186) (885
Deduction of unrecognised tax assets (425) (7,268)
Adjustment of prior years' corporate income tax 7,794 (2,073)
Adjustments due to changes in corporate income tax rates and laws (14,511)
Provisions and derecognition of iax credits - 54,791
Corporate income tax expense (benefit) 10,611 38,832

20.2 Current corporate income tax receivables and payables

The detail of the current corporate income tax receivables and payables at the end of 2014 and 2013 is as

follows (in thousands of euros):

31/12/14 31/12/13
Current corporate income tax receivables 14,380 12,013
Corporate income tax prepayments 14,380 10,279
Accounts receivable relating to tax losses - 1,734
Current corporate income tax payable 13,676 18,787
Corporate income tax payables 13,676 18,787
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20.3 Deferred tax assets

The detail of "Deferred Tax Assets" at the end of 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
31/12/14 31/12/13

Spanish companies 34,645 51,557
US companies 7,760 7,319
Other foreign companies 1,581 1,602
Tax credits for tax loss carry forwards 43,986 60,478
Spanish companies 5,371 -
Foreign companies 5,010 10,771
Withholding taxes and other unused tax credits 10,381 10,771
Temporary differences due to the non-deductibility of finance costs

exceeding 30% of the profit from operations as provided for in Royal _
Decree-Law 12/2012 16,510 18,481
Other temporary differences - Spanish companies 7,910 6,775
Other temporary differences - Foreign companies 7,134 5,222
Total temporary differences 31.554 30,478
Total deferred tax assets 85,921 101,727

The defeired tax assets indicated above were recognised because the Parent's Directors considered that,
based on their best estimate of the Group’s future earnings, including certain tax planhing measures, it is
probable that these assets will be recovered.

At the end of each year the Parent's Directors analyse the recoverability of the deferred tax assets and only
recognise those that they consider will probably be recovered, assessing all the circumstances and in
accordance with the best possible estimate of the company's future results, including certain tax planning
initiatives.

Pursuant to the new tax legislation, namely Law 27/2014, of 27 November 2014, the Spanish companies do
not have any time limit for offsetting the aforementioned tax losses. However, the recognition of the tax
assets for accounting purposes took into consideration a specified time horizon. In this regard, at 31
December 2014 the tax assets that continued to be recognised were those which the Parent's Directors
considered would be probably offset over a time period of less than ten years through the obtainment of
sufficient future profits, taking into account for the recovery of the tax assets the criteria established in Law
2712014, of 27 November 2014.

The factors taken intc consideration for retaining the deferred tax assets in assets, including tax loss
carryforwards, tax credits and temporary differences at 31 December 2014, which support their future
recoverability, were as follows:

- The Group's business plan approved by the Parent's Board of Directors for 2015-2019 envisages the
same growth trend in 2015 and subsequent years as hitherfo regarding profit (see the main
assumptions of the business plan in Note 31), which will be sufficient to offset all the tax losses over
the coming 7 years.

- In 2014 the consolidated Group in Spain obtained taxable income of EUR 1,417 thousand (2013; EUR
34,259 thousand) which enabled it to use unrecognised tax assets from prior years amounting to EUR
354 thousand in 2014 (2013: EUR 10,277 thousand).

- A mandate was issued by the Board of Directors to the Parent's management to execute all of the
initiatives envisaged in the business plan and it is considered highly probable that it will be met in light
of the experience of prior years and the events of the first two months of 2015.
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The prior years' tax loss carryforwards of the Spanish companies at the

end of 2014 and 2013 are as

follows:

2014
Year Miles de Euros

incurred Recognised Not recognised
2004 - 122
2005 - 11,252
2006 - 2,586
2007 382 35,495
2008 203 2411
2009 43,801 1,268
2010 58,254 2,029
2011 55,541 3,477
2012 3,352 10,020
2013 1,640 8,132
2014 3,722 7.342
Total 166,895 84,134

2013

Year Miles de Euros
incurred Recognised Not recogpised
2005 - 16,215
2006 - 7,962
2007 - 43,076
2008 - 26,898
2009 61,138 34,918
2010 66,260 15,757
2011 58,943 3,458
2012 5,556 7,128
2013 1,380 7,544
Total 193,277 162,956

Most of the Group's tax losses arose from the Spanish companies’ consolidated tax group (EUR 138,581
thousand recognised and EUR 39,046 thousand not recognised).

The detail of the Spanish companies' unused tax credits at the end of 2014 and 2013 is as follows:
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Thousands of Euros
2014 2013
Year
Recognised NOt. Recognised Not_

recognised recognised
1999 - - - 82
2000 - 187 - 187
2002 - 613 - 613
2003 - 77 - 77
2004 - 106 - 314
2003 - 357 - 448
2006 - 290 - 531
2007 - 338 - 683
2008 1,015 1,114 - 4,510
2009 - 2,080 - 2,248
2010 - 2,164 - 2,226
2011 - 2,183 - 2,239
2012 - 2,740 - 2,650
2013 4,356 34,362 - 1,300
Total 5,371 46,611 - 18,108

Of the total recognised and unrecognised tax credits, EUR 10,565 thousand relate to incentive to certain
activities {mainly investment in R&D-+i expenditure), EUR 32,551 thousand relate to double taxation credits
and EUR 2,114 thousand to the reinvestment of gains at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: EUR
10,126 thousand related to investment in R&D+i expenditure, EUR 4,988 thousand to double taxation
credits and EUR 2,114 thousand to the reinvestment of gains).

The foreign companies’ unused tax credits not recognised in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet
are not material.

20.4 Deferred tax liabilities

“‘Deferred Tax Liabilittes” on the liability side of the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at 31
December 2014 and 2013 includes mainly the following:

- A deferred tax liability associated with the recognition at fair value of the assets identified upon
the acquisition of the Applus Servicios Tecnolégicos, S.L.U. subgroup, amounting fo EUR
120,356 thousand (31 December 2013: EUR 153,709 thousand, see Note 5).

- A deferred tax liability associated with the recognition at fair value of the assets identified when
the other three business combinations of other Group companies, amounting to EUR 10,011
thousand, took place (31 December 2013; EUR 12,756 thousand, see Note 5).

- The tax effect of the amortisation of goodwill paid on the acquisition of foreign companies
amounting to EUR 3,305 thousand (31 December 2013: EUR 17,001 thousand). In 2014, as a
result of the tax assessment (see Note 20.6), EUR 12.7 million relating to the deferred tax liability
arising from the amortisation for tax purposes of the goodwill of the RTD Group were
derecognised.

- Deferred tax liabilities of EUR 27,352 thousand (31 December 2013: EUR 22,156 thousand)
arising as a result of differences in the amortisation/depreciation of assets, measurement of
assets, and goodwill for tax and accounting purposes.

- Other deferred tax liabilities amounting to EUR 6,746 thousand at 31 December 2014 (31
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20.5 Corporate IncomeTax rates applicable to the Group

The various companies calculate their corporate income tax expense in accordance with their respective
legislation. The 'main corporate income tax rates applicable to the Group are as follows:;

Tax Tax Tax

Country rate Country rate Country rate
Spain 30%(*) UK 21% Angola 35%

us 40% Germany 30% United Arab Emirates -

Fintand 20% Australia 30% Luxembourg 29.2%
Ireland 12.5% Italy 31.4% Kuwait 15%
Canada 26.5% Brazil 25% Malaysia 25%
Norway 27% Argentina 35% Singapore 17%
Denmark 24.5% Chile 20% Qatar 10%
Netherlands 25% Colombia 25% Saudi Arabia 20%

{*) 28% for 2015 and 25% for 2016 and forward
20.6 Years open for review and tax audits

The Spanish companies have open for review by the tax authorities the last three years for all of the
applicable taxes. The foreign companies have the last few years open for review in accordance with the
tegisiation in force in each of their respective countries. The Parent's Directors do not expect any additional
significant liabilities to arise in the event of a tax audit.

Following is a detail of the main tax audits that are ongoing and the main tax contingencies to which the
Group is exposed;

tn August 2010 the Canadian tax authorities ordered a Group company to provide them with information in
relation o the tax benefits arising from the financial reorganisation of the Group. On 21 February 2013, the
tax authorities notified the company of the commencement of a tax audit in relation to the tax treatment of
the borrowing costs on a loan of CAD 27 million received by the company. The tax authorities are claiming
the application of a 5% tax withholding from the nominal value of the loan received (CAD 1.9 million, EUR
1.3 million at 31 December 2014). The Group paid the amount claimed and recognised a provision for the
corresponding expense in 2013. The tax authorities are also questioning the company's equity for tax
purposes which may give rise to the tax authorities subsequently questioning the deductibility of the interest
of CAD 3.3 million (EUR 2.3 million at 31 December 2014) incurred on the aforementioned loan. The
Parent's Directors and their external legal advisers consider it improbabie that this amount will have to be
paid and, ac¢cordingly, no provision was recognised in this regard.

In October 2010 and December 2011, the Finnish tax authorities filed a challenge before the Tax Correction
Board relating to the tax returns for 2008 and 2009 filed by the branch that the Group has in Finland, in
which it questioned the deductibility for tax purposes of interest arising from the transfer of costs for
accounting purpose. In relation to those years, in May 2014 the Group received a decision from the
Administrative Court dismissing the appeal but an appeal has been filed at the Supreme Court. In 2013 the
Finnish tax authorities extended the appeal to cover the tax returns relating to 2010, 2011 and 2012, the
decision from the Tax Cortrection Board dismissing the appeal having been received on 5 June 2014, which
has been appealed by the Group at the Administrative Court. In November of 2014, the Finnish tax
authorities have broaden the object of the inspection to the tax returns corresponding to 2013, which at the
date of authorisation of these Consclidated Financial Statements, await theé Tax Correction Board's
decision. The possible economic consequences for the Group, based on the years audited and the open
years, total EUR 11.1 million, for which a provision was recognised under “Long-Term Provisions" in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

On 30 August 2011, Chile's Internal Revenue Service notified the Group of its disagreement with the tax
returns filed in 2008 by a Group company due to alleged breaches of the Chilean Corporate Income Tax
Law, totalling CLP 1,172 milion (31 December 2014: approximately EUR 1,529 thousand), including

penalties and late-payment interest. The Group initiated a claim process in which it has contested these
amourts, In 2013 Chile’s Intemal Revenue Service reduced the amount claimad to disagreement with the
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tax returns filed in 2010 for a total of CLP 933 million (31 December 2014: EUR 1,209 thousand), including
penalties and late-payment interest. There are EUR 2,500 thousand provisioned for such fiscal risk.

In March 2013 the Spanish tax authorities notified the Spanish Group companies Applus Services, S.A,,
Applus Servicios Tecnolégicos, S.L.U., Idiada Automotive Technology, S.A., LGAl Technological Center,
S.A. and Applus lteuve Technology, S.L.U. of the commencement of a tax audit in relation to the following:

Income tax for 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011.
VAT for 2009, 2010 and 2011.
Personal income tax withholdings and prepayments for 2009, 2010 and 2011.

Tax withholdings and prepayments relating to income from movable capital for 2009, 2010 and
2011.

Tax withholdings and prepayments relating to property income for 2009, 2010 and 2011.

Non-resident income tax withholdings and prepayments for 2009, 2010 and 2011.

In relation to the aforementioned facts, the 2014 the tax audit was completed and the following tax
assessments were received:

On 14 July 2014, assessments were received for all the taxes being audited of LGA] Technologicat
Center, S.A., Idiada Automotive Technology, S.A. and Applus Iteuve Technology S.L.U. totalling
EUR 79 thousand, which the Group sighed on an uncontested basis and paid.

On 17 July 2014, tax assessments were received with regard to all of the taxes being audited of
Applus Servicios Tecnologicos, 3.L.U. The total tax assessments signed on an uncontested basis
amounted to EUR 1,549 thousand and were paid by the Group.

On 24 July 2014, tax assessments were received for all of the faxes being audited of the Parent
Applus Services, S.A. The total tax assessments signed on an uncontested basis amounted to
EUR 1,832 thousand and were paid by the Group (disregarding income tax, as discussed below).

In the tax assessmenis relating to the fax audits issued against the Spanish consclidated tax group the tax
authorities questioned three matters relating to the corporate income tax of the Spanish consolidated tax

group:

The tax authorities questioned certain of the tax losses reported by the group for 2008, 2009, 2010
and 2011 totalling EUR 97 million (tax asset of EUR 29.1 million). Provisions had been recognised
for certain of these tax assets, amounting to EUR 21.7 million, at 31 December 2013. Therefore,
the tax assets recognised for tax loss carryforwards were overstated by EUR 7.4 million, which
increased the corporate income tax expense for 2014,

The tax authorities also challenged the deductibility of the amortisation of the goodwill paid on the
acquisition of foreign companies and concluded that the associated deferred tax liability was
overstated by EUR 12.7 million, which gave rise to an income tax benefit for 2014.

in addition, for 2012 and 2013, which were not open for review, the Group decided to apply the
conclusions set forth in the tax assessments for 2008-2011 and also regularised the deferred tax
asset relating to the non-deductibility of borrowing costs and concluded that it had wrongly
recognised deferred tax assets amounting to EUR 3.5 million. At 2013 year-end the Company had
recognised provisions for deferred tax assets amounting to EUR 7 million and, therefore, at the end
of 2014 it recognised an income tax benefit of EUR 3.5 millicn as a result of the excessive
provision recognised in 2013,
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Accordingly, the tax assessments had a positive impact of EUR 8.8 million on the income tax expense for
2014,

Lastly, it should be mentioned that the tax authorities did not impose penalties in relation to all the items
adjusted in the aforementioned tax audits, since they considered that all the companies audited had
interpreted the applicable tax legislation in a reasonable fashion.

Also, L.aw 27/2014, of 27 November, reforming corporate income tax legislation came into force in 2014.
These reforms include, inter alia, the reduction of the standard income tax rate to 28% for 2015 and o 25%
for 2016. Accordingly, the Group adjusted its tax assets based on these new future corporate income tax
rates, giving rise to a negative impact of EUR 11.8 millicn as a resuit of the adjustment of its deferred tax
assets and a positive impact of EUR 26.1 million as a result of the adjustment of its deferred tax liabilities,
which had a net positive impact of EUR 14.3 million on the consolidated statement of profit or loss for 2014.

These notes to the financial statements do not include the informaticn referred to in Articte 42 bis of Royal
Detree 1065/2007 in relation to persons resident in Spain, whether legal entities that are beneficiaries or
holders of accounts abroad or individuals from the Group who are authorised representatives for accounts

abroad held by a Group subsidiary non-resident in Spain, since such information- is duly recorded and
detailed in the Group's accounting records pursuant to Article 42 bis 4.b of Royal Decree 1065/2007.

21. Operating income and expenses
a) Revenue

The breakdown, by geographical market, of the Company’s revenue for 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
: 2014 2013
Spain 258,782 275,665
Rest of Europe 458,885 422,530
US and Canada 369,353 362,401
Asia and Pacific 224,017 250,390
Middle east and Africa 184,467 160,486
Latin America 123,213 109,029
Total 1,618,717 | 1,580,501

b) Staff costs

The detail of “Staff Costs” in the accompanying consolidated income statements is as follows:

Thousands of euros

2014 2013
Wages, salaries and similar expenses 655,119 624,250
Termination benefits 5,209 5,511
Employee benefit costs 90,912 87,894
Other staff costs 79,132 66,706
Total 830,372 784,361
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The average number of employees at the Group, by professional category and gender, is as follows:

Average number of employees
2014
Professional category Men Women Total
Top management 180 31 221
Middle management 455 145 600
Supervisors 1,272 280 1,552
Operational employees & others 13,267 2,959 16,226
Total 15,184 3,415 18,599

Average number of employees
2013
Professional category Men Women Total
Top management 185 32 217
Middle management 407 133 540
Supervisors 1,119 203 1,322
Operational employees & others 12,164 2,920 15,084
Total 13,875 3,288 17,163

Also, the distribution of the workforce, by gender and category, at the end of 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

No. of employees
2014
Professional category Men Women Total
Top management 194 29 223
Middle management 430 145 595
Supervisors 1,226 276 1,502
Operational employees & others 13,147 2,953 16,100
Total ' 15,017 3,403 18,420
No. of employees
2013
Professional category Men Women Total
Top management 181 33 214
Middle management 408 139 547
Supervisors 1,103 192 1,295
Operational employees & others 12,429 2,971 15,400
Total 14,121 3,335 17,456

¢} Otherresults

The detail of other losses at the end of 2014 and 2013 relates mainly to extraordinary termination benefits
amounting to EUK 4,458 thousand and EUR 4,849 thousand, respectively, and to cther expenses relating
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to start-up costs, other restructuring costs and, in particular, extraordinary expenses relating to the Group's
IPO (Initial Public Offering} in May 2014,

d) Fees paid to auditors

The fees for financial audit services provided to the various companies composing the Group by the principal
auditor in 2014 amounted to EUR 1,727 thousand (2013: EUR 1,799 thousand).

The fees in this connection paid to other auditors amounted to EUR 305 thousand in 2014 (2013: EUR 124
thousand).

Also, the fees relating to other professicnal services provided to the various Group companies by the principal
auditor and by other entities related to the auditor in 2014 amounted to EUR 1,242 thousand (2013: EUR 186
thousand), of which EUR 865 thousand (2013: EUR 0 thousand) relate to the Group IPO, EUR 214 thousand
(2013: EUR 29 thousand) related to other attest services, EUR 98 thousand to tax services (2013; EUR 61
thousand) and the remainder to other services.

22, Financial result

The detail of the financial loss in 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Thousands of euros

2014 2013
Total finance income 2,267 1,492
Finance costs: '
Finance costs arising from derivatives transactions - {6,688)
Borrowing costs relating to syndicated loan (Note 14) (27,5500 (43,129)
Borrowing costs relating to participating loan - {14,351)
Other finance costs paid to third parties {10,257) (9,360)
Exchange differences (1,048) (14,371)
Total finance costs (38,855)1 (87,899
Total financial loss _ 1  (36,588) (86.,407)

23. impairment and gains or iosses on disposal of non-current assets

The detail of the impairment losses and the gains and losses on asset disposals is as follows:

Thousands of euros
2014 2013
Impairment of intangible assets (Note 6) - (37,882)
Impairment of goodwill (Note 6) - {81,285)
Total impairment losses - (119,167)
Total disposals or derecognitions 2,972 1,596
Tofal net loss 2,972 (117,571)

In 2014 *Disposals or Reductions™ mainly includes:

- The profit of EUR 4,100 thousand on the sale of Rontgen Technishe Dienst, N.V (Belgium
company). (see Note 2.b.e.3.).
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- The profit of EUR 2,769 thousand on the sale of the agro-food business division and the entire
ownership interest in lrtapplus, S.L. and Applus Agroambiental, S:A. (see Note 2.b.e.3.).

24. Proposal of allocation of profitiloss

. 25.

The proposed allocation of the Parent's net profit for 2014 is as follows:

Thousands of
euros

Basis of allocation:
Profit (Loss) for the year 13,607

13,607
Allocation:
To dividends 13,607
Total 13,607

The Parent's Board of Directors will present in the next $hareholder's Meeting the proposal to distribute
dividends of the result of 2014 and an extracrdinary dividends distribution with charge to reserves, for a total
amount of EUR 0.13 per share to all outstanding shares (130,016,755 shares). The final amount will be a gross
dividend of EUR 16,902 thousand.

Additionally, the Parent's Board of Directors will present in the next Shareholder's Meeting the following
proposals for its approval:

- Allocation of the result from the year ended 31 December 2014, amounting EUR 13,607 thousand to
dividends.

- Distribution of dividends with charge to reserves amounting EUR 3,295 thousand.

- Reduction of the legal reserve by EUR 8,731 thousand, t6 record it as voluntary reserves. It is noted that
the amount reduced is equivalent to an excess of 20% of the company’s capital. Consequently, the legal
reserve will amount to EUR 2,600 thousand which is equivalent to the 20% of capital.

- Compensation of prior year results amounting EUR 31,649 thousand, and compensation of the negative
reserve derived from the expenses related fo the capital increase amounting EUR 5,683 thousand,
against the equivalent amount of share premium. Following such compensation, the total amount of
share premium will be EUR 313,525 thousand.

Segment information

The Group operates through six operating divisions and a holding division, each of which is considered to be a
segment for financial reporting purposes. All of the divisions operate under the Applus brand. The six operating
segments are as follows:

- Applus + RTD: global provider of non-destructive testing services mainly to the oil industry. It also
provides services to companies in the energy, aerospace and civil infrastructure industries. Applus
RTD's services enable its customers to verify the mechanical, structural and physical soundness of
assets without causing damage to them, either when they are installed or during their useful lives.

- Applus + Velosi: global provider of inspection, quality control, certification and technical personnel
recruitment services mainly for the oil industry. Applus Velosi's services enable its customers to ensure
compliance with the specifications defined during infrastructure procurement, construction and
operation processes.
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Applus + Norcontrol: provides comprehensive solutions for technical assistance, supervision,
inspection, quality control testing and consulting services mainly in relation to industrial, electrical, oil
and telecommunications facilities.

Applus + Laboratories: offers a wide range of laboratory testing, system ceriification and product
development services across various industries, including the aerospace, industrial and consumer
goods sectors. '

Applus + Automotive {Auto): offers obligatory vehicle roadworthiness testing services, verifying
vehicles' compliance with safety and emissions regulations in force in the various countries in which it
operates.

Appius + IDIADA: offers design, engineering, testing and certification services mainly to car
manufacturers. :

The Parent's Directors have identified the foregoing segments based on the following criteria:

It carries on business activities whereby it can obtain ordinary revenue and incur expenses {including
ordinary expenses and expenses arising from transactions with other compinents of the same entity),

lts operating results are reviewed regularly by management who take operating and management
decisions at the entity in order to decidé on the resources to be allocated to the segiment and evaluate
its performance, and

Separate financial information is available.

These criteria used to identify the business segments comply with IFRS 8.

a) Financial information by segment:

The financial information, by segment, in the consolidated income statement for 2014 and 2013 is as follows (in
thousands of euros):

2014
Applas + Applus + Applus + Applus + Applus + Applus + Other Total
RTD Velosi Norcontrol | Laboratories | Automotive IDIADA
Revenue 547,799 392,679 205,733 46,946 279,738 145,480 342 1,618,717
Operating expenses (484,174) (355,017 {183,369) (40,752) (209,824) (121,497) (38,772)| (1,433.405)
Profit/Loss from operations
before amortisation, impairment 63,625 37,662 22,364 6,194 69,914 23,983 (38,430) 185,312
and other gains or losses
Elf;"gf‘a“”" and amortisation (27,324) (11,778) @17 | (5.619) (32,595) (7,591) (749) (91,773)
Impairment and gains or losses on
disposal of non-current assets 4,232 138 1,485 2 (87} (134) (2,660) 2,972
Other losses {4,085) (3,827) (1,381) (718) (1,638) (365) (8,366) (20,390)
Profit/(Loss) from operations 36,448 22,195 16,341 (145) 35,594 15,893 (50,205) 76,121
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2013

Applus + Applus.+ Applus + Applus + Applus + Applus + Other Total
RTD . Velosi Norcontrol | Laboratories | Auxtomotive IDIADA
Revenue 558,574 372,576 186,158 56,637 273,599 132,513 444 1,580,501
Operating expenses (490,539) (336,802) (165,651) {49,396) (202,352) (110,5213 (35.788) | (1,391,049)
Profit/Loss from operations
iblf]flf’;‘;mem and ot’;:;f’rgt;izt;":r’ 68,035 35,774 20,507 7,241 71,247 21,992 (35,344) 189,452
losses
?:grge:ia“"“ and  amortisation 27781 (11,930) (6,712) (6,542} (35,562) (6,596) (2,500) (97,623)
a‘};‘;z‘;ﬂpﬂi‘fCi*:‘;fn";;s‘f;es on (16,585) 1,614 (11,334) (89) (91,201 22 2 (117,578)
Other losses (1,687) {3,391) (2.662) {1,061) (1,324) (525) (6,374) (17,024)
Profit/(Loss) from operations 21,982 22,067 201 (451) (56,840) 14,893 {44,216) (42,766)
The "Other" segment includes the financial information corresponding to the Applus Group's holding activity.
The finance costs were allocated mainly to the "Other” segment as it is the holding divisions that have bank
borrowings (see Note 14).
The non-current assets and liabilities, by business segment; at the end of 2014 and 2013 are as follows (in
thousands of euros):
2014
srae s T Mo [ty [, | s, | tattes | ower |t
Goodwill 181,144 26,888 24,883 ' 29,239 183,972 56,433 1,150 503,709
Other intangible assets 159,706 46,793 33,229 26,169 273,047 43,630 1,241 583,815
Property, plant and equipment 54,078 7.018 21,765 6,933 86,078 17,893 361 194,148
Non-current financial assets 1,191 5,340 2,742 46 2,183 880 340 12,722
Deferred tax assets 5,300 1,995 11,175 1,507 10,736 840 54,368 85,921
Total non-current assets 401,419 88,034 93,794 63,916 556,016 119,676 57,460 1,380,315
Total liabilities 114,745 108,859 68,668 27,676 156,020 66,196 793,211 1,335,375
2013
MRID | Voo | Noreontwal | Labomiorics | Amomoive | ToiApa | Other | Tou
Goodwill 178,041 26,469 12,320 29,239 183,972 56,555 1,286 487,882
Other intangible assets 166,156 54,313 35,364 28,646 301,557 44 855 1,804 632,695
Property, pkant and equipment 55,746 7434 21,138 9,135 80,108 15,472 417 189,450
Non-current financial assets 43 5,747 1,320 50 4,753 434 1,484 13,831
Deferred tax assets 7,290 3,297 15,597 1,407 10,648 808 62,680 101,727
Total non-current assets 407276 96,701 85,739 68,477 581,038 118,124 67,671 1,425,585
Total liabilities 147,111 111,664 62,757 26,994 160,164 56,850 1,135,091 1,700,631

The bank horrowings were allocated to the "Other" segment as it is the holding divisions that have bank

borrowings (see Note 14).
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The additions to intangible assets and property, plant and equipment, by business segment, in 2014 and 2013
are as follows (in thousands of euros):

Applas +

Applus + Applus + Applus + Applus + Applus +
RTD Velosi Norcontrol | Laboratories | Automotive Idiada Other . Total
Capex 2014 16,908 3,393 5,326 2,428 11,615 7,395 762 47,827
Capex 2013 23,369 2,398 4,930 3,503 6,870 - 10,208 1,018 52,296
b) Financial information by geographic segment:
Since the Group is present in several countries, the information has been grouped geographically.
The sales, by geographical area, in 2014 and 2013, were as follows:
Thousands of euros
2014 2013
Spain 258,782 275,665
Rest of Europe 458,885 422,530
US and Canada 369,353 362,401
Asia and Pacific 224,017 250,390
Middle East and Africa 184,467 160,486
Latin America 123,213 109,029
Total 1,618,717 1,580,501
The non-current assets; by geographical area, in 2014 and 2013, are as follows (in thousands of euros):
Middle . .
Total non-current assets Spain E est of US and East and As}.a_ Latlp . Total
urope Canada . Pacific Americi
Africa
31 December 2014 693,961 299,317 213,596 7,246 127976 38219 1,380,315
31 December 2013 731,953 457,688 105,651 7,529 99,914 21,035 1,423,770

26.  Operating leases

The Group holds the right of use of certain assets through finance leases (see Note 7) and operating leases. The
most significant operating leases relate to the lease of premises and vehicles and to royalties payable for the
various concessions operated by the Group.

The expenses incurred by the Group in 2014 in relation to rent and royalties amounted to EUR 89,281 thousand
(2013; EUR 98,242 thousand).

At the end of 2014 and 2013 the Group had contracted with lessors for the following minimum lease payments,
based on the leases currently in force, without taking into account the charging of common expenses, future
increases in the CPI or future contractual lease payment revisions {in thousands of euros), not including the
expenses for royalties available to the Group:
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Operating leases 2014 2013
Within one year 43,679 44,710
Between one and five years 110,632 116,592
After five years 15,133 15,197
Total 169,444 176,499

The accompanying tabile does not include the amounts of the royalties commitied for the next few years since
these are generally subject to a percentage of the revenue or the investments made. In 2014 the expense
relating to royatties totalled EUR 34,769 thousand (2013; EUR 31,288 thousand).

27___Obligations acquired and confingencies

a) Guarantees and obligations acquired

The Group has provided guarantees totalling EUR 7.7 million (2013: EUR 7.7 million} to the Catalonia
Autonomous Community Government in connection with the incorporation of the subsidiaries Idiada
Autormotive Techriology, S.A. and LGAI Technological Center, S.A.

The Group has also provided other guarantees to the Catalonia Autonomous Community Government for the
management of the vehicle roadworthiness testing services, amounting to EUR 10.5 million (31 December
2013: EUR 10,3 million), primarily to secure payment of the royalty and to guarantee the reversion value of
the leased premises in which the companies provide vehicle roadworthiness testing services. The companies
for which these guarantees were provided are Applus Servicios Tecnolégicos, S.L.U. and Applus lteuve
Technology, S.L.U. for EUR 3 million and EUR 7.5 million (31 December 2013: EUR 2.9 million and EUR 7.4
million), respectively. In addition, other guarantees have been provided to the Catalonia Autonomous
Community Government amounting to EUR 144 thousand (31 December 2013: EUR 323 thousand) to
guarantee a portion of the administrative authorisation system obligations and commitments.

The total amount provisioned for the reversion of the vehicle roadworthiness testing centres in Catalonia was
EUR 16,025 thousand (31 December 2013; EUR 16,025 thousand, see Note 15).

Various banks have provided guarantees to third parties for the subsidiaries Applus Norcontrol, S.L.U.,
Novotec Consultores, S.A., LGAlI Technological Center, S.A. and IDIADA Automotive Technology, S.A.
amounting to EUR 12,341 thousand, EUR 1,757 thousand and EUR 1,418 thousand and EUR 2,404
thousand respectively (31 December 2013: EUR 12,214 thousand, EUR 1,912 thousand and EUR 2,438
thousand, EUR 2,096 thousands respectiively). These guarantees were given to companies or public
agencies as a provisional or definitive guarantee for the tendering of bids or to secure contracts awarded.

In addition, the Group has arranged other guarantees required for the operating activities of various Group
companies totalling EUR 34.7 million (31 December 2013; EUR 9.9 million).

The Group also has certain obligations under the financing agreement (see Note 14). These obligations
include reporting obligations relating to the Group’s financial statements and business plans; the obligation to
take certain measures such as guaranteeing accounting closes, compliance with current legislation, etc.; the
obligation to refrain from performing certain transactions without the consent of the lender, such as mergers,
changes of business activity, assignments, payment of dividends, share redemptions, etc.; and the obligation
to achieve certain financial ratios.

The Parent's Directors do not expect any material liabilities additional to those recognised in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet to arise as a result of the transactions described in this Note.
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b) Contingencies
b.1. Aulo Catalufia

Two third parties filed an appeal for judicial review against certain Articles of Decree 30/2010, of 2 March,
implementing Catalan Industrial Safety Law 12/2008, of 31 July and against the whole of Decree 45/2010, of 30
March, approving the territorial plan for new vehicle roadworthiness testing centres in Catalonia for 2010-2014.
The subject-matter of the appeal is the regime under which roadworthiness testing centres should operate in
Catalonia, the two third parties are claiming a free market regime. Current legislation establishes an
administrative authorisation regime until 2035. '

In relation to the preceding point, the Applus Group is involved in another appeal for judicial review filed by a third
party against the decision of 22 June 2010 granting administrative authorisations to Applus lteuve Technology,
S.L. and Applus ECA-ITV, S.A. as vehicle roadworthiness testing centre concession operators, and against the
decision hahded down on 21 July 2010 granting an administrative authorisation to Revisions de Vehicles, S.A. as
a vehicle roadworthiness testing centré concession operator.

Also, another third-party filed an appeal for judicial review at the Judicial Review Chamber of the Catalonia High
Court against the tender awarded under the public call for tenders for the operation of the new centres envisaged
in the territorial plan and against the resolution of 4 November 2010, which awarded contracts one and two in the
aforementioned public call for tenders.

The aforementioned litigation proceedings were seftled unanimously at first instance by the Judicial Review
Chamber of the Catalonia High Court by means of various court decisions that accepted the appellants' claims
and declared null and void the provisions and acts which had been challenged. Consequently, the judgments of
the Catalonia High Court of Justice were handed down on 25 April 2012 (in the appeal in relation to Decree
30/2010 and Decree 45/2010, in which Applus is an appellant), on 13 July 2012 (in the appeal of the public call
for tender for the award of the two territorial plan contracts), on 13 September 2012 (in the appeal in relation to
the authorisations granted to Applus) and the judgment of 21 March 2013 (in the appeal against the resolution of
the award of the public calls for tender).

These judgements declared null and void the regulatory framework and the authorisations granted (including
those granted to Applus) since it was considered that Decree 30/2010, of 2 March, implementing Catalan
Industrial Safety Law 1272008, of 31 July, and Decree 45/2010, of 30 March, approving the territorial plan for new
vehiclé' roadworthiness test centres in Catalonia for 2010-2014, and the acts implementing them infringed
Directive 2006/123/EC of the European Partiament and of the Council of 12 DBecember 2006 on services in the
internal market,

Cassation appeals were filed against the judgments on the appeals in which Applus is an appellant (25 April and
13 September 2012). The initial effect of the grant of ieave to proceed with the cassation appeals was that the
judgments of the High Court of Justice of Catalonia are not final and, consequently, at the reporting date they are
not enforceable. It should be noted that the aforementioned cassation appeals argue that the judgments of the
Catalonia Supreme Court of Justice do not adequately take into account the non-compliance of the activity of
vehicle roadworthiness testing with the regime established by Directive 2006/123/EC of the European Parliament
and of the Council of 12 December 2006 on setvices in the internal market. The Group and its advisers consider
that the activity of vehicle roadworthiness testing is a service which is included in the area of transport due to its
being directly linked to the regulation of road traffic in addition to other general and road safety-related factors.

The Supreme Court isstied the interlocutory orders of 11 and 18 February 2014 resolving to suspend the date on
which a decision would be handed down on thé lawsuits filed with respect to the regime of vehicle
roadworthiness testing in Catalonia and, instead of issuing a judgment, it requested to hear all of the parties in
relation to the merits of submitting @ question for a preliminary ruling from the Court of Justice of the European
Union in order to ascertain whether the regime of authorisations for vehicle roadworthiness testing centres in
Catalonia is compatible with EU Law. In an order dated 20 March 2014 the Supreme Court applied for a
preliminary ruling from the Court of Justice of the European Union. The Court of Justice of the European Union
ordered the Applus Group to submit observations in relafion to the preliminary ruling, which were precented on 31
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July 2014, and an oral hearing was requested. Applus was summonsed for the oral hearing to be held at the
Court of Justice of the European Union on 19 March 2015.

It is important to note in this regard that on 3 April 2014 the new directive on periodic roadworthiness tests for
motor vehicles (Directive 2014/45/EL)}, repealing the former Directive 2009/40 with effect from 20 May 2018, was
approved. Article 31 states that Directive 2006/123/EC excludes from its scope services of general interest in the
field of transport.

It is also of note that the Directorate-General of the Internal Market of the European Commission sent on 5
October 2012 to the AECA-ITY (Spanish Association of Entities working with the Government on Vehicle
Roadworthiness Testing) the response to a query stating that, as the Spanish authorities had previously been
informed, it is the Commission's view that vehicle roadworthiness testing is outside the scope of Directive
2008/123/EC on services in the internal market, which has been filed with the Supreme Court.

Lastly, it should be noted that;

a) Applus's licence to carry on the activity of vehicle roadworthiness testing in Catalonia is based
specifically on Law 12/2008, of 31 July and, therefore, in any case, the content and value thereof are
maintained in full force as the decrees implementing the Law aré currently subject to appeal but

b} the outcome of the aforementioned litigation proceedings is not expected to result in any fine or penalty
for the Group.

Consequently, the Directors view favourably the most recent rufings which will maintain the status quo in
Catalonia with respect to Applus's authorisations during the course of the proceedings, which will foreseeably last
around two years.

b.2 Other contingencies

Also, Applus Hteuve Euskadi, S.A.U. filed cassation appeal no. 634/2002 at the Supreme Court against the
judgment of the Basque Country High Court of 20 July 2001, requesting a new assessment of the
roadworthiness tender process in the Basque Country and asking the Basque authorities to review the
valuation and scoring of all the lots and all the items, not only those covered by the Supreme Court's decision.
On 26 December 2007, the Supreme Court handed down a judgment partially dismissing the judgment of the
Basque Country High Court and backdating the administrative proceedings to the date prior to the award and
requesting the Basque Autonomous Community Government to make a new vaiuation. On 31 May 2010 the
Basque Autonomeus Community Government issued its first evaluation and maintained the highest score for
Applug, hut the Basque Country High Court handed down an order on 23 June 2011 holding that the decision
of the High Court had not been correctly executed and ordered the Basgue Autonomous Community
Government to carry out & new evaluation. A second evaluation was issued on 8 July 2011 in which the best
score in relation to the “Lote 3” (including 2 stations) was achieved by lta Asua. The Basque Gountry High
Court considered the decision of the High Court to have been correctly executed in an order dated 24 April
2012. Applus filed cassation appeals against both the order of 23 June 2011 and that of 12 July 2012 of the
Basque Country High Court. The Supreme Court has not yet handed down any decision in this connection. In
October 2013 the Basque Autonomous Community Government enforced the judgment provisionally in a
decision issued on 30 September 2013, awarding the concession to Ita Asua (which consists of the Vitoria
and Bergara centres), which obliged Applus to abandon the centres and hand over the related concession
assets to the grantor. Therefore, although the Applus Group has appealed against the decision, from that
date it ceased to operate the concession. The revenue from the concession in the nine-month period of 2013
amounted to EUR 4,214 thousand. On 16 April 2014, the Basque Autonomous Community Government ruled
on the appeal, dismissing the Applus Group's claims with respect to the new concession holder's lack of
capacity and upholding the economic claims for payment of the amount relating to the
unamortised/undepreciated portion of the reverted assets and the refund of the initial deposit. The Appius
Group has appealed against the Basque Autonomous Community Government's decision at the Basgue
Country High Court, filing the appeal for judicial review on 24 November 2014,

The Group disputed the Royal Decree 93/2007 establishing the administrative authorisation concession
regime in the Autonomous Community of the Canary Islands (previously the concession regime was an
administrative concession regime). On 28 January 2013, the Canary Islands High Court dismissed the claim
filed by the Group. A cassation appeal was filed against this decision on 7 March 2013 at the Supreme Court,
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and it's still pending resolution. AECA [TV (Spanish Association of Entities working with the Government on
Vehicle Roadworthiness Testing) also filed an appeal against Royal Decree 93/2007 and obtained a
precautionary measure suspending execution of the Royal Decree. An appeal was filed against this
precautionary measure by the Canary Islands Autonomous Community Government when the Canary Islands
High Court handed down a judgment thereon. The Canary Islands Autocnomous Commuity Government has
begun processing authorisation application dossiers (in accordance with Royal Decree 93/2007, which has
been appealed) which have been submitted to it in relation to the opening of vehicle roadworthiness testing
centres in the Canary Islands. Applus has filed an appeal against all the applications for new centres. On 11
February 2014, the High Court dismissed the appeal for judicial review filed by AECA against Decree 93/2007
of the Canary Islands Autonomous Community Government, upholding that the regime of administrative
authorisation for the provision of vehicle roadworthiness testing services in the Canary Islands Autonomous
Community is in accordance with the law. Therefore, the status quo of the transitional arrangements is
upheld: the concessions awarded and authorisations granted previously will continue to enable the
concession holders without the need for prior authorisation although they are obliged to comply with the
technical requirements in force.

It should be noted that there is currently a plan to amend Royal Decree 224/2008, of 15 February, on general
rules for the installation and operation of the vehicle roadworthiness inspection centres which, inter alia,
regulates the regime of incompatibility of the shareholders, management and personnel of the
aforementioned centres with regard to other activities related to the vehicles that must be inspected.
However, there is no certainty that it will be approved or of its terms, as the case may be. Even if the
aforementioned Royal Decree is amended the governments of the autonomous communities continue to have
the right to approve it or not.

Also, on 24 May 2014 the lllinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) published its intention to grant the
lllinois concession hitherto operated by the Group to a competitor. The Group lodged an appeal against this
decision with the Chief Procurement Officer for General Services (*CPO™), who concluded in the Group's
favour on 7 August 2014 and declared the need to retender. At the end of 2014 the lllinois Environmental
Protection Agency had not named a new date for the holding of a tender for the grant of the concession. The
concession granted to the Group expires on 30 April 2015, although it may be extended until the IEPA
appoints a new company to operate it.

Certain Brazilian subsidiaries of the Group are facing a number of lawsuits from ex-employees regarding an
amount of hours of over-time worked, but that the Group estimatés to be unfounded. For that reason, the
subject companies are currently presenting their respective defense writings and/or legal recourse for that
legal proceeding, thus the Group finds it premature to determine the outcome as well as to quantify the
impact on the Group. In any case, such impact would not be significant for the aftached consolidated financial
statements.

The Parent's Directors consider that the outcome of all above proceedings will not entail additional liabilities
to those foreseen in the consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2014. At 2014 year-end, the
Parent’s Directors were not aware of any significant claims by third parties or any ongoing legal proceedings
against the Group, other than those described above, that, in their opinion, could have a material impact on
these consolidated financial statements.

28. Transactions and balances with associates and related parties

For the purposes of the information in this section, related parties are considered to be:

& The significant shareholders of Applus Services, S.A., understood to be shareholders holding directly or
indirectly 3% or more of the shares, and shareholders which, without being significant, have exercised
the power to propose the appointment of a member of the Board of Directors.

#* The Directors and senior executives of any Applus Group company, as well close members of those
persons’ family. "Director” means a member of the Board of Directors and "senior executive” means
persons reporting directly to the Board or to the CEO of the Group.

® Associaies of the Group.
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The transactions between the Parent and its investees were eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in

this Note.

The transactions between the Group and its associates and related companies disclosed below, are performed in
line with market conditions.

Transactions with associates and related companies

In 2014 and 2013 the Group companies performed the following transactions with associates and related parties
that did not form part of the Group:

Thousands of Eurcs

2014

2013
Operating Other F_inancial Operating Royalty Financial
revenue revenues Procurements eome revenue Procurements expenses expenses.
(Note 22)
Azul Finance, S.4r.1.. - - - - - - - 14,351
Velosi LLC 3,959 43 188 - 3,302 - - -
Kurtec Pipeline Services LLC 1 - - - 60 - - -
Velosi (B) Sdn Bhd - - - 10 233 - - -
Velosi (M) Sdn Bhd 14,302 - 1,208 - 9,815 1,373 2240 -
Total 18,262 43 1,396 10 13,410 1,373 2,240 14,351

The transactions with associates and related parties corresponds to commercial transactions. The Group also
has an agreement with Velosi (M) Sdn Bhd for the use of the Velosi brand.

The transactions and balances between the Group and other associates and related parties (Directors and
executives) are detailed in Note 28.

During 2014 there have not been any transactions nor are there any significant amounts outstanding at year end,

with shareholders.

Balances with associates and refated companies

a) Payables to associates and related parties:

Thousands of Euros
Long-term
loan and interest
31/12/2014 | 31/12/2013
Velosi LLC 45 -
Kurtec Pipeline Services LLC 73 -
Velosi (M) Sdn Bhd. 1,595 -
Total 1,713 =
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b) Receivables from associates and refated parties:

Thousands of euros
Trade receivables
from related
companies and associates
31/12/14 31/12/13
Velosi LLC 964 727
Velosi (B) Sdn Bhd 333 457
Kurtec Pipeline Services Ltd. 66 49
Kurtec Pipeline Services LLC 608 62
Velosi (M) Sdn Bhd. 6,380 2,903
Total . . 8,351 4,198

"Trade Receivables from Related Companies and Associates" relates mainly to commercial transactions.

Disclosures on the Board of Directors and senior executives

Remuneration of and obiigations to the Board of Directors

In 2014 the remuneration and other benefits earned by the members of the Board of Directors of the Parent
amounted to EUR 2,260 thousand (2013: EUR 280 thousand) mainly, in concept of the Executive Directoi's and
Board Members' compensation. The main difference between 2014 and 2013 is that in 2014 the remuneration of
the Executive Director, including the exceptional incentive granted to it on the occasion of the initial public
offering, is deemed to be remuneration of the Board, not management, and it also includes the temination
payment and incentive arising from the termination of the services of the former Chairman of the Group,
amounting EUR 830 thousand.

This amount does not include the exceptional incentive granted to the Executive Director explained in further
paragraphs, which is quantified under remuneration of and obligations to senior executives.

As regards the remuneration of the Executive Director, the latter is a beneficiary of the so-called “Financial
Incentive Plan”, This remuneration is composed of (i} the so-called “Financial Incentive Plan”, paid in 2014; and
(ii) the so-called “Financial Incentive in RSUs", which envisages the delivery, for no consideration, of a given
number of restricted stock units (“RSUS").

The Financial Incentive in RSUs was delivered at the time the remuneration system was granted (i.e. 9 May
2014) and the RSUs are exchangeable for shares of the Company pursuant to the vesting schedule agreed upon
with the beneficiary of the remuneration system. The RSUs do not confer rights (dividend or voting) of any kind
over the Company and are non-transferrable. Each RSU will be exchanged, for no consideration, for one ordinary
share of the Company on the planned vesting date, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Financial
Incentive Plan. The value of the financial incentive will therefore depend on the market price of the shares on the
vesting date of the RSUs and their consequent exchange for shares of the Company.

The Executive Director has received 1,178,968 RSUs under the Financial Incentive Plan which, if the RSUs were
to be exchanged for shares of the Company at the date of this report, would represent 0.91% of the Company's
voting power.

In particular, the RSUs delivered to Executive Director under the Financial Incentive Plan will be exchangeable
for shares of the Company in accordance with the following vesting schedule:

- 392,989 RSUs on 8 May 2015;

- 392,969 RSUs on 8 May 2016; and
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- 392,990 RSUs on 9 May 2017,

The beneficiary's right to exchange his RSUs for shares of the Company under the Financial Incentive Plan will
remain in force provided he is still discharging the duties of his position when the RSUs vest, subject to
occurrence of events that would cause the RSUs to vest early (death, permanent disability, change of control)
and the bad-leaver and good-leaver clauses envisaged in the contract.

Should it not be possible to deliver the shares of the Company on the vesting date of the RSUs for reasons
attributable to the Company, he will be entitled to receive payment in cash instead of the delivery of shares for an
amount equal to (i) the weighted average market price of the shares at the close of all the trading sessions in the
calendar quarter prior to the date on which the shares of the Company should have been delivered; multiplied by
(i) the number of shares that should have been delivered in that year pursuant to the Financial Incentive Plan.

The President of the Board of Directors is the beneficiary of a compensation plan referred to as RSU Award
Agreement. The remuneration plan consists of conferring 6,897 RSUs to the Chairman of the Board taking effect
from the date the remuneration plan was granted (that is, 9 May 2014). The RSUs do not confer rights (dividend
or voting) of any kind over the Company and are non-transferrable. Each RSU will be exchanged, for no
consideration, for one ordinary share of the Company on the planned vesting date, pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the RSU Award Agreement. The value of the financial incentive will therefore depend on the market
price of the shares on the vesting date of the RSUs and their consequent exchange for shares of the Company.
The Chairman of the Board has received 6,897 RSUs under the agreement referred to as RSU Award Agreement
which, if the RSUs were to be exchanged for shares of the Company at the date of this report, would represent
0.005% of the Company's voting power.

The vesting of the RSUs will take effect one year from the date of conferring the financial incentive. The
Chairman's right to exchange his RSUs for shares of the Company under the RSU Award Agreement will remain
in force provided he is still discharging the duties of his position when the RSUs vest, subject to occurrence of
events that would cause the RSUs to vest early {(death or permanent disability).

The remunerations received by the members of the Board of Directors for participating in the various committees
delegated by the Board of Directors in 2014 have been as follows:

Committee of Designation and Internal Audit Committee Corporate Governance
Remuneration Committee

32 19 ' 32

These remunerations for members of the various board committees are part of the total compensation to the
Board of Directors referred to in the first paragraph.

As at 31 December 2013 a member of the Board of Directors had a mortgage amounting EUR 1,100 thousand
plus interest, that has been amortized prior to its maturity during the year 2014, not existing as at December 31,
2014 any other advances or loans granted to members of the Board of Directors of the Parent Company.

The Group does not have any significant pension or life insurance obligations to the Parent's Directors.

At 31 December 2014, the Parent's Board of Directors was made up of 9 men (8 men and 4 legal entities
represented by men at 31 December 2013).

Remuneration of and obligations to senior executives

It has been defined as Management, those exacutives who were members of the Executive Committee in 2014,
thus being directly dependent on the Company’s executive director, and also, the internal auditor, in accordance
to the definition bome in the current accounting rules and specially in the "Report of the Special Working Group
on Good Governance of Listed Companies” published by the Spanish regulator CNMV on 16 May of 2006.
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The remuneration received. by the Management during the year 2014, including severance payments, amounts
EUR 4,861 thousand (2013: EUR 4,411 thousand), and is as following:

Exercise 2014

Thousands of euros
Fixed Variable
Remuneration | Remuneration | Other Concepts Severance Pension Plan
Team Management 2,407 1,207 922 283 40

Exercise 2013

Thousands of euros

Fixed Fixed Fixed " Tixed Fixed
Remuneration Remuneration Remuneration Remuneration | Remuneration

Team Management 2,771 1,423 165 - 52

The remuneration shown in the preceding tables does not include the following 2 incentive plans:

In May 2014 the Group has agreed and signed with the Executive Director and 9 other dependant
senior executives a new incentive plan (“Incentive Agreement™), of which part of it was paid in cash in
the moment of the initial public offering amounting EUR 18.7 million {includes the amount received by
the Executive Direcior), and the rermaining part has been deferred to be received through 2,569
thousand of “Restricted Stock Units” that can be exchanged, for no considerdtion, for ordinary shares of
the Company, according to a linear calendar, subject to the tenure of the executive for 3 years (in
exception to bad-leaver and good-leaver clauses envisaged in the contract), to be proportionally paid in
May of each of the next 3 years, according to the May and July 2014 agreements with such executives.
In accordance to IFRS 2, the fair value of the shares to be bestowed after the 3 year period, at the
initial public offering price would amount to EUR 37 million (taking into account that all execuiives
remain in the Group for the next 3 years), which the Group provisions each year on a linear basis in the
Income Statement of the consolidated financial statements. According to IFRS 2, the difference
between the fair value and the acquisition cost of such shares, shall be registered in shareholder's
equity. The expense incurred for this concept of deferred compensation during 2014, without
considering the amount already paid in cash, amounts EUR 8.3 million, figure provisioned under
“remuneration payable” (see Note 19).

The total expense in 2014 for this incentive amounts EUR 16.3 million that corresponds to EUR 18.7
million paid in cash, the accrual of EUR 8.3 million derived from the RSU’s, less the EUR 10.7 million
that were provisioned during the prior year for the same concept. These amounts correspond to the
Executive Director and the 9 other executives.

Other senior executives of the Group earn variable remuneration subject to the achievement by the
Group of certain financial aggregates in 2014, 2015 and 2016, to be paid in 2017 amounting to EUR
2.1 million. The expense incurred and provisioned for the aforementioned variable remuneration at 31
December 2014 amounts EUR 702 thousand (see Note 19).

Life insurance policies have been taken out for certain senior executives, although the amount thereof is not
malerial. Such costs are classified under “Other concepts” in the preceding tables.

At 31 December 2014 one senior executive had a loan that amounted to EUR 3,079 thousand.
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At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group's senior management was composed of 9 men and 1 woman (12
men at 31 December 2013).

The internal auditor has also been included in terms of retribution.

The Executive Director is classified as remuneration of the Board of Directors in 2014 but is classified as
remuneration to senior executives in 2013.

Information refating to conflicts of interest on the part of the directors

It is hereby stated that the directors, their individual representatives and the persons related thereto do not hold
any investments in the share capital of companies engaging in identical, similar or complementary activities to
those of the Group or hold positions or discharge duties thereat, other than those held or discharged at the
Applus Group companies, that could give rise to a conflict of interest as established in Article 229 of the Spanish
Limited Liability Companies Law.

Information on the environment

31.

In view of the Group's business activities, it does not have any environmental liability, expenses, assets,
provisions or contingencies that might be material with respect to its equity, financial position or results.
Therefore, no specific disclosures relating to environmental issues are included in these notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Parent’s Directors consider that the environmental risks that might arise from its acfivities are minirmnal and, in
any case, are adequately covered, and they do not expect any additional liabilities to arise from the
aforementioned risks. The Group did not incur any expenses or receivé any grants related to environmental
matters in 2014 and 2013. :

The Group as a going concern

The Group's earnings represented a significant improvement with respect to preceding years. In 2014 the
consolidated net profit before tax amounted to EUR 31.2 million, as compared with a loss of EUR 165.5 million
for the preceding year.

The losses incurred in prior years were due mainly due to significant leverage, which was reduced significantly in
2014 (see Note 14) and the recognition of impairment losses on intangible assets in preceding years (see
comments in section 2 of this Note).

Also, the following factors should be taken into account when assessing the applicability of the going concern
principle of accounting:

1. Business plan

The Group's business plan for 2015-2019, envisages the same trend towards growth in operating profits for 2015
and subsequent years. A mandate was issued by the Board of Directors to the Parent's management to execute
all of the initiatives envisaged in the business plan and it is considered highly probable that it will be met in light of
the experience of prior years and the events of the first two months of 2015.

This trend towards growth in eamings derives from both the expected growth in revenue and from the
optimisation of costs and investments made for the fufure.

Matters with an impact on revenue growth-

+ Development and investments in infrastructure in new markets.

+  Proliferation of increasingly reguiated environments.

« Development of vehicle inspection programmes in emerging countries.

» Increase in investment in technology applied to cars.

- Eommiin an bl sanmnd meafitabhla lhuiainmanann anAd namsidanas bl hialoav vnlioa aAdAdaAd Fae Avratanaara
- LD UTT NS TS PIVHKAVIIG MUDILIGODTD Al 90T VILGD WILNT Illullcl VAIUST AUUCTU 1W] LUDniel
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32,

« {Continue with the policy of identifying and anaiysing the less profitable businesses in order to focus on the
most profitable ones.

« Continue with the excellence in terms of the operational management that is being developed in all the
divisions.

Matters with an impact on costs-

=  Optimisation of the integration of the various businesses acquired and more transversal management of
resources.
+ Standardisation and optimisation of the processes of the new management systems implemented.

2. Ability to pay debts

The Group had positive working capital at 31 December 2014 of EUR 243,223 thousand (31 December 2013:
EUR 240,404 thousand). Also, the Group's cash flow in 2014 is positive and it expects to see an important
improvement in the cash flow in 2015 and subsequent years.

it must also be borne in mind that the losses incurred in prior years stemmed mainly from the amortisation and
impairment of certain intangible assets and goodwill arising from the business combinations detailed in Note 5
and the finance costs associated with the debt. In this respect, it should be noted that;

s The amortisation charge and impairment expense do not entail a cash ocutflow and, therefore, have no
impact on the Group’s cash flow or, consequently, on the Group's ability to meet its financial obligations. Also
note that during 2014, it was not necessary to impair any intangible assets or goodwill, as mentioned in Note
5.

* |n 2013 the pariicipating loan that carried significant finance costs during previous years was fully
capitalized, and in 2014, at the same time the Group was in the IPO process, its financial debt was
restructured, thus reducing the financial expense from EUR 87.9 million in 2013 to EUR 38.9 million in 2014
(see Note 22), amounts that are expected to be low in 2015 and onwards.

3. Access to sources of financing
Due to its geographical diversity, the Group has access to multiple sources of financing.
Also, the additional available funding, which the Group could tap if necessary, is detailed in Note 14.

Lastly, it must be borne in mind that the individual equity of the Parent at 31 December 2014 amounted to EUR
991,089 thousand, which exceeds its share capital of EUR 13,002 thousand.

In view of all of the above, the Parent's Directors prepared these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the going-concern principle of accounting, taking into consideration the financial resources available to the
Group and the operating, commercial and, particularly, financial actions that might be undertaken in the future.

Events after the reporting period

Effective 12 February 2015, the Applus Group acquired the US IAG Group (Integrity Aerospace Group Inc.) and
other non-controlling interests, all the share capital of the US companies X-Ray Industries Inc., Thermalogix
LLC., XRl N-Ray Services LLC, Composites Inspections Solutions LLC and NRay USA Inc., the Canadian
company NRAY Services Inc. and a majority interest that includes a call option on 100% of the US company
Arcadia Aerospace Industries LLC for USD 52.726 million (EUR 42.303 thousand) and an Earn Qut that will be
met depending on future years’ results.

X-Ray Industries Inc., Thermalogix LLC., XRI N-Ray Services LL.C, NRay USA Inc. and NRAY Services Inc. form
part of the RTD division in order to reinforce the Applus+ Group’s position in the US market for testing in the
aeronautics and other industrial sectors, while Arcadia Aerospace Industries LLC and Composites Inspections
Soiutions LLC form part of the Applus + Laboratories division and represent that division's first incursion into the
US market, as a supplier of festing services in aesronautical components and materials.
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33.

Explanation added for tfranslation to English

These consolidated financial statements are presented on the basis of the regulatory financial reporting
framework applicable to the Group (see Note 2.a). Certain accounting practices applied by the Group that
conform with that regulatory framework may not conform with other generally accepted accounting principles and

rules.
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Applus Services, S.A.
and Subsidiaries

Management Report to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2014

Overview of performance

The financial performance of the Group is presented in an “adjusted” format alongside the statutory (“reported”
or “actual™ results. The adjustments are made in order that the underlying financial performance of the business
can be viewed and compared to prior periods by removing the financial effects of separately disclosed items.

Organic revenue and profit growth are calculated in this report by excluding acquisitions or disposals made in the
prior twelve month period to the accounting date. Organic is stated at constant exchange rates, taking the
current year average rates used for the income statements and applying them to the results in the prior period.

In the table below the adjusted results are presented alongside the statutory results showing the effect of those
adjustments. ‘

Hevenue : 1687 0.0 | .A,6087 15805 - 00 | 1,580.5 2%
Ebitda - 2052 {19.9) 1853 200.1 (10.7) © = 1895 2.5%
Operating Profit 152.8 {82.7) 76.1 150.7 - {193.5) - {A2.8] 5.3%:
ket tinancial expenses {326} 140 {36.6 (86.4) 0.0 {3a.4)

Share of profit of associates 23 G40 23 2.5 o0 25

Profit Before Taxes 1284 86.7) . 418 66.8. {193.5) }125'7] 922%
tpudne lax £33.4) 22.8 {20.6) {18.9) {20.0] 138.8]

Mon controlling interests ' {2.3) G0 {7.3} 4.6 0.0 {4.6]

Net Profit 5 87 (63.9) 238 @4 Qus- {@y A%

The figures shown in the table above are rounded to the nearest €0.1 million.

Other results of €82.7 million (2013: €193.5m) in the operating profit represent amortisation of acquisition
intangibles of €45.3 million (2013: €48.2m), IPO related costs of €28.2 million (2013: €16.7m), impairments of
€0.0 million (2013: €119.2m), restructuring costs of €8.9 million (2013: €4.8m) and other items of €0.2 million
{2013: €4.6m).

Other results of €4.0 million {2013: €0.0m) in the net financial expenses are the write-off of the brought forward
un-amortised portion of arrangement fees for the pre-IPO debt.

Other results of €22.8 million (2013: €20.0m}) in the income tax is the net tax effect on the Other results.
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In the table below key financial figures for the year are shown,

Revenue ' 1€618;.7 2.4%
Organic Growth @ constant currency 4.4%
Adjusted Operating Profit 1588 . 5.3%
Organic Growth @ constant currency 8.0%
Adjusted Operating Margin 9.8% +30 bps
Adjusted Net Profit Logrr o 1024%
Adjusted Operating Cash Flow 1323 29.3%
Adjusted EPS “ 067 | n/a

Revenue increased by 2.4% to €1,618.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. Revenue growth
comprised organic revenue growth at constant exchange rates of 4.4%, revenue from acquisitions less disposals
of 0.2% and the adverse effect, of currency of 2.2%.

Adjusted operating profit increased by 5.3% to €158.8 million in the year. Organic adjusted operating profit
growth for the year was 8.0%.

The adjusted operatirg profit margin increased by 30 bps to 9.8% on both an organic and reported basis,

The reported operating profit was €76.1 million, compared to a loss of €42.8 million in the prior period. One of
the main reasons for this improved resuit is the one-off expenses in the prior period relating to the impairment of
certain of the Group s assets,

The net financial expense reduced significantly in the period from €86.4 million to €36.6 million following the
reduction of debt from the net proceeds of the primary offering of the initial public offering (IPO). The debt
facilities were refinanced at the same time as the IPO at lower rates than the prior debt facility.

The effective tax rate charged on the adjusted operating profit was 21.0% and on the adjusted profit before tax
was 26.0%. The actual tax rate on the reported profit before tax was 25.4%. The rates for the prior period are
not meaningful as the capital structure was materially different.

The growth in the adjusted earnings per share (Adjusted EPS) is a key performance indicator management will
adopt when monitoring financial performance going forward. For the period under review the capital structure
changed materially at the time of the IPO due to the issue of new shares and the repayment and subsequent
refinancing of the debt. The Adjusted EPS using the Adjusted Net Profit of the Group of €87.7 million divided by
the number of shares in issue at the year end of 130,016,755 is €0.67.

In North America, Applus+ purchased three companies with revenue of €22 million from IAG and other third
party shareholders: X-Ray Industries, N-Ray Services and Arcadia Aerospace which are the premier suppliers of
Non Destructive Testing to the aerospace market and gas turbine industry. The companies, with 74 years of
history, have over 200 employees and operate primatily from 7 locations across the USA and Canada and a
further 10 co-locations embedded within customer facilities. X-Ray Industries and N-Ray Services will form part
of the Applus+ RTD division and will reinforce the division s strong presence in the North American market.
Arcadia Aerospace will be part of Applus+ Laboratories and will be this division "s first entry into the US market.
The acquisition closed at the start of 2015 following the receipt of the necessary approvals from the US
authorities.
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In Latin America, Applus+ purchased Ingeiog, a supplier of engineering and project management services to the
civil and private infrastructure industries in the region. This acquisition of the leading provider of these services in
Chile will support the strong growth and development of Applus+ Norcontrol in Latin America and is expected to
add initial annual revenue of €18 million. The acquisition closed at the end of October 2014.

In October 2014 the Group disposed of Applus+ RTD in Belgium which accounted for €6.5 million revenue in the
full year of 2013 as it lacked the critical mass to generate good profitable growth within Applus+-.

Capital expenditure was €47.8 million in the year, a reduction from €52.3 million from last year. The ratio of
capital expenditure to revenue was 3.0%.

The adjusted operating cash flow, expressed after capital expenditure and taxes, increased by 29% to €132.3
million as a consequence of the increase in profit and tight management of working capital. The adjusted free
cash flow expressed as adjusted operating cash flow less financial expenses, increased by 83% to €107.4 million.

As a recently listed company, the Board wilt propose at the Group 's first annual general meeting of shareholders
(AGM) this year, the payment of a dividend of €0.13 per share. This is equivalent to €16.9 million and is 19.3%
of the Adjusted Net Income of €87.7 million as shown in the summary finandal results table above. This is in line
with the guidance given at the time of the IPQ. The dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the AGM will be
paid within a short period after this meeting.

The financial leverage of the group measured as Net Debt to last twelve months adjusted EBITDA (operating
profit before depreciation, amortisation, impairment and others) has reduced significantly following the use of
the IPO proceeds to pay down debt. The ratio was 3.1x (2013: 4.7x) at the end of the period.

The new five year debt facilities entered into by the Group at the time of the IPO are sufficient to ensure good
liguidity for the medium and longer term. Further information on these is provided in Note 14 to the finandial
statements.

Outlook

The Group currently expects to deliver revenue this year approximately in-line with last year, on an organic
constant currency basis. With the benefit of current exchange rates and acquisitions already made, this converts
to mid-single digits total reported revenue growth.

The overall adjusted operating profit margin is expected to be flat to down on the prior year level.

The longer term drivers in the various industries served by Applus+ are favourable. The current uncertainty on
the ol and gas industry will inevitably have some impact on Group revenue in the short term, but the continuing
and longer term demand for verification of energy assets must increase due to the global requirement for more
energy infrastructure as well as the ageing of the existing asset base. The parts of the Group unrelated to oil and
gas also hold favourable long term growth drivers, from increased demand for safety and quality services and
the increased expansion of the Applus+ nebtwork into new territories.

Operating review by division
Applus+ RTD

Applus+ RTD is a leading global provider of Non Destructive Testing services to clients in the oil and gas
industry, power utilities, aerospace and civil infrastructure industries. Services and tools provided by the division
are to inspect and test the mechanical, structural and materials integrity of critical assets either at the time of
construction or when in use, such as pipelines, pressure vessels and storage tanks without causing damage to
those assets. The division has a workforce of 4,000 employees and is active in [25] countries across five
continents.
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Revenue 58630 558.6
% Change . 03%m (1.9}%
Adj.Op.Profit - = 48.2 a74 9.4
% Change ) y 1.7% {2.5)%
Margin CLBB% . 8T% - 89%

The figures shown in the table are rounded for clarity of presentation. The
percentage changes and margins are calculated from the un-rounded numbers.

* FY 2013 Proforma is restated at constant exchange rates and excluding the
divested Belgium operation

Applus+ RTD reported both revenue and organic revenue growth of 0.3% at constant exchange rates. Total
reported revenue declined by 1.9% due to a negative currency impact and the effect of the disposal of the non-
strategic business in Belgium part way through the year,;

The adjusted operating profit margin of 8.8% increased by 10bps on an organic basis, and declined by 10bps as
reported due to currency.

The maijority of the busihess lines and regions, especially in Europe, Canada, Middle East and Australia
performed well as did the parts of North America unrelated to New Construction Pipelines. Following the
completion of several large New Construction Pipeline projects in North America in the first quarter, and the
expected new ones being absent in the second half of the year, the organic revenue growth of the division
declined in the second half against the high-teens growth of the prior year’s second half resulting in flat organic
revenue for the full year of 2014.

In the last quarter of the year, the Group agreed the purchase, in the United States and Canada, of X-Ray
Industries and N-Ray Services that fall under the umibrélla of the Integrity Aerospace Group (IAG). These
businesses that generated approximately € 20 million of revenue in 2014 provide non-deéstructive testing services
to the US aerospace and industrial gas turbine industries providing Applus+ RTD with an entry into this important
ancillary market. Also part of this acquisition is a third company called Arcadia Aerospace with almost €2 million
of revenue that will form part of Applus+ Laboratories division. This acquisition was closed at the start of the year
following the receipt of permits required from US authorities.

In view of the importance of USA to this division, the Group recently hired a new regional manager to strengthen
the local leadership.

The outlook for the division in 2015 is uncertain following the fall of the oil price impacting spending by the oil
and gas industry. At the oil price levels seen in the last few months, the Group expects organic revenue in this
division to fall by approximately mid-single digits. This will be offset by the net inorganic revenue contribution and
potentially positive currency benefit, assuming exchange rates remain at their current levels. Appropriate action is
being taken with costs being reduced, but despite this the margin is expected to deteriorate slightky.

The structural drivers for non-destructive testing of energy assets remain positive through the periodic cycles that
the energy industry experiences. The continuing and longer term requirements for verification of energy assets
must increase due to the longer term global requirement for more energy infrastructure as well as the ageing of
the existing asset base. This is supplemented by the almost 20% of the division now unrelated to Qil & Gas that
has strong growth prospects.

Applus+ Velosi

Applus+ Velosi is the leading global provider of vendor surveillance (third party inspection and auditing services
to monitor compliance with client specifications in procurement transactions), site inspection, certification and
asset integrity as well as specialised manpower services primarily to companies in the oil and gas industry,

23



Applus+ Velosi is active in [45] countries around the world with a workforce of over 5,500 employees. Further
specialised personnel are contracted by the division to work on specific projects for a specific time period.

36L7 3726

%Chqn_g;é o i 8.6% 5.4%
Adj. Op. Profit”” 341 309 319
% Change ‘ 10.0% 6.8%
Margin. ~ . 87% = 86% - 86%

The figures shown in the table are rounded for clarity of presentation. The percentage
changes and margins are talculated from the un-rounded numbers.

* FY 2013 Proforma Is restated at constant exchange rates.

Applus+ Velosi reported for the full year at constant exchange rates, revenue growth of 8.6% and organic
revenue growth of 5.6%. Total reported revenue growth was 5.4% which included additional revenue from an
acquisition made at the end of 2013 less a negative currency impact.

The adjusted operating profit margin of 8.7% was 10bps higher than the prior year on both an arganic and
reported basis.

Significant revenue growth came from an extension of an existing contract in Africa, increased activity in the
Middle East and new contracts in the US. Other regions also performed well. In Asia Pacific where some material
offshore capex related technical inspection contracts came to an end, revenue was down on the prior year.

Applus+ Velosi has a strong offering and many long term contracts. Nevertheless, with the fall of the oil price, this
division is not immune to customer pressure on pricing, risk of reduced scope of work on renewals and lack of
new oil and gas projects coming to market. If the oil price levels seen in the last few months remain to the end of
the year, it is expected the 2015 organic revenue in this division to hold approximately steady with last year.

Costs are being reduced in this division which will mitigate the margin pressure Applus+ Velosi will suffer in the
year.

The succession of Dr Nabil Abd Jalil by Ramon Fernandez Armas as Chief Executive of this division has
progressed smoothly and the Applus+ Velosi and Applus+ Norcontrol divisions have now been integrated.
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Applus+ Norcontrol

Applus+ Norcontrol primarily provides quality assurance, quality control, testing and inspection (including
statutory inspection) and project management services to the utilities, telecommunications, oil and gas, minerals
and civil infrastructure sectors. Applus+ Norcontrol also provides health, safety and environmental {HSE)
consultancy, testing and inspection. The division is active in more than [fifteen] countries with over 4,800
employees with global management control split by Latin America and Spain and Rest of World.

Revenue  ,.2057. = 1823 1862
% Change o, 128% 105%
Adj.op.Profit - 179 17 15.0 152
% Change o 19.2% 17.5%
Margin L 8T%TT 8% 8.2%

The figures shown in the table are rounded for clarity of presentation. The
percentage changes and margins are calculated from the un-rounded numbers.

* FY 2013 Proforma is restated at constant exchange rates.

Applus+ Norcontrol reported for the full year revenue growth of 12.8% and organic revenue growth of 11.1%

each at constant exchange rates. Total reported revenue growth of 10.5% included two months additional
revenue from the acquisition of Ingelog less a negative currency impact.

The adjusted operating profit margin of 8.7% was 50bps higher than the prior year.

This strong level of growth came primarily from winning new contracts in Latin America and the Middle East. The

Spanish market grew low single digits for the year which is a significant turnaround following several years of
decline.

Applus+ Norcontrol in Latin America is the largest region outside of Spain and is benefiting from the considerable
civil and energy infrastructure investment in the region.

At the end of 2014, the Group announced the acquisition of Ingelog in Chile, a supplier of project management

services to the civil and private infrastructure industries in the region and which reperied revenue of €18 million in
2014.

The drivers for Applus+ Norcontrol are favourable with the Spanish market expected to continue to grow
moderately and expansion into overseas markets expected to provide stronger growth with the Middle East,
North Africa and Mexico being at the forefront. This should result in arganic revenue at constant exchange rates
growing at least mid-single digits in 2015 with further margin frmprovement.
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Applus+ Laboratories

Applus+ laboratories provides a range of laboratory-based product testing, management system certification
and product development services to clients in a wide range of industries including the aerospace, oil & gas and
electronic payment sectors. Applus+ Laboratories operates from [twelve] laboratories, employs approximately
600 people in [ten] countries.

ey

‘Revenue 46.9 45,5 56.6

% Change _ 2% {124)%
Adj. Op. Profit 2.0 20
% Change . 0.0%
Margin =~ . 42% .. . 44%

The figures shown In the table are rounded for clarity of presentation. The
percentage changes and margins are calculated from the urrrounded
numbers.

* FY 20413 Proforma is restated at constant exchange rates and excuding
the divested Agrofood business

Applus+ Laboratories reported full year organic revenue growth of 3.2% at constant exchange rates, but total
reported revenue deglined by 17.1% due to the disposal at the start of the year of the Agrofood business.

The adjusted operating profit margin of 4.2% was 20bps lower on an organic basis and 80bps higher than the
prior year on a reported basis. The margin was supported by the disposal of the low margin Agrofood business,
but on an organic basis was reduced by poor performance in Systems Certification as well as the start-up costs
for a new laboratory in Saudi Arabia.

Sectors that grew well were Building Products and Aerospace from the Spanish based laboratories and the Qil &
Gas business in Norway, but this was offset by poor performance in the Systems Certification business that
serves the Spanish market. A newly built laboratory in Saudi Arabia for the testing of materials and consumer
products manufactured and entering the country received full accreditation towards the end of the year and this is
expected to be profitable in 2015.

In the last quarter of the year, the Group agreed the purchase of Arcadia Aerospace that is part of the Integrity
Aerospace Group acquired with Applus+ RTD which provides testing services of composite materials of
aerospace components. This is a key focus area of the Applus+ Laboratories division and provides a strategic
new entry position into the North American market. This business generated approximately € 2 million of revenue
in 2014. This acquisition was closed at the start of the year following receipt of permits required from the US
authorities.

The outlook for 2015 is for revenue growth to accelerate to mid-single digits on an organic basis and at least
high single digits including the revenue from the acquisition and potentially favourable currency benefit if
exchange rates remain at current levels. The adjusted operating profit margin is expected to increase
significantly.
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Applus+ Automotive

Applus+ Automotive is the second largest provider, measured by number of inspections, of statutory vehicle
inspection services globally. The Group provides. vehidle inspection and certification services across a number of
jurisdictions in which periodic vehicle inspections for compliance with technical safety and environmental
specifications are mandatory. The Group cartied out more than [10] million vehicle inspections in 2014 across
Spain, Ireland, Denmark, Finland, the United States, Argentina, Chile and Andorra and this division employs
approximately 3,300 people.

Revenue 2797 . 2662 273.6

% Change i 5.1% 2.2%
Ad.Op.Profit. . 60.0 574 59.1
% Change . y 54% . 16%
Margin =~ .07 2L5H% 0. 214% 0 i 21.6%

The figures shown in the table are rounded for clarity of presentation.
The percentage changes and margins are calculated frem the un-
rounded numbers.

* FY 2013 Proforma is restated at constant exchange rates

Applus+ Automotive reported for the full year organic revenue growth of 3.7% at constant exchange rates and
total reported revenue growth of 5.1% which included additional revenue from the acquisition of new stations
from a company in Denmark made at the end of 2013, less a negative currency impact.

The adjusted operating profit margin of 21.5% was stable with the prior year.

The division performed well considering the impact of several contractual changes during the year. Strong
revenue growth came from the existing contracts in Latin America and Ireland, with the latter benefiting from
additionat ancillary contracts awarded during the year as well as a step up in enforcement from the authorities in
the final quarter. In Chile, Applus+ is confirmed on four new contracts although the overall revenue and profit will
initially be lower than the previous contracts. Revenue from Spain was slightly lower than the prior year due to a
price réduction on the Alicante contract, increased competition allowed into the Canary islands and two fewer
stations in the Basque country offset by new stations built in Madrid. North America had lower revenue due to the
end of the equipment sales contract in Ontario, although this was compensated for by good underlying growth
and very good sales of proprietary inspection egquipment in California.

The outlook for 2015 is positive. There are no material contracts expected to terminate or resize during the year,
including the emissions contract in lllinois. Overall, the division is expected to generate organic revenue growth at
constant exchange rates in the low single digits range and again maintain margins approximately level with last
year.
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Applus+ IDIADA

Applus+ IDIADA provides services to the world s leading vehicle manufacturers. These include safety and
performance testing, engineering services and homologation (regulatory approval). The Group also operates
what it believes is the world's most advanced independent proving ground near Barcelona and has a broad dient
presence across the world s car manufacturers. Applus+ IDIADA employs approximately 1,800 people and is
represented in [22] countries.

:

Revenue 1455. , 1316 - 1325
% Change _ 20.6% 9.8%
Adji.Op:Profit - | 190 . 176 176
% Change - ) i 7.9% _82%
Margin . © . 134%  © 13.4% . (139

The figures shown in the table are rounded for clarity of presentation. The
percentage changes and margins are calculated from the un-rounded numbers.

* FY 2013 Proforma is restated at constant exchange rates

Applus+ IDIADA reported full year organic revenue growth of 10.6% at constant exchange rates and total
reported revenue growth of 9.8% due to a negative currency impact.

The adjusted operating profit margin of 13.1% was slightly under the prior year mainly due to increased
depreciation following increased investment.

The division performed very well across all business lines and geographies except for the small operations in
India and Brazil which are now in the process of being restructured. Revenue growth outside of the core Spanish
market increased at a faster pace increasing the diversification and penetration into other European and Asian
markets.

During the year Applus+ IDIADA commenced the design and building of a new extensive proving ground in
China which is expected to be complete by the end of this year. Applus+ IDIADA will manage the ground which
will enable it to reach a far wider Asian automotive customer base.

The outlook for this division is good, with organic revenue expected to grow at high single digits and the margin
to remain at similar fevels.

Main risks facing the Group

The main business risks facing the Group are those typical of the businesses in which it operates and of the
current macroeconomic environment. The Group actively manages the main risks and considers that the controls
designed and implemented fo that effect are effective in mitigating the impact of these risks when they
materialise.

The main purpose of the Group's financial risk management activity is to assure the availability of funds for the
timely fulfiment of financial obligations and to protect the value in euros of the Group's economic flows and
assets and liabilities.

This management is based on the identification of risks, the determination of tolerance to each risk, the hedging
of financial risks, and the control of the hedging relationships established.

The Group's policy hedges all significant and intolerable risk exposures as long as there are adequate
instruments for this purpose and the hedging cost is reasonable. The main financial risks 1o which the Group is
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exposed and the practices established are are detailed in the corresponding notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Quality and Environment

Quality, the environment and health and safety are elements that form an integral part of the Applus Group's
activiies and culture.

in the performance of our services, we make an effort to improve our management systems in a safe and
sustainable way with the aim of achieving customer satisfaction, as well as, the satisfaction of our employees and
suppliers.

The operational implementation of this commitment is integrated into all levels of divisional, regional and country
management with the active support of our entire team.

We achieved these changes by establishing good practices which promote and encourage numerous initiafives
implemented at local level. In this connection, responsible behavior and practice is fostered throughout the
business.

The principles governing these activities are included in our health and safety, quality and environment policy, all
of which are in line with the guidelines of the 1SO 2001, 1ISC 14001 and 1SO 18001 standards.

Research and development expenditure

The Applus Group maintains_a constant interest in research and development activities, which are mainly carried
on through the Applus+ IDIADA, Applus+ Laboratories and Applus+ RTD divisions.

The Applus+ IDIADA division, which offers design, testing, engineering and certification services in the
autormotive industry, continues to be at the forefront of the development of the most innovative techniques in
order to offer our customers the services they require to meet their high technology needs.

Continuing with the strategic line of consolidating itself as a reference in the innovation of high technology
services for customers, Applus+ IDIADA has developed important projects structured into four lines of activity;

Green vehicles

Integrated Safety
Advanced Cormmunications
Virtual Proving Ground

Applus+ IDIADA is camying out several projects related to each line that will develop into new or improved
services.

Appius+ Laboratories has carried out several projects focus mainly on two lines:

*  Manufacturing composite material for aeronautical, automotive and building industries;
¢« Transaction and communication security (hardware and software) within the information technology
sector

Applus+ RTD division is a leading global energy service provider, delivering technical assurance through non-
destructive testing, inspection, and certification fo the energy, public service and infrastructure industries.

Applus+ RTD is a worldwide leader in the creation of advanced non-destructive testing working in the vanguard
of R&D for the industry. With its technological epicentre in Rotterdam, it has developed an important range of
ultrasound probes, designed and produced in accordance with current legal standards and guidelines, using the
latest design, modelling, engineering and production tools.
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The objectives driving the teams of specialists in research and development are to optimise existing techniques
and to create new, highly efficient and reliable technologies and methodologies which meet the many and varied
challenges set by the industry. The R&D team is continuously involved in intensive projects to develop new
solutions to emerging issues, while improving existing technologies to set new standards. We work in partnership
with our clients and other specialists on industrial projects, while collaborating with academic institutions such as
universities and other research institutions.

Treasury share transactions

In 2014 the Parent recognised under "Equity" treasury shares amounting EUR 5,407 thousand arising from an
equity swap agreement with a financial institution to hedge the acquisition cost of 550,000 treasury shares to be
physically-settled, and that the Parent must partially deliver to certain executives. This agreement matures on 30
April 2015, date in which the Company will receive the shares from the financial institution. Consequently, on 9
May 2015 the Parent must deliver some of the aforementioned shares to the various executives.

Events after the reporting period

These consolidated financial statements are presented on the basis of the regulatory financial reporting
framework applicable to the Group (see Note 2.a). Certain accounting practices applied by the Group that
conform with that regulatory framewoerk may not conform with other generally accepted accounting principles and
rules.

Use of financial instruments

The Group uses financial derivatives to eliminate or significantly reduce certain interest rate and foreign currency
risks refating to its assets. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

During 2014 the Group has not acquired any financial derivative instruments, in exception to the equity swap
agreement explained in the “Treasury share transactions” of this report.

Also, during 2014 all of the interest rate derivatives acquired in prior years have matured, and management has
decided not to acquire new derivatives.
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Disclosures on the payment periods to suppliers

The Group companies with tax domicile in Spain have adjusted their payment periods to adapt them to Additional
Provision Three “Disclosure obligation” of Law 15/2010, of 5 July. As required by the aforementioned Law, the
disclosures relating to the payments made and outstanding at year-end are as follows;

Amounts paid and payable at year-end (in
thousands of earos)
2014 2013

Amount % Amount %
Paid in the maximum payment period 69,520 48% 38,6231 46%
Remainder 74,055 52% 67,636 | 54%
Total payments made in the year 143,575 100% 126,259 | 100%
Weighted average period of late payment (days) 104 108
Weighted average period of late payment (days) 44 48
Payments at the end of the period not made in the

. : 4,311 5,171

maximum payment period

The data shown in the foregoing table relate exclusively to the Spanish companies, which are those with a
payment period that is significantly greater than the Group average of 48 days. The data shown in the foregoing
table on payments to suppliers relate to the suppliers that because of their natire are trade creditors for the
supply of goods-and services and, therefore, it includes the figures relating to “Trade Payables” under “Current
Liabilities” in the consoclidated balance sheet. However, the vast majority of the aforementioned payables was
paid within 2015.

Weighted average period of late payment was calculated as the quotient whose numerator is the result of
multiplying the payments made to suppliers outside the maximum payment period by the number of days of late
payment and whose denominator is the total amount of the payments made in the year outside the maximum
payment period, The maximum payment period applicable to the Spanish consolidated companies under Law
3/2004, of 29 December, on combating late payment in commercial transactions, is 60 days. The maximum legal
payment period for 2013 was 80 days.

The Group’s Spanish companies are gradually adapting its method of payment to the latest updates of the norm.
Likewise, during 2014 the Group’s Spanish companies have received from its suppliers invoices with significant
amounts and maturity dates close to expiration, thus the Group’s Spanish companies have had to adjust its
payment date in accordance to its treasury budgets at that time, resulting in a period longer than 60 days from
the date the invoice was issued.
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Barcelona, 24 February 2015

D. Christopher Cole
Chairman

D. Ernesto Gerardo Mata Lépez
Director

D. Pedro de Esteban Ferrer
Director

D. Alex Wagenberg Bondarovschi
Director

D. Mario Pardo Roio
Director

D. John Daniel Hofmeister
Director

D. Josep Maria Panicello Primé
Director

D. Fernando Basabe Armijo
Director

D. Richard Campbell Nelson
Director

Diligence extended by the Secretary of the Board of Directors to certify that the Directors D. Pedro de Esteban
Ferrer and D. Josep Maria Panicello not sign this document due fo excused absence for professional reasons
and without prejudice to the need into account its favourable vote, having being represented and voting by the
Directors D. Alex Wagenberg Bondarovschi and D. Mario FPardo Rojo, respectively.
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] ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT OF LISTED COMPANIES |

A. OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

Al

A2

Complete the following table about the share capital of the company:

Date of last change

Share capital (€)

Number of shares

Number of
Voting rights

8/05/2014

13,001,675.50

130,016,755

130,016,755

State whether there are different classes of shares with different rights

attaching thereto:

Yes []

No [X]

Breakdown of direct and indirect holders of significant shareholdings in the
company as of the end of the financial year, excluding directors:

Individual or company name of the | Number of direct N_und'lper tof % of total voting
shareholder voting rights Indirec rights
voting rights
AMERIPRISE FINANCIAL, INC 0 5.000.000 3.85%
GIC PRIVATE LIMITED 8.000.000 0 6,15%
CEP lll PARTICIPATIONS, S.ar.l. SICAR 0 45.151.582 35,50%
Individual or company name of the | Individual or company name of the [Number of voting
indirect sharehoider direct shareholder rights
THREADNEEDLE ASSET
AMERIPRISE FINANCIAL, INC MANAGEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 5.600.000
CEP 1 PARTé%TﬁT'ONS' sarl AZUL HOLDING, S.C A, 46.151.582

State the most significant changes in the shareholding structure that have
occurred during the financial year:

Individual or company name of the
shareholder

Date of transaction

Description of transaction

It has decreased below 40% in the

CEP HI Participations S.a r.l SICAR 9/05/2014 N
capital stock
o
Morgan Stanley 2610512014 It has decreasgd below 10% in the
capital stock
. o
Carmignac Gestion, S.A. 23/06/2014 It has decreased below 3% in the

capital stock
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It has decreased below 3% in the
UBS AG 10/C7/2014 capital stock

It has decreased below 3% in the
Deutsche Bank AG 06/10/2014 capital stock

: p ; It has decreased below 3% in the
Credit Suisse Group AG 10/12/2014 capital stock

A3. Complete the following tables about members of the board of directors of
the company who have voting rights attaching to shares of the company:

) Number of indirect| % of total voting
Number of direct i | )
Individual or company name of voting rights vating rights rights
the director
MR. FERNANDO BASABE ARMIJO 344.828 o 0,27
MR. CHRISTOPHER COLE 6.897 0 0,0%
Total percentage of voting rights held by the board of directors: 0.27%

Complete the following tables about members of the company's board of
directors who hold rights over the company’s shares:

A4 State, if applicable, the family, commercial, contractual, or corporate
relationships hetween significant shareholders, to the extent known to the
company, unless they are immaterial or result from the ordinary course of
business:

A5 State, if applicable, the commercial, contfractual, or corporate
relationships between significant shareholders and the company and/or
its group, uhless they are immaterial or resulf from the ordinary course
of business:

A.6 State whether any shareholders’ agreements affecting the company
pursuant to the provisions of sections 530 and 531 of the Companies Act
(Ley de Seciedades de Capital) have been reported to the company. If so,
briefly describe them and list the shareholders bound by the agreement:

Yes [ ] No

State whether the company is aware of the existence of concerted actions
among its shareholders. If so, briefly describe them:

ves [ ] No

Expressly state whether any of such agreements, arrangements or
concerted actions have been modified or terminated during the financial
year:

N/A
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AT

State whether there is any individual or legal entity that exercises or may
exercise control over the company pursuant to article 4 of the Securities Market
Act (Ley del Mercado de Valores). If so, identify it:

Yes No [ ]

Individual or company name

CEP |l Participations S.ar.l. SICAR and GEP Il Participations S.ar.l. SICAR

Comments

Given that CEP Il Participations S.a r.l. SICAR and CEP It Parsticipations S.a r.l.
SICAR still directly or indirectly hold a material number of shares of the company,
although they represent less than half the capital stock, they continue fo exercise a
certain influence over the decisions approved by the company's General
Shareholders Meeting and Board of Directors.

A8

A9

Complete the following tables about the company's treasury shares:

As of year-end:

Number of direct shares Number of indirect shares (*) | Total % of share
capital
0 0 ’ 0%
{*)Through:

Describe any significant changes, pursuant to the provisions of Royal
Decree 1362/2007, which have occurred during the financial year:

Describe the terms and conditions and the duration of the mandate
currently in force given by the shareholders to the board of directors in
order to issue, repurchase or transfer the shares of the company:

The General Shareholders Meeting of 25 March 2014 unanimously agreed to
“authorise the Company’s Board of Directors so it may proceed with a derivative
acquisition of its own shares, both directly by the Company itself and indiractly by its
controlled companies, in the terms established below:

a) The acquisition may be made as a sale and purchase, swap or dation in
payment, once or several times, provided that the shares acquired, when
added to those already held by the Company, do not exceed 10% of the
capital stock;

b) The price or counfervalue will range between the face value of the shares
and 110% of their listed price; and

¢) The authorisation will remain valid uniil the approval of the annual accounts
for the financial year ending 31 December 2014.

Furthermore and for the purposes of article 146.1, paragraph two, of the Companies
Act, the General Shareholders Meeting hereby unanimously agrees to granf an
express authorisation fo acquire Company shares in favour of any of the controfled
companies, in the same terms resulting from this resolution.

For the necessary purposes, if is hereby expressly noted that any shares acquired as
a resulf of this authorisation may be used both for disposal or redemption, or fowards
the remunerstion systems foreseen in arlicle 146.1, paragraph three, of the
Companies Act.

Y il oo

listed on the Sfock Exchange Markets of Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbac and Valencia”.

Thic anthoricatinn will ha offortiva ac nf tho Adafe tha Comnany charac ara nffiniafis
SIME QUINONEIIon will De gilieclive ag or INe Jdale Ine L.ompan are oricialy
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A2

B.2

NOTE: In furn, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 28 July 2014
unanimously agreed to establish an ad hoc committee in order to determine the
date and number of own shares to be acquired, pursuant to the terms and
conditions included in the Incentives Plan and for any other purpose that may be
beneficial for the corporate interest.

State whether there are any restrictions on the transfer of securifies
andfor amy restriction on voting rights. In particular, disclose the
existence of any restrictions that might hinder a takeover of the company
through the acquisition of its shares in the market.

Yes No [ ]

NOTE: As it is market practice in initial public offerings operations, on 7 May
2014, before its shares were listed on the stock exchange markets of Madrid,
Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia, the company executed an Underwriting
Agreement whereby both the company and Azul Holding S.C.A and Azul Finance
S.a r.l, then shareholders of the company, undertook not to transfer their shares
in the company over a pericd of 180 days following the listing date of its shares,
without the consent of the global coordinators of the issue. Furthermore, the
Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer of the company will not be able to transfer their shares over a
period of 380 days following the listing date of the company shares, without the
consent of the global coordinators of the issue.

State whether the general shareholders' meeting have approved the adoption

measures to neutralize a public takeover bid, pursuant to the provisions of Law
6/2007:

Yes [ ] Mo

If applicable, describe the approved measures and the terms on which the
restrictions will become ineffective:

State whether the company has issued securities that are not traded on a
regulated markef within the European Community.

Yes [ ] No

If applicable, state the different share clases and, for each of them, the
rights and obligations.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
State and, if applicable, explain whether there are differences with the minimum

requirements set out in the Companies Act in connection with the quorum
needed to hold a valid general shareholders' meeting.

ves [ ] No

State and, if applicable, explain any differences from the rules set out in the
Companies Act for the adoption of corporate resolutions:

Yes [ | No

Describe how they differ from the rules provided by the Companies Act.
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B.3

B.4

B.5

B.6

B.7

State the rules applicable to the amendment of the by-laws of the
company. In particular, disclose the majorities provided for amending the
by-laws, and any rules provided for the protection of the rights of the
shareholders in the amendment of the by-laws.

COMPANY BY-LAWS

Article 19.2 of the company By-laws provides that all resclutions will be adopted
with the favorable vote of more than half the voting shares, present or
represented at a General Shareholders Meeting, unless a qualified majority is
required by the Act or the Company By-laws. The General Meeting Regulations
will describe the procedures and sysiems used to calculate the votes issued on
any proposed resolutions.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS MEETING REGULATIONS

In order for a General Meeting fo validly convened, if an amendment of the By-taws is
intended, article 16.8 (b) of the Regulations will apply, whereby it will be necessary
the assistance of shareholders, present or represented at first call that hold at least
fifty per cent {50%) of the voting capital stock subscribed. At second call, it will suffice
for twenty-five per cent (25%) of the capital stock to attend.

In order for the General Sharehoiders Meeting to adopt resolutions that entail an
amendment of the By-aws, at least two thirds (2/3) of the voting capital stock in
attendance must vote in favour, as foreseen in article 21.1 (b) of the General
Shareholders Meeting Regulations.

State the data on attendance at the general shareholders' meetings held
during the financial year referred to in this report and those of the prior
financial year:

Attendance data
% of % of % absentee votin
D;;%:EEEIE}?';?I sl‘;)arzesr;c:‘ltdia; rs rzg:;::::gsr:y Electro:lic vofing Ogther Total
person proxy

4 March 2014 100% 0% 0% 0% 100%
25 March 2014 100% 0% 0% 0% 100%
4 April 2014 100% 0% 0% 0% 100%
22 April 2014 100% 0% % 0% 100%
7 May 2614 160% 0% 0% 0% 100%

State whether there are any By-law restrictions requiring a minimum
number of shares to attend the general shareholders' meeting.

Yes |:| No

State whether it has been resolved that certain decisions involving a
structural modification of the company (“subsidiarisation", purchase/sale of
core operafing assets, transactions equivalent to the liquidation of the
company, etc.) must be submitted for approval by the shareholders at a
general shareholders' meeting, even if not expressly required by Commergial
Laws.

Yes No [ ]

State the address and method for accessing the company's website to access
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information regarding corporate governance and other information regarding

general

shareholders through the company's website.

shareholders’ meetings that must be made available to the

The corporate website is available at www.applus.com. At the top, under “Investor
Relations”, full information is provided on corporate governance and General

Meetings.

Specifically,

through

the

hitp:/Awww. zapplus. comies/investorRaiations/Corporate-governance

following

links-

and

http:/fwww applus. com/es/investorRelations/Shareholders-meetings - direct access is

provided to information on corporate goverhance and General Meetings, respectively,

STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY'S MANAGEMENT

Board of directors

C141 Maximum and minimum number of directors set forth in the By-
laws:
Maximum number of directors 9
Minimum number of directors 7
c1.2 Complete the following table identifying the members of the
board:
co::g;‘:;’f:ﬂ?; of| Representative| POSitionon| Date offirst | Date of last Election
] i i r
the diractor Board appointment | appointment procedure
GENERAL
MR. CHRISTOPHER SHAREHOL DERS
COLE NA CHAIRMAN 07/05/2014 O7/05/14 MEETING
RESOLUTION
MR, FERNANDO GENERAL
BASABE ARMIIO NIA DIRECTOR 01/02/2011 04/03/2014 SHAREHOLDERS
MEETING RESOLUTION
MR. RICHARD GENERAL
CAMPBELL NELSON N/A DIRECTOR 01/10/2009 04/03/2014 SHAREHOLDERS
RAC IR DO | IT Uk
MR. PEDRO DE GENERAL
ESTEBAN FERRER N/A BDIRECTOR 271092007 04/04/2014 SHAREHOLDERS
MR. JOHN DANIEL
NiA DIRECTOR 1/07/2013 041032014 GENERAL
HOFME!STER SHAREHOLDERS
MR- ERNESTO MATA NiA DIRECTOR 20/11/2007 04/03/2014 GENERAL
LOPEZ SHAREHOLDER
MR. JOSEP MARIA GENERAL
PANICELLD PRIME N/A DIRECTOR 0811012013 040372014 SHAR AL o
MR. MARIO PARDG NiA DIRECTOR 27/0812007 04/04/2014 GENERAL
ROJC SHAREHOLDERS
MR. ALEX
WAGENBERG N/A DIRECTOR 27/09/2007 04/04/2014 SH AGR%%%?;'ERS
BONDAROVSCHI MEETING RESOLUTION
[ Total number of directors ]
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State the vacancies on the board of directors during the reporting
period:

c1.3

Individual or company Status of the Date of vacancy
name of the director director at time of
vacancy

AZUL MANQ?_FMENT SA Proprietary 4 Aprit 2014
(IIJHXEES'I'%%LUYI%}.Ggggi Proprietary 4 April 2014
CEP Il ADVISOR, SAR.L. Proprietary 4 April 2014
CEP Il AET.SOR’ SA Proprictary 4 April 2014
MR. CARLOS KINDER Proprietary 4 April 2014
MR. CHRISTOPHER FINN Proprietary 4 April 2014
MRS;CJ)EQF';‘ L Proprietary 4 April 2014
MR. JOQSHLNA SOELLO Proprietary 7 May 2014

Complete the following table about the members of the
board and each member's status:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Individual or company
name of director

Committee that has
reported on the
director's
appointment

Position within the
company’'s
structure

MR. FERNANDO BASABE
ARMIJC

APPOINTMENTS AND
REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Total number of executive tirectors

Total % of the board

11.41%

EXTERNAL PROPRIETARY DIRECTORS

Individual or company
name of director

Committee that
has reported on
the director's
appointment

Individual or company
name of the significant
shareholder
represented by the
director or that has

proposed the director's

appointment

MR. PEDRO DE ESTEBAN
FERRER

IAPPOINTMENTS AND

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Azul Holding, 3.C.A

MR, ALEX WAGENBERG
BONDAROVSCHI

IAPPOINTMENTS AND

REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE
LOLOL T L el

Azul Holding, 5.C.A
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IAPPOINTMENTS AND
REMUNERATION

MR. MARIC PARDO RCJO COMMITTEE Azul Holding, S.C.A

MR, JOSEP MARIA APPOINTMENTS
PANICELLQ PRIME AND Azul Holding, 5.C.A,

REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE
Total number of proprietary directors 4
Total % of the board 44.44%

EXTERNAL INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Individual or company Profile
name director

See description below Ditto

Director's identity or name: MR. CHRISTOPHER COLE

Profile: Mr: Cole holds a Degree in Environmental Engineering from
Borcugh Polytechnic (Unlver5|ty of South Bark) and is an associate
engineer in the United Klngdom Furthermore, Mr. Cole completed an
Executive Management Course at INSEAD, France, in 1999, Mr. Cole
founded WSP Group Plc, a professional services company that was
listed on the London Stock Exchange in 1987. Mr. Cole held the post of
Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of the company until it merged with
Genivar, inc. in 2012, whereupon he was appointed non-execufive.
chairman of the entity resulting from the merger, WSP Global Inc.,
whose shares were listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange. Currently,
WMr. Cole is also non-executive chairman of Ashtead Group Plc, senior
independent director of Infinis Energy Plc and non-executive chairman
of Tracsis Plc.

Director's identity or name: MR. ERNESTO GERARDO MATA
LOPEZ

Profile: Mr. Mata Lopez holds a Degree in Economics and MA from
the University of Geneva and an MBA from IESE (Barcelona). Mr.
Mata Lépez has developed extensive experience in the energy and
capital markets sectors. He was a director of Unién Fenosa, S.A. (now
Gas Natural SDG, S.A), Unién Fenosa Soluziona, S.A., Compaiiia
Espafiola de Pelrdleos, S.A. and Abertis Infraestructuras, S.A., where
he was the chairman of the audit committee. Currently, Mr. Mata Lopez
is a member of the advisory board of Abertis Infraestructuras, S.A.,
chairman of the board of Pagaralia, S.L., Senior Advisor to Matlin
Patterson Global Advisers LLC, member of the board of Factor
Energia, S.A., Toro Finance, S.L. and a member of the advisory board
of Herbert Smith Freehills LLP (Spain).

Director's identity or name: MR. JOHN DANIEL HOFMEISTER

Profile: Mr. Hofmeister holds a Bachelor's and Master's Degree in
Political Science from Kansas State University. In May 2010 he was
awarded an honorary doctorate from the University of Houston. In May
2014 he was awarded an honorary doctorate from Kansas State
University. Mr. Hofmeister was the President of Shell Oil Company in
the US from 2005 to 2008 and prior o that he was the Group Director
of Human Resources at Royal Dutch Shell in the Netherlands. Mr.
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Hofmeister founded and heads the not for profit membership
association, Citizens for Affordable Energy. Mr. Hofmeister is a key
member of the US Energy Security Council, a bipartisan not for profit
group in Washington, DC that includes several dozen former
Presidential Appointees and Fortune 100 CEO’s who focus on US
national security through energy security. Mr. Hofmeister has also held
executive positions at General Electric, Nortel Networks and
AlliedSignal (now Honeywell International). Mr. Hofmeister serves as a
non-executive director of Hunting plc (London, UK} and CAMAC
Energy, Inc. (Houston, Texas).

Director's identity or name: MR. RICHARD CAMPBELL NELSGN

Profile: Mr. Nelson is a fellow of the institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and holds a Master of Science Degree in
Economics at the London Business School. Mr, Nelson was a director
of Transcontinental Services Inc. from 1972 and CEO from 1982 to the
date of its acquisition by Inchcape Plc in 1985. He was nominated to
the same position in Inchcape Plc which combined Transcontinental
Services Inc. with its consumer goods testing and minerals testing
husinesses to become Inchcape Testing Services NA, Inc. In 1996,
Inchcape Testing Services NA, Inc. was acquired by a private equity
firm and became intertek Group Limitéd of which Mr. Nelson was the
executive chairman until 2002, when the company floated on the
London Stock Exchange. At this time, Mr. Nelson became the CEO of
Intertek Group Limited {an ICT sector company) until he retired in
2006.

Total number of independent directors 4

Total % of the board 44 44%

State whether any director classified as independent receives
from the company or its group any amount or benefit for items
other than director remuneration, or maintains or has
maintained during the last financial year a business
relationship with the company or with any company of its
group, whether in the director's own name or as a significant
shareholder, director or senior officer of an entity that
maintains or has maintained such relationship.

Note: Prior to the listing of the company shares on the stock
exchange markets of Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia on
9 May 2014, the services agreements indicated below were
terminated and all outstanding remuneration paid. Currently, there is
no Independent Director receiving payment for any item other than
Director's remuneration.

Individual or company name of the director: Emasto Mata Lopez
Description of the relationship: Consultancy Services Agreements
Reasoned statement: N/A

Individual or company name of the director: Richard Campbell
Nelson

Description of the relationship: Consultancy Services Agreements
Reasoned statement: N/A

Individual or company name of the director: John Daniel Hofmeister
Description of the relationship: Consultancy Services Agreements
Reasoned statement: N/A

If applicable, include a reasoned statement of the director
regarding the reasons for which it is believed that such
director can carry out the duties thereof as an independent
director.

10
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OTHER EXTERNAL DIRECTORS

Describe the reasons why they cannot be considered
proprietary or independent directors as well as their ties,
whether with the company, its management, or its
shareholders.

State the changes, if any, in the type of director during the
period:

C.1.4 Complete the following table with information regarding the
number of female directors for the last 4 financial years, as
well as the type of such female dirgctors:

Number of female directors % of total female directors each class
Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year
2013 2012 2011 2010 2013 2012 2011 2010
Executive 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%
Proprietary N 0 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%
Independent 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%
Other
external 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%
Totak: 0 0 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0%

C.1.5 Describe any measures adopted to include on the board of
directors a number of women that allows for a balanced
presence of men and women.

Description of measures

At present, no woman belongs fo the Company’s Board of Directors.
Nevertheless, the Company confirms that:

a) The selection process for new Company members is free of
implicit biases that hinder the selection of women to cover
any vacancies.

b) The Company will make a concise effort to include women,
with the necessary professional qualifications, amongst the
candidates applying to join the Board of Directors.

C.1.6 Describe any measures approved by the remuneration in
order for selection procedures to be free of implicit biases
that hinder the selection of female directors, and in order
for the company to deliberately search for women who meet
the professional profile that is sought and include them
among potential candidates:

| Description of measures |

11
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The Appointments and Remuneration Commitiee has been expressly
assigned this task, gathered in article 40.3.(a){viii} of the Regulations of

the Board of Directors:

“To report to the Board of Directors on the issues of gender diversity, and
safeguard that, when filling new vacancies, the selection procedure does
not suffer from implicit biases that might hinder the selection of female
Directors; and so that the Company deliberately searches for, and
includes among potential candidates, women who meel the sought after

professional profife”.

If there are few or no female directors despite any measures

adopted, describe the reasons for such result:

Description of reasons

Since the company's shares were listed on the stock exchange
markets of Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia last 9 May 2014,
no vacancies have arisen to date on the Board of Directors, which is
why no selection process has been carried out. Nevertheless, in any
future selection procedures the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee will ensure that women meeting the professional profile
sought are included amongst the potential candidates, so no implicit
biages that hinder the selection of female directors exist in the

selection procedures.

CA1.7

c1.8

c.1.9

Explain the form of representation on the board of
shareholders with significant holdings.

Currently, the following Proprietary External Directors are acting on
behalf of Azul Holding, S.C.A., indirectly owned by CEP I
Participations, 3.a rl SICAR and CEP Ill Participations, $.a r.L.
SICAR: Mr. Josep Maria Panicello Primé, Mr. Pedro de Esteban
Ferrer, Mr. Alex Wagenberg Bondarovschi and Mr. Mario Pardo
Rojo.

Describe, if applicable, the reasons why proprietary directors
have been appointed at the proposal of shareholders whose
shareholding interest is less than 5% of share capital.

State whether there has heen no answer to formal petitions for
presence on the board received from shareholders whose
shareholding interest is equal to or greater than that of others at
whose proposal proprietary directors have been appointed. If
so, describe the reasons why such petitions have not been
answered:

ves 1 No

State whether any director has withdrawn from the position as
such before the expiration of the director's term of office,
whether the director has given reasons to the board and by
what means, and in the event that the director gave reasons in
writing to the full board, describe at least the reasons given
therehy:

Name of the director Reason for
withdrawal

12
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Azul Management S.4 1.}

Listing of the company
shares on official markets
in Madrid, Barcelona,
Bilbao and Valencia

The Carlyle Group {Luxembourg), S.arl.

Listing of the company
shares cn official markets
in Madrid, Barcelona,
Bilbao and Valencia

CEP Il Advisor, S.ar.l.

Listing of the company
shares on official markets
in Madrid, Barcelona,
Bilbao and Valencia

CEP 1ll Advisor, S.ar..

Listing of the company
shares on official markets
in Madrid, Barcelona,
Bilbao and Valencia

Mr. Carlos Kinder Espinosa

Listing of the company
shares on official markeis
in Madrid, Barcelona,
Bilbao and Valencia

Mr. Christopher Finn

Listing of the company
shares on official markets
in Madrid, Barcelona,
Bilbao and Valencia

Mr. Juan Manuel Soler Pujol

Listing of the company
shares on official markets
in Madrid, Barcelona,
Bilbao and Valencia

Mr. Joaquin Coello Brufau

Listing of the company
shares on official markets
in Madrid, Barceiona,
Bilbao and Valencia

C.1.10 State any powers delegated to the chief executive officer(s):

C.1.M

Identify any members of the board who are directors or
officers of companies within the listed company's group:

Individual or company

Company name of the group

name of the director member Post
MR- FERx’QI\NAE’J% BASABE IDIADA AUTOMOTIVE DIRECTOR’s
REPRESENTATIVE

TECHNOLOGY, S.A,

MR. FERNANDO BASABE

APPLUS SERVICIOS

SOLE DIRECTOR's

ARMIG TECNOLGGICOS, S.L U, REPRESENTATIVE
MR FERNANDO BASABE LGAI TECHNOLOGICAL DIRECTOR's
CENTER, SA. REPRESENTATIVE

MR. FERNANDC BASABE

APPLUS ITEUVE

SOLE DIRECTOR's

ARMIIO TECHNOLOGY, S.L.U. REPRESENTATIVE
MR. FERNANDO BASABE
ARMIJO LIBERTYTOWN USA 1, INC. CHAIRMAN
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c.1.12

MR. FERNANDO BASABE

LIBERTYTOWN USA FINCO,

ARMIJO o CHAIRMAN
MR. FERNANDO BASABE
ARMIJO APPLUS TECHNOLOGIES. INC. CHAIRMAN
MR, FERNANDO BASABE
ARMIJO K1 KATSASTAJAT OY DIRECTOR
MR. FERNANDO BASABE .
prisye AZUL HOLDING 2 S.a . MANAGER
VELOS! INTERNATIONAL
MR FERNANDY BASASE | HOLDING COMPANY B.S.C. DIRECTOR
CLOSED
IDIADA AUTOMOTIVE DIRECTOR’s
MR. MARIQ PARDO ROJO TECHNOLOGY, S.A. REPRESENTATIVE
LGA TECHNOLOGICAL DIRECTOR's
MR. MARIO PARDQ ROJO CENTER, S.A. REPRESENTATIVE

Identify the directors of your company, if any, who are
members of the board of directors of other companies listed
on official stock exchanges other than those of your group
that have been reported to your company:

Individual or company
name of the director

Name of listed
company

Position

MR, CHRISTOPHER COLE

ASHTEAD GROUP, PLC.

NON-EXECUTIVE
CHAIRMAN

MR. CHRISTOPHER COLE

INFINIS ENERGY, PLC.

INDEPENDENT

SENIOR

DIRECTOR

MR. CHRISTOPHER COLE

WSP GLOBAL, ING

NON.EXECUTIVE
CHARIMAN

MR, CHRISTOPHER COLE

TRACSIS, PLC

NON-EXECUTIVE
CHAIRMAN

MR. JOHN DANIEL
HOFMEISTER

HUNTING, PLC

NON-EXECUTIVE
CIRECTOR

MR. JOHN DANIEL
HOFMEISTER

CAMAC ENERGY, INC

NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

C.1.13 State and, if applicable, explain whether the company has
established rules regarding the number of boards of which its
directors may be members:

Yes [ ]

No [X]
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C.1.14

Indicate the company's general policies and strategies

reserved for approval by the full board:

Dividend policy, as well the treasury share policy

and, especially, the limits thereto

Yes No
N . X
Investment and financing policy
Design of the structure of the group of companies X
. X
Corporate governance policy
: N X
Corporate social responsibility policy
Strategic or business plan, as well as management X
objectives and annual budgets
Policy for the remuneration and evaluation of X
performance of senior management
Risk control and management policies, as well as the X
periodic monitoring of the internal information and
control systems
X

C.1.15 State the overall remuneration of the board of directors:

Remuneration of the board of directors {thousands of

euros) 12,210
Amount of total remuneration corresponding to pension 0
rights accumulated by the directors {thousands of euros)

Overall remuneration of the board of directors {thousands

of euros) 12,210

C.1.16 Identify the members of the company's senior management who
are not executive directors and state the total remuneration

accruing to them during the financial year:

Individual or company name Position(s)
' CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT &
MR. JORGE LLUCH ZANON COMMUNICATIONS SENIOR VICE
PRESIDENT

MR. JOAN AMIGO | CASAS

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

AUTOMOTIVE EXECUTIVE VICE

MR. AITOR RETES AGUADO Ve EXECU
p LABORATCRIES EXECUTIVE VICE
MR. JORDI BRUFAU REDONDO RIES EXEC
. NORCONTROLS ESPARA & VELOSH
MR. RAMON FERANDEZ ARMAS EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
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€117

MR. PABLO SANJUAN SARDE

NORCONTROL LATAM EXECUTIVE
VICE PRESIDENT

MR. JOSE DELFIN PEREZ FERNANDEZ

HUMAN RESOURCES SENICR VICE

PRESIDENT
MS. EVA ARGILES MALONDA GENERAL COUNSEL
IDIADA EXECUTIVE VICE
MR. CARLES GRASAS ALSINA PRESIDENT

MR. IAIN LIGHT

RTD EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT

MR. ALEIX RIBAS AGUILERA INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER
FORMER AUTOMOTIVE
MR. ARNE WILERSLEV INTERNATIONAL EXECUTIVE VICE
PRESIDENT

MR: NABIL ABDUL JALIL

FORMER VELOS| EXECUTIVE VICE
PRESIDENT

{in thousands of euros}

Total senior management remuneration

17.107

State the identity of the members of the board, if any, who are
also membhers of the board of directors of significant
shareholders andfor in entities of their group:

Individual or company Company name of the Position
name of the director significant shareholder
D. PEDRO DE ESTEBAN THE CARLYLE GRCUP
FERRER ESPARNA, S.L. PRESIDENTE
TELECABLE CAPITAL JOINT CHIEF EXECUTIVE
D. MARIO PARDO ROJO HOLDING, S.L OFFICER

Describe any significant relationships, other than the ones
contemplated in the prior item, of the members of the board
of directors linking them to significant shareholders and/or

companies within their group:

Individual or Individual or company _
name of related significant Descqptmq of
company name of relationship
the director shareholder
D. PEDRO DE THE CARLYLE GROUP
ESTEBAN FERRER ESPANA, S.L EMPLOYEE
D. ALEX WAGENBERG-  THE CARLYLE GROUP
BONDAROVSCHI ESPARA, S.L EMPLOYEE
D. MARIO PARDO THE CARLYLE GROUP
ROJO ESPARNA, S.L EMPLOYEE
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C.1.18 State whether the regulations of the board have been amended
during the financial year:

Yes No [:|

Description of amendments
During the financial year, two changes were made to the
Regulations of the Board of Directors:

+ The first informed by the Audit Committee at its meeting
of 28 July 2014 and unanimously approved by the Board
of Directors at its meeting likewise held on said date,
amended article 38 in order to enable Executive
Committee meetings to be held without necessarily
requiring that the Board Secretary be also Secretary of
the Executive Committee.

¢ The second was informed by the Audit Committee on 30
October 2014 and unanimously approved by the Board of
Directors at its meeting likewise held on said date. Article
7 was amended in order to determine, for internal
organization purposes, the scope of competences and to
define, as necessary, the powers of the Board of
Directors, Executive Committee and Chief Executive
Officer.

Further to arficle 4.5 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors,
the Board of Directors will inform the shareholders of these
amendments at the next general meeting.

C.1.12 State the procedures for the selection, appointment, re-
election, evaluation, and removal of directors. List the
competent bodies, the procedures to be followed, and the
criteria applied in each of such procedures.

Appointment

According to article 23 of the company By-laws, theé members of the
Board of Directors shall be appointed by the General Shareholders’
Meeting, notwithstanding the possibility of co-opting members as
established in the Spanish Companies Act. it is not necessary to be
a shareholder to be elected member of the Board, excepi in the
case of co-option. Individual or legal entities covered by any of the
prohibitions established by current legislation for reasons of
incapacity or incompatibility shall be disqualified from Board
membership.

According to article 14 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors,
proposals for the appointment of Directors submitted by the Board of
Directors to the consideration of the General Shareholders’ Meeting
and appoiniment decisions adopted by the Board of Directors
pursuant to its interim appointment authority shall be made subject
to the prior report by the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee (in the case of executive and proprietary Directors), and
subject to a proposal from the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee (in the case of independent Directors).

Term of office (article 23.3 of the Company By-laws)

Tenure of office shall be six (6) years as from the date of
acceptance, being able to be re-elected one or more times for
periods of equal duration. However, it is expected the first General
Shareholder's Meeting held in 2015 to approve the amendment,
amongst others, of the article of the by-faws regarding the tenure of
office, in order to adapt it to a four (4) years term, in accordance with
Law 31/2014 of December 3 which amends the Companies Act.
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C.1.20

C.1.21

Article 15.2 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors provides
that directors appointed by interim appointment shall remain in their
posts until the date of the first General Shareholders’ Meeting. This
period will not be included in calculations for the purposes of point
15.1 above.

Re-appointment (article 16 of the Regulations of the Board of
Directors)

Before the reappointment of Directors is proposed to the General
Shareholders’ Meeting, the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee shall issue a report evaluating the work and dedicaticn of
the Directors proposed during the previous temm in office.

Self-assessment (article 36 of the Regulations of the Board of
Directors)

The Board of Directors shall dedicate the first meeting of the year to
an assessment of its operation during the previous financial year,
evaluating the quality of its work, assessing the effectiveness of its
regulations, and if appropriate, correcting those aspects that were
found not to be functional. Furthermire, the Board of Directors shall
assess the performance of its duties through the Chairman of the
Board of Directors and the senior executive of the Company, based
on the report issued by the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee, as well as the operation of the Board of Directors
Committees, based on their reports.

Removal (article 17 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors)

Directors shall be removed from their post once the term for which
they were appointed has lapsed or when so decided by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting pursuant to the powers conferred upon them
by law and in the by-faws, with no need for said decision to be
included in the agenda of the General Shareholders’ Meeting. The
Board of Directors shall not propose the removal of any independent
Director before the end of the statutory term for which they have
been appeinted, except where the Beoard of Directors considers that
sufficient grounds for such acticn exist, based on a report by the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee. In particular, sufficient
grounds will be deemed to exist when the Director has failed to fulfil
the duties of its position or is affected by one or more of the
circumstances that would have prevented its appointment as an
independent Director, in accordance with applicable legal
provisions.,

State whether the board of directors has performed an
evaluation of its activities during the financial year:

Yes [ | Mo

If so, explain the extent to which the self-evaluation has given
rise to significant changes in its internal organisation and
regarding the procedures applicable to its activities:

State the circumstances under which the resignation of
directors is mandatory

According o arlicie 17.2 of the Reguiations of the Board of
Directors, “Directors must tend their resignation to the Board of
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C.1.22

C.1.23

C.1.24

Directors and, where considered appropriate by the Board,
formalize the appropriate resignation in  the following
circumstances:

{a) When they cease in the positions, posts, or functions related
with their appointment as executive Directors;

(b} In the case of propriefary Directors, when the shareholder
whose interests they represent transfers all of their shares, or that
they do it in the corresponding number in case said shareholder
reduces its holding in the Company;

(c} When they are affected by any of the incompatibility or
prohibition provisions legally established;

(d) If they are severely reprimanded by the Board of Directors
on the basis of a reporf by the Appointments and Remuneration
Commitfee as a result of having breached their duties as Directors;
or

(e} When their confinuance on the Board of Directors may
Jeopardize the interests of the company”,

State whether the powers of the top executive of the company
are vested in the chair of the board. If so, describe the measures
that have been taken to mitigate the risks of accumulation of
powers in a single person:

Yes ] No

Stafte and, if applicable, explain whether rules have been
established whereby one of the independent directors is
authorised to request that a meeting of the board be called or
that new items. be included on the agenda, to coordinate and
hear the concerns of external directors and to direct the
evaluation by the board of directors.

Yes No [}

Description of rules

Article 32.3 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors.- Vice-
chairmen, Delegations.

“When the Chairman of the Board of Direclors is aiso the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, one (1) independent Director
shalf be vested by the Board of Directors to request, as if deems
appropriate, that a meeting of the Board of Directors shall be
convened and that new items be included on the agenda.”

Are qualified majorities, different from the statutory majorities,
required to adopt any type of decision?

ves [ ] Mo

If so, describe the differences:

Explain whether there are specific requirements, other than
the reauirements relating to directors, fo be appointed

chairman of the board of directors.

Yes |:| No
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C.1.25

C.1.26

C.1.27

C.1.28

C.1.29

State whether the chairman has a casting vote:

Yes [:] No

State whether the by-laws or the regulations of the board set
forth any age limit for directors:

ves [ | No

State whether the by-laws or the regulations of the board
establish any limit on the term of office for independent
directors that is different than the term provided by regulatory
provisions:

Yes |:| No

State whether the by-laws or the regulations of the board
establish any specific rules for proxy-voting at meetings of the
board of directors, the manner of doing so, and particularly the
maximum number of proxies that a director may hold, as well
as whether proxies must be given to a director of the same
class. If so, briefly describe such rules.

Article 27.2 of the company By-laws provides that directors may
only be represented at meetings of the Board of Directors by
another directeor. In any case, representation shall be granted by a
letter addressed to the chairman or by other means detailed in the
Reguiations for the Board of Directors.

Article 19 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors provides the
obligations that Directors must fulfil when in office. Specifically,
article 19.2.(a} establishes that directors shall attend meetings of
bedies of which they are part and actively participate in
deliberations, so that it can effectively contribute to the decision-
making process. Furthermore, said article also provides that if any
director cannot be present at sessions to which they have been
called to attend, they must instruct the director who they have
appointed as representative.

State the number of meetings that the board of directors has
held during the financial year. In addition, specify the number
of times the board has met, if any, at which the chairman did
not attend. Proxies granted with specific instructions shall be
counted as attendance.

Number of meetings of the board 10
Number of meetings of the board at which the 0
chairman did not attend

State the number of meetings held by the different committees of
the board of directors during the financiat year:

Number of meetings of the executive committee 5

Number of meetings of the audit committee 2

Number of meetings of the appointments and

Teimuneration commities
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C.1.30

C.1.31

C.1.32

C.1.33

C.1.34

State the number of meetings that the board of directors has
held during the financial year with the attendance of all of its
members. Proxies granted with specific instructions shall be
counted as attendance:

Attendance of the directors 10

% in attendance of total votes during the financial year 100%

State whether the annual individual accounts and the annual
consolidated accounts that are submitted to the board for
approval are previously certified:

Yes [ ] MNo

Identify, if applicable, the person/persons that hasfhave
certified the annual individual and consolidated accounts of
the company for preparation by the board:

Explain the mechanisms, if any, adopted by the board of
directors to avoid any qualifications in the audit report
on the annual individual and consolidated accounts
prepared by the board of directors and submifted to the
shareholders at the general shareholders' meeting.

Article 13.3 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors establishes
that: “The Board of Directors shall aftempt to formulate definitive
financial information so that there is no scope for quaiffications or
reservations on the part of the audifor. However, when the Board of
Directors is of the view that it must sustain its criteria, the Chairman
of the Audit Committee (and the auditors) shall explain fto the
shareholders the content and scope of said reservations and
qualifications”.

In accordance with article 39 of the Regulations of the Board of
Directors, the Audit Committee is in charge of, amangst others,
ensuring the efficiency of the internal audit and reviewing the
internal control and risk management systems, as well as discussing
with external auditors any significant weak points in the internal
control system. .

Is the secretary of the board a director?
ves [ | No

Describe the procedures for appointment and removal of the
secretary of the board, stating whether the appointment and
removal thereof have been reported upon by the appointments
committee and approved by the full board.

Procedure for appointment and removal

Pursuant fo article 33.4 of the Regulations of the Board of
Directors “The appointment and removal of the Secretary shall be
subject fo a report by the Appointments and Remunerations
Committee, and shall be approved by the full Board of Directors”.

No

Does the appointments committee report on the appointment?

Does the appointments committee report on the removal?

Does the full board approve the appointment?

-
><><><><$

Does the full board approve the removal?
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C.1.35

C.1.38

Is the secretary of the board especially responsible for ensuring
compliance with gocd governance recommendations?

Yes No I:_—_|

Comments

Article 33.3 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors provides
that: “The Secrefary shall take parlicular care fo ensure that the
Board of Directors is duly adjusted to the letfer and the spirit of the
laws and regulations (including that approved by the regulatory
entities); that they conform to the By-laws and the Regulations of
the General Meeting and the Board of Directors and any other
corporate rules; and take info account the recommendations for
good governance accepted by the Company’”.

State the mechanisms, if any, established by the company to
preserve the independence of external auditors, financial
analysts, investment banks and rating agencies.

Aricle 39.7(b} (iii} of the Regulations of the Board of Directors
provides that the Audit Committee, will “rmonitor the independence of
the external audifor, fo which end, the company shall:

- Notify any change of auditor fo the CNMV as a relevant fact,
accompanied by a statement of any disagreernents arising with the
outgoing auditor and, should this be the case, their conterit.

- Ensure that the company and the auditor comply with current
regulations on the provision of non-audit services, the limits on the
auditor's business concentration, the regulafions referring lo the
requirement to rofate the audifor issuing the audit report, and in
general, any other provisions established in order to ensure the
independence of the auditors.

The Audit Committee shall issue a report annually, in which it shall
express iis opinion on the auditors' independence. This report shall
refer in any case to the provision of additional services provided by
the auditors to the company or to any enlity associated with fhe
company, whether directly or indirectly.

To this end, the Audit Committee shall receive the audifors' written
confirmation of their independence in respect of the company, and
any of its associated entities, whether directly or indirectly, as well
as any information on additional services of any kind that they have
provided to the company or any of its associated ertities, whether
directly or indirectly.

- in the event that the external auditor withdraws, the
circumstances motivating this withdrawal shall be examined.”

State whether the company has changed the external auditor
during the financial year. If so, identify the incoming and the
outgoing auditor:

Yes |:] No

if there has been any disagreement with the outgoing auditor,
provide a description thereof:
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C.1.37

C.1.38

C.1.39

C.1.40

State whether the audit firm performs other non-audit work
for the company and/or its group. If so, state the amount of
the fees paid for such work and the percentage they
represent of the aggregate fees charged to the company
and/or its group:

Yes No D
Company Group Total
Amount of other non-audit work 180 1,062 1,242
(thousands of euros)
Amount of non-audit work / © 59% 36% 42%
Aggregate amount billed by the
audit firm (%)

State whether the audit report on the annual accounts for the
prior financial year has observations or qualifications. If so,
state the reasons given by the chair of the audit committee to
explain the content and scope of such observations or
qualifications.

Yes [:| No

State the consecutive number of years for which the current
audit firm has been auditing the annual accounts of the company
and/or its group. In addition, state the percentage represented by
such number of financial years audited by the current audit firm
with respect to the fotal number of financial years in which the
annual accounts have been audited:

Company | Group

Number of continuous financial years 8 8

Number of years audited by the current
audit firm/ Number of years in which the 100.00% 100.00%

company has been audited (%)}

State whether there is any procedure for directors to hire
external advisory services, and if so, describe it:

Yes No [ ]

Describe the procedure

Article 26 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors expressly
states that “for the purpose of assisting the Directors in the
performance of their duties, the external Directors may request the
company fo hire legal, accounting or financial advisers or any
other experts, whose services shall be paid by the Company.

Such engagement shall necessarily address specific problems of
certain significance and complexity, arising in the confext of the
performance of their duties.

2. The request for contracting advisers or external experts should
be addressed fo the Chairman of the Board of Directors and shal!
be authorized by the Board of Directors if, irt ifs opinion:
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(a) it is necessary fo ensure the effective performance of the
duties enirusted fo the independent Directors;

(b) the cost of this assistance is reasonable, in view of the
importance of the issue and given the assefs and income
of the Company; and

(c) the technical assistance sought cannot be provided
adequately by Company experts and specialists.

3. In the event that the request for expert assistance were made
by any of the Committees of the Board of Directors, it may not be
refused, unless the majority of Directors considers that the
circumstances established in paragraph 2 of this article do not

appiy.”

C.1.41 State whether there is any procedure for directors to obtain
sufficiently in advance the information required to prepare for
meetings of governing bodies and, if so, describe it:

Yes No []

Describe the procedurs
Article 25 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors provides
that “the Directors may be informed of any aspect of the Company
and companies of the Applus+ Group, whether Spanish or foreign.
To this end, hefshe may examine the documentalion he/she
deems appropriate, confact with the heads of the relevant
departments, and visit the comesponding facilities.

in order to avoid disrupting the normal management of the
Applus+ Group, the exercise of the faculties of information shall be
channelled through the Chairman, who shall address fhe
Director’s requests, providing him/her with the information directly
or making him/her available the appropriate interlocutors at the
refevant level of the organization.

in the event that the information request is declined, delayed, or
not properly addressed, the Director requesting the information
may reiterate his‘her request fo the Audit Commitfee which,
having heard the Chairman, and the Director, shall decide
accordingly.

The informafion requested may only be refused when, in the
opinion of the Chairman and the Audit Commitfee, if is
unnecessary or prejudicial fo the corporate interests. Such refusal
shall not be possible when the request is supporfed by the
majority of the Directors.”

Article 31.3 of the Reguiations of the Board of Directors provides
that "As the Chairman of the Board of Directors is responsible for
the effective operation and functioning of the Board of Diractors, it
shall be required to ensure that the Directors are provided with
sufficient information beforehand; {...)"

C.1.42 State whether the company has established any rules requiring
directors to inform the company —and, if applicable, resign from
their position— in cases in which the credit and reputation of the
company may be damaged, and if so provide a detailed
description:

Yes No D

Describe the rules
Article 17.2 of the Regulations of the Board of Direclors provides
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C.1.43

C.1.44

C.1.45

that:

“Directors must tend their resignation to the Board of Directors
and, where considered appropriate by the Board, formalize the
appropriate resignation in the following circumstances:
@ ...
b)) ..
(¢} When they are affected by any of the incompatibility
or prohibitions provisions legally established;
(d) If they are severely reprimanded by the Board of
Directors on the basis of a report by the Appointments
and Remuneration Commitfee as a resuft of having
breached their dities as Directors; or
(e} When their continued presence on the Board of
Directors may jeopardize the interests of the Company.

When a Director is removed from ifs office before the end of the
term of office foliowing its resignation or for whatever ofher
reason, the Director shalf explain the reasons for doing so in a
letter addressed fo all the members of the Board of Directors.
Even if said removal is communicated as a relevant fact the
reasons for said removal will be included in the Annual Corporate
Governance Report.”

State whether any member of the board of directors has
informed the company that such member has become subject to
an order for further criminal prosecution upon indictment or that
an order for the commencement of a bench trial has been issued
against such member for the commission of any of the crimes
contemplated in section 213 of the Companies Act:

Yes [] No

State whether the board of directors has analysed the case. if
so0, provide a duly substantiated explanation of the decision
adopted regarding whether or not the director should remain
in office or, if applicable, describe the actions taken by the
board of directors through the date of this report or that it
plans to take.

Describe the significant agreements entered into by the company
that go into effect, are amended, or terminate in the event of a
change in control at the company as a resuit of a takecover bid,
and effects thereof.

The Multicurrency Facilities Agreement signed by the Company on 7
May 2014 with certain financial institutions includes early maturity
clauses in the event of a change in control, in standard terms for
contracts of this kind.

Furthermore, as reflected in the Prospectus for the listing of the
Company shares, the plan to deliver restricted stock units ("RSUs") in
favour of certain executives of the Company’s group {the "RSU Plan”)
foresees that, in the event of a change in control in the Company's
group, all units to which these executives are entitled under said RSU
Pian wili be delivered in advance.

ldentify on an aggregate basis and provide a detailed description
of the agreements between the company and its governing
bodies. management or emplovees that provide for indemnities,
guarantee or "golden parachute” clauses upon resignation or
termination without cause, or if the labour relationship is
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terminated as a result of a takeover bid or other type of
transaction.

Number of beneficiaries: 8

Type of beneficiary
Chief Executive Officer and managers who report to him
Description of agreement

The company has entered into severance payment arrangements
("blindajes”) with the Chief Executive officer and seven (7)
members of the senior management team who report to him, The
amounts payable to senior management pursuant to the
severance payment arrangements may be determined by
reference to cne of the three following parameters, as applicable:
(i) a compensation equal to twice the gross annual compensation
received by the relevant senior manager in the year immediately
preceding termination of employment; (ii) a gross compensation
equal to twice the net annual monetary compensation received
by the relevant senior manager in the year immediately
preceding termination of employment after withholding taxes; or
(iiiy a compensation (net of tax} equal to the greater of (x) twice
the net annual monetary compensation received by the relevant
senicr manager in the year immediately preceding termination of
employment, and (y) the amount equal to 45 days of salary
received by the relevant senior manager per year of employment
with a 42 month limit.

Pursuant to the arrangements entered into by the group, certain
senior managers (including the CEO} are entitled to severance
payments in case: (i) their employment is terminated by the
group at will, except in case of fair disciplinary dismissal
{("despido disciplinario procedente”) declared by a final judgment;
in some of the cases (not including the CEQ): (ii} in the event
they decide to early terminate their employment with the group,
except in case of resignation ("dimision”).

In addition to these 8 managers, there are others in the
company, who do not report directly fo the CEQO and have
severance payment arrangements (“blindaje").

State whether such agreements must be reported to and/or
approved by the decision-making hodies of the company or

its group:
General
Board of directors sharehoiders
‘meeting
Decision-making body NO NO
approving the provisions
YES | NO
X
Is information about these provisions provided to the
|shareho[der5 at the general shareholders® meeting?

c.2 Committees of the board of directors
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Describe all of the committees of the board of directors, the

Cc.21
members thereof, and the proportion of proprietary and
independent directors of which they are comprised:
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Name Position Class
MR. CHRISTOPHER COLE CHAIRMAN INDEPENDENT
Wik, FERNANDO BASABE
ARMLIO MEMBER EXECUTIVE
MR. ALEX WAGENBERG
BONDAROVSCH MEMBER PROPRIETARY
MR. PEDRO DE ESTEBAN MEMBER PROPRIETARY
% executive directors 25.00%
% proprietary directors 50.00%
% independent directors 25.00%
% other external 0.00%
AUDIT COMMITTEE
Name Positicn Class
MR. ERNESTQ GERARDC .
MATA LOPEZ CHAIRMAN INDEPENDENT
MR. JOSEP MARIA MEMBER : : ;
PANICELLO PRIME PROPRIETARY
MR. MARIQ PARDO ROJO MEMBER PROPRIETARY
% executive directors 0.00%
% proprietary directors &7.00%
% independent directors 33.00%
% otheér external 0.00%
APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Name Position Class
MR. JOHN DANIEL ;
HOFMEISTER CHAIRMAN INDEPENDENT
MR. RICHARD CAMPBELL MEMBER
NELSON INDEPENDENT
MR. ALEX WAGENBERG MEMBER
BONDAROVSCHI PROPRIETARY
% executive directors 0.00%
% proprietary directors 33.00%
% independent directors £7.00%
% other external 0.00%

C.22 Complete the foliowing table with information regarding the
number of female directors comprising the committees of the
board of directors for the last four financial years:

Number of female directors
Year 2014 Year 2013 Year 2012 Year 2011
Number % Number % Number % Number %
i ) 0 0,00% 0 (3,00% 0 0,00% 0] 0,00%
Executive Committee
G, & Q, ¢}
Audit Committee 0 0,00% 0 0,00% 0 0,00% 0 0,00%
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Appointments
and
Remuneration
Committee

0,00% 0 0.00% 0 0,00% 0 0,00%

c.23

State whether the audit committee has the following duties:

Yes No

Supervise the process of preparation and the integrity of the
financial information relating te the company and, if applicable, to
the group, monitoring compliance with legal requirements, the
proper delimitation of the scope of consolidation, and the correct
application of accounting principies.

X

Periodically review the internal control and risk management X
systems, in order for the main risks to be properly identified,
managed and made known.

Ensure the independence and effectiveness of the internal audit
area; make proposals regarding the selection, appointment, re-
election, and withdrawal of the head of the internal audit area;
propose the budget for such area; receive periodic information
regarding its activities; and verify that senior management takes
into account the donclusions and recommendations contained in
its reports.

Establish and supervise a mechanism whereby the employees may
give notice, on a confidential basis and, if deemed appropriate,
anonymously, of any potentially significant irregularities, especially
of a financial and accounting nature, that they notice at the
company.

Submit to the board proposals for the selection, appeointment, re- X
election, and replacement of the external auditor, as well as the
contractual terms under which it should be hired.

Regularly receive from the external auditor information regarding X
the audit plan and the results of the implementation thereof, and
verify that senior management takes its recommendations info
account.

Ensure the independence of the external auditor X

Cc24

Describe the rules of organisation and operation of, and the
duties assigned to, each of the board committees.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

It consists of at least three members and no more than five, to be
chosen amongst and by the Board of Directors, which may
permanently delegate to it all the Board's powers, except for those
which according to the law, the By-laws or the Regulations of the
Board of Directors are its exclusive competencies. As an exception,
the Supervisory Committee may take decisions in relation to the
matters contained in article 7.2 sections {b) and {c) of the Regulations
of the Board of Directors, when there are reasons of urgency, and
with subsequent ratification by the full Board of Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The members of the Audit Committee are appointed by the Board of

Directors. The Audit Commitiee wiii consist of three 1o five members
of the Board of Directors, based on their knowledge and experience in
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accounting, auditing and risk management matters.

The Audit Committee will be in charge of:

Informing the General Shareholders meeting on the matters
amongst i competence that shareholders may bring up in
them. :

Supervising the preparation of annual accounts and
management reports, both individual and consolidated, in
order to be drawn up by the Board of Directors according to
faw.

informing the Board of Directors, in order to be drawn up
according to law, about the accuracy and reliability of the
annual accounts and management reports, both individual
and consolidated, including any periodic financial data
forwarded fo the markets.

Issuing any reports and proposals requested by the Board
of Directors or its Chairman, and others deemed pertinent
for the adequate performance of its tasks.

Supervising compliance with all infernal codes of conduct
and corporate govemnance rules, particularly the
Regulations of the Board of Diréctors, in the terms provided
therein.

Ensuring that the company and auditor uphold current rules
on the provision of non-audit services, fimits on the
auditor's workload, rules regarding the need for a turnover
in the signatory auditor of the auditing report and, in
general, all other provisions established to guarantee the
auditors’ impartiality.

The Audit Committee will issue a report each year, giving
its opinion about the auditors” impartiality. This report, in
any case, will refer to the provision of additional services by
the auditors to the company or to any other entity directly or
indirectly related thereto.

APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

It consists of at least three and a maximum of five Directors,
appointed by the Board of Directors for a period not exceeding their
term as Directors and without prejudice to being re-elected, insofar as
they are also Directors. The Board of Directors will designate the
members of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, based
on the knowledge, skills and experience of the Directors and the fasks
entrusted to the Appointments and Remuneration Committee,

The Appointments and Remuneration Comimittee will be in charge of

Reporting any proposed appointments and re-elections of
Execufive and Proprietary Directors, making proposals to
appoint Independent Directors,

Reporting any proposed removals of members of the Board
of Directors,

Verifying the nature of each Director, checking that
requirements are met to be classified as executive,
independent or proprietary.

Evaluating the competences, knowledge and necessary
experience on the Board of Directors, consequently
defining the necessary candidate tasks and skills to cover
each vacancy, evaluating the necessary time and
dedication in order to adequately perform their task.
Examining or arranging, as deemed adequate, the
succession of the Chairman and top executive and, if
necaessary, making proposals to the Board of Directors in
order for this succession fo take place in an ordedy and
well planned manner.

Annually reporting on performance of tasks by the
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Chairman of the Board of Directors and top executive of the
Company.

- Repeorting any appointments and removals of the Secretary
of the Board of Directors and senior executives proposed
by the top executive {o the Board of Directors.

- Providing information to the Board of Directors about any
gender diversity matters, ensuring that when new
vacancies arise, selection procedures have no implicit
biases that hinder the selection of female directors;
ensuring that the company deliberately searches for, and
includes amongst potential candidates, women whoe meet
the professional profile sought.

- Preparing and keeping a record of situations involving
Directors and senior executives of the company, receiving
and safeguarding in this register any personal defails
provided by Directors, as provided in article 29 of the
Regulations of the Board of Directors.

- Receiving any information provided by Directors.

= Proposing fo the Board of Directors a remuneration policy
for Directors and senior executives.

- Proposing to the Board of Directors the individual
remuneration of executive Directors and other contractual
conditions.

- Proposing to the Board of Directors the basic conditions of
senior executive contracts.

- Ensuring that the remuneration policy established by the
company is followed.

C.25 State, if applicable, the existence of regulations of the board
committees, where such regulations may be consulted and the
amendments made during the financial year. Also state if any
annual report of the activities performed by each committee has
been voluntarily prepared.

Rules for Board Committees are included in the Regulatiohs of the
Board of Directors, which establish their competences, composition,
procedures, eic.; these are available for consultation both on the
CNMV website and the www. applus.com corporate website, and may
be directly accessad through the following lintk:

http/fwww. aoplus. comies/investorRelations/Cormporate-govermance.

See details in section C.1.18 regarding amendments of articles 7 and
38 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors.

C.26 State whether the composition of the executive committee
reflects the participation of the different directors within the
board based on their category:

Yes No [ |

D. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND INTRAGROUP TRANSACTIONS

D.1.

Identify the competent body and describe any procedures for approving
related-party and intragroup transactions.

Competent body for approving related-party transactions

The Board of Directors, as per Article 7.2{c) of the Regulations of the Board
of Directors.
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D.2.

D.3.

D.4.

D.5.

D.6.

Procedure for the approval of related-party transactions

Further to article 22.4 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors, “transactions
between the Company and Directors, significant shareholders, and shareholders
Eepresented on the Board of Directors, or with persons associated with them,
must be authorized by the Board of Directors on the basis of a prior report by the
Budit Committee. However, the authorization of the Board of Directors and of the
teport of the Audit Committee will not be necessary for Related-Parly
dransactions that meet the following three conditions:

1

n {a} They are carried out under the terms of contracts whose conditions

are standardized and applied to a large number of clients;

(b) They are implemented at prices or rates generally set by the person
supplying the good or service in guestion; and

(c)  The value of these fransactions does not exceed 1% of the anntal
turnover of the Company.

TeXTo TS

2. The Board of Directors shall decide on Related-Parly Transactions on the
asis of a prior report by the Audit Committee. In addition to refraining from
kexercising or delegating their vote, Directors affected by said transactions must
geave the meeting room while the Board of Directors deliberates and vofes on
them.”

a
pproval of related-party transactions has been delegated, and if so, state
the body or persons to which the delegation has been made.

Article 7.2 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors foresees that the
competencies of the Board of Direciors set forth paragraphs (b) and {¢) of said
article, which include related-party transactions, may be adopted in urgent cases
by the Supervisory Committee, and subsequently ratified by the full Board of
Directors :

Describe those transactions that are significant due to the amount or
subject- matter thereof between the company or entities of its group and
the company's significant shareholders: '

Describe those transactions that are significant due to the amount or
subject-matter thereof between the company or entities of its group and the
company's directors or officers:

Report the significant transactions made by the company with other
entities belonging to the same group, provided they are not eliminated in
the preparation of the consolidated accounts and they are not part of the
ordinary course of business of the company as to their purpose and
conditions.

In any case, report any intragroup transaction with entities established in
countries or territories considered to be tax havens:
State the amount of transactions with other related parties.
0 (thousands of Euros)
Describe the mechanisms used to detect, determine, and resolve
potential conflicts of interest between the company andfor its group,

and its directors, officers, or significant shareholders.

Article 22 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors specifically regulates
confiicts of inferest;
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“1. Directors must abstain from attending and intervening in deliberations
in relation to issues in which they have a personal interest, and from
voting the corresponding resolutions.

2. A Director will be considered fo have a personal interest when the
issue affects the Direcfor itself or:

(a) The spouse of the Director or a perscon related to the Director up to
fourth (4th) degree of kinship, inclusive; or

(b) A company in which it has a significant shareholding. A
shareholding will be considered significant when the Director, either
in its own name, or jointly with persons with whom it has a
relationship such as that described in (a) above, hoids more than
five per cent (5%) of voting or economic rights or in which, while not
meeting this requirement, can appoint at least one member of their
management body.

3. The Director must provide the Board of Directors with due notice of
any situation that could constitute a confiict of interest with the interests
of the Company or of other companies from the Applus+ Group.

4. Transactions between the Company and Directors, significart

sharehoiders, and shareholders represented on the Board of Directors,

or with persons associated with them, must be authorized by the Board

of Directors on the basis of a prior report by the Audit Commitiee.

However, the autharization of the Board of Directors and of the report of

the Audit Commiftee will not be necessary for Related-Parly

Transactions that meet the following three conditions:

{a) They are carried out under the terms of contracts whose conditions
are standardized and applied fo a large number of clients;

(b) They are implemented at prices or rates generally set by the person
supplying the good or service in question; and

{c) The value of these transactions does not exceed 1% of the annual
turnover of the Company.

5. The Board of Directors shall decide on Related-FParty Transactions on
the basis of a prior report by the Audit Commitfee. In addifion fo
refraining from exercising or delegating their vote, Directors affected by
said transactions must leave the meeting room while the Board of
Directors deliberates and votes on them.

6. In any event, relevant transactions of any nafure between a Director of
the Company and of companies within the Applus+ Group must be
recorded in the Annual Corporate Govemance Report. This requirement
also applies fo relevant fransacfions between the Company and its
significant shareholders. The notes to the annual accounts must also
include transactions conducted by Direcfors with the Company and
companies within the Applus+ Group when said transactions are not
related to the ordinary course of business of the Company, or do not
take place under normal market conditions.”

D.7. Is more than one company of the group listed in Spain?
Yes [ | No
Identify the subsidiaries listed in Spain: N/A
Listed subsidiary

Identify if each activity areas and eventual business relationships have ben
public and accurately, as well as those of the listed subsidiary with the
other companies of the group:
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Define the business relationships between listed parent Company and
listed subsidiary, and between the latter and other companies of the group.

identify the mechanisms foreseen to resolve potential interest conflicts
between the listed subsidiary and other companies of the group:

Mechanisms foreseen fo resolve potential interest conflicts

E. RISKCONTROL AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

E.1 Explain the scope of the company's Risk Management System.

The company has a Corporate Risk Map, where critical risks
which from a strategic, governance, compliance and financing
reporting point of view may affect the achievement of strategic
objectives have been identified.

This risk map has incorporated critical factors, based on the
group’s lines of activity, geographical areas where it operates
and business divisions as well as the risks factors considered as
critical in connection with the scope of the support functions,
such as finance, human resources and legal services.

Critical risks have been identified by prioritizing matters based on
the volume of business affected, the possibility of stopping
transactions due to risk materialization and potential reputational
damage in the event of an incident.

The Board of Directors is assisted by the Audit Committee which
periodically reviews the internal control systems and risk
management and supervises and informs on the adequacy of the
system 10 evaluate and internally control relevant risks.

E.2 identify the decision-making bodies of the company
responsible for preparing and implementing the Risk
Management System.

In accordance with article 7.2 (vii) of its Regulations, the Board of
Directors of the company is the responsible of defining risk
strategy and control policy, as well as periodic monitoring of the
internal information and control systems, by optimizing- a cost-
benefit ratio, in order to:

Reach medium-term strategic objectives

Safeguard shareholders vaiue

Guarantee the group’s results and reputation

Defend the interests of company shareholders and
interest groups

The Audit Committes, in accordance with article 39.7 (a) of the
Regulations of the Board of Directors, is responsible of
periodically reviewing the intemal confrol systems and to manage
the risks, so main risks are identified, processed and informed
appropriately as well as discussing with auditors the significant
weak points of the internal control system outlined during the audit
process, To that purpose, the Commission relies on the
supervision tasks carried out by the company’s Internal Audit
Management. Supervision of the risk control systems mncludes
approval of a model and a periodic follow-up, which will depend on
criticality and importance.,
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E.3

Risk management is made by the Chief Executive Officer, the
heads of the corporate functional areas, and the Executive Vice
President of each business division in accordance with their scope
of activity, according to acceptable risk levels for the Company.

The Iniernal Audit Management is in charge of supervising
compliance with risk tolerance levels, the effectiveness of control
measures associated to critical risks and supervised
implementation of the necessary action/response plans, which will
be monitored as applicable initially at a corporate level by the

affected functions.

Point out the principal risks that could affect the achievement

of business goals.

The risk map of the company contemplates those risks that can
have a significant impact on the resuits of the company and its
group, to their best knowledge. The risks referred to in said risk
map can be grouped in different types:

1. risks arising from the group's organizational modeil

2. risks which are inherent to business activities

3. risks related to regulatory compliance in the countries
where the group operates (scope: légal, tax and human
resources, etc).

4. financial risks

With regards to the first one, the main risk arising from the
particular groeup 's organizational mode! would be the risk of non-
compliance by the responsible of the group’s subsidiaries with the
Delegation of Authority internal Policy (predefined scope for
decision-making)

With regards to the second one, the main business risks group
would be:

+ Adeguate monitoring of businesses entered into by the
group based on long-term contracts such as concessions
in the business of vehicle inspection in Spain, Europe
and America.

»  Adeguate supervision of formal and quality standards of
the service, when provided according to approved
gualifications. In this sense, group has defined an
insurance strategy, which includes coverage of third-
party damages arising as a consequence of the services
rendered by the group in all sectors in which it operates.

* Risks related to economic, social and political situation in
the geographical areas in which the Company operates
and the main macroeconomic indicators that may impact
in the future short and medium term in the results of the
group, particutarly considering its wide geographical
implementation.

+ Retention of key staff for the group.

In respect of financials, the Company manages and monitors risks
that rmay impact the results of the group.

« Liguidity risk and leverage of the group.

» Risk of overvaluing certain significant assets of the
group, such as goodwill, intangible assets generated by
inorganic growth and tax assets.

e Exchange rate risk derived from relevant international
activity.

e Interest rate risk (which could increase the cost of its

debt).
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E4

E.5

ldentify whether the entity has a risk tolerance level.

Tolerance levels are defined in the risk valuation matrix,
constituting the starting point to assess risks qualified as inherent
and residuai.

Tolerance levels are defined according to the following
parameters :

*  Sustained guality standards for the group

+ Business volume affected and potential impact on
business sustainability

= Impact on reputation and business continuity

+  Compliance with applicable law

*  Probable materialization

For risks considered as critical, given the impact of their potential
materialization on the achievement of the group's objectives,
specific tolerance levels aré defined indicating action guidelines,
achievement timeframe, managers, follow-up indicators;
furthermore, the frequency and content are defined of the
information provided to the governing bodies for supervision and
decision-making.

State what risks have materialize during the financial year.

The risks which have materialized during year 2014 and resulted
in a significant impact on the group's results are:

+ As a result of completing in 2014 certain contracts in the
oil & gas sector, along with a slow-down in certain client
investments and a fall in the Brent barrel price, income
and profit growth in divisions focusing on the oil & gas
sector (RTD and Velosi) has been affected.

e In the year 2014, the accreditation in Spain for
environment, quality and management systems
certification has been temporarily suspended.
Suspension does not allow issuance of new certificates,
meaning certificates to new clients or existing clients who
need to renew their certificates (duration is of three
years). Consequently, the monitoring activities have
continued and the impact in the turnover of the group has
not been significant. it is foreseen that said accreditation
will be recovered during the first four month period of the
year 2015,

Events occurred in 2014 related to risks covered by the group
which have not had a significant impact on the group's results are:

+ The group was considering the risk involved in the
succession of the Executive Vice President of the Velosi
Division, who had anncunced plans for retirement.
Ramoén Fernandez Ammas, Executive Vice President of
Norcontrol, also became the senior manager of Velosi's
business. Mr. Fernandez, with more than 20 years in the
group, will guarantee this succession.

= Given the economic scenario in Spain, the group, as in
previous years, has continued to implement action plans
aimed at cost optimization. However, the weight of
group’s business in Spain is currently no longer as
relevant as in the past, as it does not represent more
than 16% of the group’s total turnover figure.

« The Company performed impairment tests for all cash

generating units in relation to goodwill and intangibles

35




[ENGLISH GUIDE TRANSLATION FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY]

assets concluding that the record of additional
impairment was not necessary in 2014,

The group has not been immersed in further litigation that could
have a significant impact on its results and still cpen litigations
have not led to events which could have forced to modify previous
fiscal years’ accounting estimates.

E.6 Describe the plans for responding to and supervising the
entity's main risks.

The group has an updated risk map that foresees relevant risks
from a strategic, governance, compliance and financial reporting
point of view that may affect the achievement of strategic
objectives, including the risk of fraud.

To this end, the Applus group has implemented mitigating
measures to said risks, in order to try to minimize its potential
impact. Furthermore, for all other risks not yet covered an action
plan has been designed, assigning managers of each initiative
and an execution timetable, in order to start up the necessary
measures to reduce any potential impact should they materialize.

These measures are generally executed by the group’s
Management. The Audit Committee and company’s Board of
Directors, eventually, are the bodies in charge of supervising and
approving the measures conducted.

In addition, the Company has defined an appropriate insurance
strategy, which includes coverage of third-party damages arising
as a conseguence of the services rendered by the Company and
its subsidiaries in sectors in which they operate.

F. INTERNAL RISK CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS IN CONNECTION
WITH THE PROCESS OF ISSUING FINANCIAL INFORMATION {ICFR)

F.1.1 What bodies andior functions are responsible for: (i} the
existence and maintenance of an adequate and effective internal
control system over financial reporting {CFR); (i} the
implementation thereof; and (iii) oversight thereof.

The Internal Control System over Financial Reporting (ICFR") of
the company and its group is part of its general internal control
system and is configured as the set of processes that the Board of
Directors, Audit Committee, Management and group staff carry out
to provide reasonable security as regards the reliability of financial
information published by the markets.

The company has implemented an internal control and risk
management fool (GRC Applus+) to enable the continuous
monitoring and supervision of the action plans and incidents
identified when drawing up and reviewing this financial information.

Supervision of the ICFR is within the functions of the Audit
Committee and is camiéd out through supervision actions
conducted by the Corporate Internal Audit Management. Since
2011, an Internal Controf Model over financial reporting is being
developed in order to guarantee its reliability.

The Corporate Financial Management of the company carries out

the following tasks in relation to Internal Control over financia
reporting:
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- To review and approve accounting Policies and Manuals
incorporated into the group's Financial Management intranet.

- To establish and provide information on the necessary
procedures to ensure an adequate internal control of financial
reporting.

- To establish and maintain internal controls over financial
reporting, in order to guarantee its reliability and ensure that all
reports, facts, transactions or other relevant items are
communicated in due time and form.

The internal control medel for financial information of the group has
three separale areas of control: (i) self-evaluation of the persons in
charge of critical processes and control measures, (i) review of the
financial evaluation process by the Financial Managements in each
division and by the Corporate Financial Management in the
consolidation process, and (iii} evaluation of the efficiency and
effectiveness of risk control and identification measures by the
Corporate internal Audit Management.

Whether any of the following are in place, particularly as
regards the financial information preparation process:

* Departments and/or mechanisms in charge of: (i} the design
and revision of the organisational structure; (ii}) clearly
defining the lines of responsibility and authority, with an
appropriate distribution of work and duties; and {iii) ensuring
that there are sufficient procedures for the proper
dissemination thereof at the entity.

Initially the Company's Chief Executive Officer and the Corporate
Financial Management are in charge of designing and reviewing
the organisational structure for the presentation of financial
information; the Management will be responsible for changing such
information if deemed a@ppropriate.

Likewise, the lines of authority and responsibility of its relevant
processes have been defined by formalizing a Standard Mode! for
Authority and Responsibility Delegation, which includes all of the
group’s critical decisions that may eventually affect the drafting and
review of financial information. Funthermore, the Corporate
Financial Management has a functional flowchart of the Financial
Management to cover all of the group’s business divisions.

As regards the process to prepare financial information, instructions
are issued by the Corporate Financial Management, establishing
specific guidelines and responsibilities for each financial closing, as
well as closing procedures reflected in the Internal IFRS Manual,
covering a description and accounting plan of the company's
financial reporting system.

* Code of conduct, body that approves it, degree of
dissemination and instruction, principles and values included
{indicating whether the recording of transactions and the
preparation of financial information are specifically
mentioned), body in charge of reviewing breaches and of
proposing corrective actions and penalties.

The company has a Code of Ethics and an Anti-Corruption Policy,
approved by the Board of Directors, which specifically refers to the
registration of operations and drawing up of financial information,
as well as compliance with the law and accounting policies of the
group, inter alia. Both have been signed by the Management,
intermediate managers and practically all of the group’'s employees.

Furthermore, the Code of Ethics includes a commitment to strictly
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F.2

F.21.

comply with the obligation to provide reliable financial information,
prepared according to applicable regulations, as well as the
responsibility binding employees and officers, to ensure that this is
50, both by adequately executing their tasks and by informing the
governing bodies of any circumstance that may affect this
commitment.

All employees are aware of the Code of Ethics trough periodical
training sessions.

On 2012 the Group Ethics Committee {GEC) was created, which
meets every quarter and, amongst other matters, manages and
processes any reports received through the whistleblowing
channel, including any other incident related to ethical matters. It is
the body in charge of analysing infringements of the mentioned
regulations and proposing where applicable corrective actions and
disciplinary sanctions. Furthermore, in 2014 a Chief Compiiance
Officer has been appointed, effective 1st January 2015, to reinforce
the correct implementation of the Code of Ethics within the group
and the commitments of the GEC.

* Whistleblowing channel that makes it possible to report any
irregularities of a financial or a¢counting nature to the Audit
Committee, as well as any possible breach of the code of
conduct and irregular activities at the organisation, specifying,
if appropriate, whether it is confidential.

The company has established a an internal whistleblowing channel
which allows employees or third parties to report any facts that may
be contrary to integrity and professional ethics, covered by the
principles of the Code of Ethics.

All communications are received, analysed and followed through by
the Group Ethics Committee (GEC) and by the Chief Compliance
Officer. All reports and their processing are handied on a
confidential basis. There is a unique whistleblowing channel for thé
entire group and is available on the corporate Intranet.

» Regular training and update programmes for personnel
involved in the preparation and review of financial information,
as well as in the evaluation of the internal control system over
financial reporting, covering at least accounting standards,
auditing, internal control and risk management.

In order to periodically recycle and train the staff involved in the
preparation and review of financial information, continuous
correspondence is held with external auditors and other
independent professionals (advisors) on relevant matters in
corporate terms (basically accounting regulations and the
preparation of financial information, as well as tax laws).

Any training needs detected and provided at a corporate level are
extended io all other Chief Financial Officers in the group’s
subsidiaries, through the Finance Community Meeting held each
year, where training is a key point of the agenda; individual
meetings are aiso held with local financial representatives if
deemed appropriate.

Risk assessment of financial information indicates at least the
following:

What are the main features of the risk identification process,
including the process of identifying the risks of error or fraud,
with respect to:

« Whether the process exists and is documented.
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The group has developed risk matrixes and control measures for
relevant business processes (sales, purchases, fixed assets,
treasury, human resources and payrolls, etc.), specificaily for each
subsidiary, which are relevant for the consolidated statements of
the group. In particular, this has been carried out for subsidiaries
which, in aggregate, represent more than 80% of the sales of the
group.

+ Whether the process covers all the objectives of financial
information (existence and occurrence; completeness;
assessment; presentation, breakdown and comparability, and
rights and obligations), whether it is updated and how often.

The methodology used to select the risks to be taken into account
is CO30 (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations for the
Treadway Commission).

The criterfa used to locate the most relevant processes are
quantitative (materiality) and qualitative {business risk and visibility
amongst third parties), based on the most relevant accounting
items and notes included in the Annual Report. All identified risks
are prioritized in the professional’s opinion, following a series of
variables (leve! of process automation, whether the process is
known and/or whether it is necessary to use judgments and
estimates). The risk of fraud is indirectly identified insofar as
material errors may arise in the financial information.

Once the most relevant risks are selected, the necessary control
measures are selected and designed for their mitigation of
management, and the necessary action plans are established to
improve control surroundings; critical control measures are
systematically supervised and reviewed by the Corporate Internal
Audit Department,

Any risks classified as relevant are reviewed at least once a year,
further to the certification/evaluation of effective internal control
carried out by the persons in ¢harge. This review intends to adjust
the risks to changing circumstances in which the group is
operating, particularly if there are changes in the organisation,
computer systems, regulations, products or the market situation.

* The existence of a process for the identification of the scope
of consolidation, taking into account, among other matters,
the possible existence of complex corporate structures,
holding entities or special purpose entities.

Furthermore, at the last corporate instance, the possibility is
contemplated of errors in certain processes not connected to
specific types of transactions with impact on a subsidiary, which
may be relevant when preparing financial information, such as the
closing process in each subsidiary and, particularly, in consolidated
statements. In the consolidation process, the group has considered
all inherent risks, ensuring that the process is adequately
configured and executed, as well as an adequate definition of the
consolidation perimeter.

* Whether the process takes into account the effects of other
types of risks (operational, technological, financial, legal,
reputational, environmental, etc.) to the extent that they affect
the financial statements.

The process to locate possible errors in financial information takes

Into account the effects of other risk typolegies, which are
evaluated and managed by various corporate units. Nevertheless,
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in order to identify financial information risks these other typologies
are not expressly identified.

* What corporate governance body of the entity supervises
the process.

The Management Body that supervises the ICFR is the Audit
Committee, which is supported by the Internal Audit Management
when executing its tasks.

The group has implemented the Applus GRC tool for internal
control management at various levels. The following advantages
are provided by this tool in SCIIF matters:

« Availability, in centralized form, of all ICFR documentation
and management for the group, in a homogenous
manner.

+ Internal Control system over financial reporting is
integrated into business and corporate processes,
enabling each organizational unit in charge to periodically
evaluate its control, to provide the necessary evidence
and to annually execute the ICFR internal certification
process.

+ Automatic workflows are used fo manage control
activities and to execute action pians.

» |f constitutes a back-up tool for the ICFR supervision and
testing process carried out by the Internal Audit
Department.

* |t allows the necessary information for ICFR reparting to
be obtained and supported.

F.3 Control activities

F.3.1

Indicate whether at least the following are in place and
describe their main features:

Procedures for review and authorisation of financial
information, and description of the internal financial
information control system to be published in the securities
market, indicating the persons or divisions responsible
therefor, as well as documentation describing the flows of
activities and controis (including those relating to risk of fraud)
of the various types of transactions that could materially affect
the financial statements, including the closing process and the
specific review of significant judgements, estimates,
assessments, and projections.

At first instance, responsibility for preparing monthly, quarterly, six-
monthly and annual financial information is entrusted to the Chief
Financial Officer in each Applus group subsidiary.

The persons in charge of reviewing and authorising the financial
information are the Financial Management in each Division and the
Corporate Consolidation Management.

The Audit Committes, with support from the Internal Audit
Management, supervises the ICFR internal control model and
forwards to the Board of Directors the conclusions obtained in this
process.

ICFR documentation and evidence of execution and supervision,
as well as significant facts and action pans, are managed through
an internal contrel and risk management tool of the Applus group
(Applus GRC). As indicated in F.2.1 above, in each subsidiary the
activity and controi directly reiaied to fransactions that may have a
material effect on the financial statements are provided with a
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F.3.2

description of implemented control measures. Control matrixes by
process document the foregoing, and information is provided on the
control activity, the risk covered, the person in charge of execution
and the frequency of control. These matrixes are managed through
a corporate tool (Applus GRC) which enables an annual
certification that the control matrix is still being updated, as well as
a periodic evaluation by the persons in charge of executing the
control measures on their execution and effectiveness.

In each subsidiary, the following information is available for critical
processes in relation to each control activity:

»  Description of the process and sub-process
Description of financial information risks associated to
various processes, sub-processes and control objectives

» Definition of control activities designed to mitigate the
risks identified

* Description of the process managers, risks and control
activities

« (lassification of control activities already implemented or
outstanding (action plans)

« level of automation of control activities (manual or
automatic)

» Classification of control activities distinguishing between
preventive or detechive.

+ Definition of control execution frequency
Definition of evaluation frequency by the Internal Audit
Department

» Definition of the evidence required

Each one of the closing processes carried out in the various
divisions is treated as a single process. The same applies to alt the
closing activities conducted within the corporation, in relation to the
consotlidation process and drafting of annual accounts,

A spacific review of any judgments, estimates, wvaluations,
provisions and projections that are relevant to quantify certain
assets, liabilities revenues and expenses itemized in the annual
accounts involves the continuous supervision of the Corporate
Financial Management of the Applus group.

The control measures used to mitigate or manage possibie risks in
financial information include some related to the most relevant
computer applications, such as control over user access permits or
the integrity of information when it is transferred from one
application to ancther.

Policies and procedures of internal control of information
systems {including, among others, security of access, control
of changes, operation thereof, operational continuity and
segregation of duties) that provide support for the significant
processes of the entity in connection with the preparation and
publication of financial information.

The group uses SAP BPC as a common consolidation and
reporting system. This software is being used by all group
subsidiaries, irrespective of the degree to which each subsidiary
uses SAP R3 as a financial system, or uses another system.

When identifying the risk of material errars in financial information
two control levels apply: (i) in each subsidiary, as part of the ICFR,
control measures are used to ensure that all information reported
through SAP BPC is consistent with local information systems, if
different from SAP; (i} in corporate terms, there are automatic and
manual measures to control the main application in order to
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F.3.3

generate financial information in SAP BPC, guaranteeing that the
consolidation process is correct.

in addition, as regards the security of information, the Corporate
Systems Management has established policies to operate
information and data security systems (including availability
parameters due to their impact on business continuity and data
integrity), containing minimum requirements to be met by any
Applus group system.

The following security policies have been established by the group:
i) Classification of information; ii) Management of system access;
iii) Prevention of Data Leaks; iv) Identification and maintenance of
critical applications; v) Back-Up Copies; vi} Restrictions on Internet
and e-mail use; vii) Data encryption; viii) Agreements with third
parties; ix) Protection of equipment; x} Legal compliance; xi)
Notification of incidents; and xii) Infrastructure licences and use.

These policies have enabled Applus to implement a Data Security
Palicy.

In operating continuity terms, the group has improved the already
high level of availability of its central data systems, held in a Main
Datacenter in Madrid, with a Disaster Recovery (DR} solution. This
DR is hosted in a Secondary Datacenter in Barcelona; which is
connected through a high-speed line to the Main Datacenter.
Thanks to a constant replica of data, the DR may provide, in a
matter of hours, the mast critical applications for the business, in
the unlikely case of an event of force majeure {fire, flood,
earthquake, etc.) that renders the Main Datacenter inoperative.

Additionally, a series of key supplementary control measures are
defined and executed by members of the consolidation team, in
order to strengthen the trust in the data systems used to generate
financial information.

The group has a plan to improve and monitor information systems
as regards the segregation of functions, as well as fo incorporate in
the Audit Plan the supervision of these internal control systems as
regards the segregation of functions in financial information
systems.

Internal control policies and procedures designed to supervise
the management of activities outsourced to third parties, as
well as those aspects of assessment, calculation or valuation
entrusted to independent experts, which may materiaily affect
the accounts.

In the group, third party activities that may be relevant to the
information generation process basically reside in the business
conducted in Spain. The group has outsourced its administration
and back-office tasks for its Spanish subsidiaries {except for the
IDIADA division subsidiaries). In order t¢ supervise outsourced
activities, it has appointed a manager in the Corporate Financial
Management. In this confractual relationship service level
agreements (SLA's) are defined to evaluate service quality and
integrity. Furthermore, the corporate accounting department in
charge of Spain has been assigned monthly tasks to review the
financial statements of any subsidiaries operating in Spain.

in the rest of the group, outsourced activities are sporadic or highly
centralized in very specific processes or sub-processes, such as
payroil preparation. These factors are considered a risk in the ICFR

model for these companies, for which there is efficient and effective
agenciatad cnntral
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F.4

F.4.1

F.4.2,

Whenever necessary, the group hires reports from independent
experts in order to obtain greater trust in matters that may have a
significant effect on the financial statements, such as Purchase
Price Allocation reports related to wide-ranging acquisitions, the
valuation of financial instruments and advice in impairment tests
conducted on goodwill and intangible assets, which the group has
entered as assets. In all these cases, when hiring these services,
the group determines as part of the selection criteria the absence of
any doubt as to the suppliers competence, qualifications,
reputation and independence.

Information and communication

Indicate whether at least the following are in place and
describe their main features:

A specific function charged with defining and updating
accounting policies (accounting policy area or department)
and with resolving questions or conflicts arising from the
interpretation thereof, maintaining fluid communications with
those responsible for operations at the organisation, as well
as an updated accounting policy manual that has been
communicated to the units through which the entity operates.

The Corporate Financial Management is in charge of defining,
updating and disseminating accounting policies in order to draw up
financial information under [FRS-EU, and resolve any interpretation
doubts or conflicts. It keeps a communication flow with the
managers of operations and financial representatives in its various
divisions and subsidiaries.

The accounting Manual is updated each year and is published on
the Financial Management intranet, accessible by all the staff
involved in the drafting and review of financial information.
Furthermore, at meeétings held with corporate Chief Financial
Officers, division and subsidiary managers, fraining sessions are
provided on the interpretation and application of any novelties.
Finally, the Corporate Financial Management, through the
consolidation departrment, is entrusted with handling any doubts the
subsidiaries may have when applying their account reporting rules,
IFRS-EL.

In addition, the group’s external auditor, both of consolidated
statements and of the most representative subsidiaries of the
conselidated statements, will request that the financial information
reported by these subsidiaries be reviewed further to the principles
gathered in the group's Accounting Manual, i.e. IFRS-ELY, both in
the 12-month audit and the limited six-monthly review.

Mechanisms to capture and prepare financial information with
standardised formats, to be applied and used by all units of
the entity or the group, supporting the principal accounts and
the notes thereto, as well as the information provided on the
internal control system over financial reporting.

The capture and preparation of information backing up the main
financial statements of the Applus group uses the SAP-BPC
consolidation tool, which is integrated into transactional systems of
each subsidiary through automatic and occasionally manual
systems for capture and validation. There is a single monthly
reporting, based on a homogenous accounting plan for alt
companies. In addition, menthly reporting incorporates other
information necessary for the management of the Applus group,
also necessary to draw up notes on the consolidated Financial
Statements issued at the closing of the financiai year and ai the
end of the first six months. Consequently, the monthly reporting of
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F.5

F.5.1.

all subsidiaries in SAP-BPC already automatically controls the
validation of financial statements reported and any additional
details requested.

The I[CFR internal control system, as already indicated,
incorporates an evaluation of control activities both in the closing
process designed for each subsidiary, and control activities related
to the closing process conducted by the Consolidation Department
of the group.

Supervision of the operation of the system

Indicate and describe the main features of at least the
following:

The activities of supervision of the internal control system
over financial reporting performed by the audit committee, as
well as whether the entity has an internal audit function whose
duties include providing support to the committee in its work
of supervising the internal control system, including the
internal control system over financial reporting. Information is
also to be provided concerning the scope of the assessment
of the internal control system over financial reporting
performed during the financial year and on the procedure
whereby the person or division charged with performing the
assessment reports the results thereof, whether the entity has
an action plan in place describing possible corrective
measures, and whether the impact thereof on financial
information has been considered.

The Audit Committee has approved the ICFR design criteria for the
group. At least once a quarter it supervises the outcome of all ICFR
reviews conducted by the Internal Audit Department and, each
year, by the external auditor. Ultimately, it reviews ICFR information
gathered by the group in the Annual Corporate Governance Report.

In the Applus group, the Audit Committee uses the Internet Audit
function to supervise adequate operation of the internal control
system, including the ICFR, and ensures its independence.

The Internal Audit Management permanently supervises the action
plans agreed with various subsidiaries to remedy any defects
detected and to jointly agree on suggestions for improvement. All
reviews, including on-site audits, enable the Internal Audit function
to evaluate the internal control system- both in terms of design and
operation- and to issue an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control measures in order to guarantee the reliability of financial
information; this is forwarded to the Audit Committee further to the
meetings that are periodically held.

The Internal Audit Management periodically informs the Financial
Management and Audit Committee of any significant weaknesses
in internal control discovered during ICFR reviews and in internal
audits of processes carried out over the year, as well as the level of
implementation of action plans and any mitigation measures
established.

Any future weaknesses in internal control identified in internal audit
reviews are catalogued according to criticality as high, medium or
low, based on the effect they may have if an error materializes in
the financial statements. These weaknesses are managed through
the Applus GRC application, for which a manager and timeframe
are established in order to implement an action plan, as well as
follow-up plans by the Internal Audit Department.
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F.5.2.

F.6

F.7

F.7.1

Whether it has a discussion procedure whereby the auditor (as
provided in the Technical Auditing Standards), the internal
audit function, and other experts can inform senior
management and the audit committee or the directors of the
entity of the significant Internal control weaknesses detected
during the review of the annual accounts or such other reviews
as may have been entrusted to them. Information shall also be
provided on whether it has an action plan to seek to correct or
mitigate the weaknesses found.

The Audit Committee meets at least one a quarter and, in order to
fulfil its responsibilities, it convenes at least the following persons:

=«  Group's Chief Financial Officer: the senior manager
in charge of drafting financial information to explain
the performance of the main financial magnitudes
occurring in the period in question, transactions and
most relevant impact in the period and
communication of the main estimates made.

+ Internal Audit Department, in charge of supetvising
the internal control model, including the ICFR,
provides information on the state of any future
weaknesses located as well as the outcome of any
reviews conducted according to the planning
approved by the Audit Committee for the ongoing
year.

+« External Auditors, in order to understand and share
auditing planning cr a review, to be carried out in the
ongoing year, over consolidated and six-monthly
annual accounts. If control weaknesses are
identified and not considered by the Internal Audit
Department these will also be communicated, as
well as any other matter deemed appropriate for the
Audit Committee.

In turn, the group, both from the Corporate Finance Department
and the Audit Committee, represented by the Internal Audit
Department, encourages full collaboration and coordination with the
external accounts auditors. Consequently, the external accounts
auditor of the group may directly access the Management, holding
periodic meetings both to obtain the necessary information to carry
out its task and to communicate any control weaknesses identified
further to its auditing work.

Other significant information

There is no other significant information regarding the Internal
Control System applicable to the Company’s financial information.

External audit report
Report on;

Whether the information on the internal control system over
financial reporting has been reviewed by the external auditor,
in which case the entity should include the respective report
as an exhibit. Otherwise, it should provide the reasons
therefor.

Furthermore, the group has presented the ICFR information
included in this 2014 Corporate Governance Report to the external
auditor, for its review. To this end, the scope of the auditor's review
procedures has followed Circular E14/2013, of 19 July 2013, issued
by the Spanish Instifute of Chartered Accountants, which publishes
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the Action Guide and standard auditor's report, regarding
information on the internal control system over financial reporting
(ICFR) used by listed companies in Spain.

Attached as an annex is a copy of the external auditor's report.

DEGREE  OF COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
RECOMMENDATIONS

State the company's degree of compliance with the recommendations of the
Unified Code on corporate governance.

if the company does not comply with a recommendation or does it partially, a
detailed explanation of the reasons should be given so that shareholders, investors
and the market in general have sufficient information to assess the company's
course of action. Generalised explanations will not be acceptable.

1. The by-Laws of listed companies do not limit the maximum number of votes that
can be cast by a single shareholder, or impose other obstacles to the takeover of
the company by means of the acquisition of its shares on the market.

See sections: A.10, B.1,B.2, C.1.23 and C.1.24.

Complies x Explain

2. When both the parent company and a company controlled by it are listed
companies, they both provide detailed public disclosure on:

a) Their respective areas of activity, and any business dealirigs between them,
as well as between the controlled listed company and other companies
beldnging to the group;

b) The mechanisms in place to resolve any conflicts of interest that may arise.
Complies Complies in part Explain Not applicable x

3. Even if not expressly required under applicable commercial laws, transactions
involving a structural change of the company and, in particular, the following, are
submitted for general shareholders' meeting approval:

a) The transformation of listed companies into holding companies through
"subsidiarisation”, i.e. reallocating to controlled entities core activities that
were previously carried out by the company itself, even if the latter retains
full ownership of the former;

b) The acquisition or disposal of key operating assets, when it involves an
actual change in the object of the company;

¢} Transactions whose effect is tantamount to the liquidation of the company.
See section: B.8
Complies x Complies in part Expiain
4. Detailed proposals of the resolutions to be adopted at the general shareholders’
meeting, including the information to which recommendation 27 refers, are made
public at the time of publication of the announcement of the call to the general
shareholders’ meeting.
Complies X Explain
5. Matters that are substantially independent are voted on separately at the general

shareholders’ meeting, in order to allow the shareholders to express their voting
preferences separately. This rule applies, in particular:
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a) To the appointment or ratification of directors, which shall be voted on
individually;

b} In the event of amendments of the By-Laws, to each article or group of
articles that are substantially independent of one another.

Complies X Explain

Companies allow split votes so financial intermediaries who are recorded as
having shareholder status but act for the account of different clients can divide
their votes in accordance with the instructions given by such clients.

Complies x Expiain

The board performs its dutfes with a unity of purpose and independent
judgement, affording equal treatment to all shareholders in furtherance of the
corporate interest, which shaill be understood to mean the optimisation, in a
sustained fashion, of thé financial value of the company.

It likewise ensures that in its dealings with groups of interest {stakeholders), the
company abides by the laws and reguiations, fulfils its obligations and contracts
in good faith, respects the customs and good practices of the industries and
territories in which it carries on its business, and upholds any other social
responsibility standards te which it has voluntarily adhered.

Complies x Complies in part Explain
The board assumes responsibility, as its core mission, for approving the
company's strategy and the organisation required to put it into practice, and to
ensure that Management meets the objectives set while pursuing the company's
interest and the object of the company. As such, the full Board reserves for itself
the right to approve:
a) The company's policies and general lines of strategy, and in particular:

(i} Strategic or business plan, as well as management objectives and
annual budgets;

(ii) Investment and financing policy;
(iTi) Definition of the structure of the group of companies;

(iv) Corporate governance policy;

{v) Corporate social responsibility policy;

(vi) Policy regarding remuneration and evaluation of performance of
senior management;

(vii) Risk control and management policy, as well as the periodic
monitoring of the internal information and control systems.

(viii) Dividend policy, as well the treasury share policy and, especially,
the limits thereto.

See sections: C.1.14, C.1.16and E.2
b) The following decisions:

i At the proposal of the company's top manager, the appointment
and, if applicable, the removal of senior officers, as well as their
severance provisions.

ii. The remuneration of directors and, in the case of executive

directors, the additional remuneration for their executive duties and
other terms and conditions that must be included in their contracts.
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iii. The financial information that the company must periodically make
public due to its status as listed company.

iv. Investments or transactions of all kinds which are strategic in
nature due to the iarge amount or special characteristics thereof,
unless approval thereof falls upon the shareholders at the general
shareholders’ meeting.

v. The creation or acquisition of interests in special-purpose entities
or entities registered in countries or territories regarded as tax
havens, as well as any other transactions or operations of a similar
nature whose complexity might impair the transparency of the
group.

¢) Transactions made by the company with directors, with significant
shareholders or shareholders with Board representation, or with other
persons related thereto (“related-party transactions”).

However, board authorisations need not be required in connection with
related- party transactions that simultaneously meet the following three

conditions:
12, They are governed by standard-form agreements applied on
an across-the- board basis to a large number of clients;
29 They are conducted at prices or rates generally set by the
party acting as supplier of the goods or services in question;
3°. The amount thereof is no more than 1% of the company's

annual revenues,
It is recommended that related-party transactions only be approved by the
board upon a prior favourable report of the audit committee or such other
committee handling the same function; and that the directors affected
thereby should neither exercise nor delegate their votes, and should

withdraw from the meeting room while the board deliberates and votes on
the transaction. '

it is recommended that the powers granted herein to the board are
conferred without the power of delegation, except for those mentioned
under b} and ¢) above, which may, for urgent reasons, he adopted by the
executive committee subject to subsequent ratification by the full board.
See sections: D.1 and D.6
Complies x Complies in part Explain

9. In order to operate effectively and in a participatory manner, the board ideally is
comprised of no fewer than five and no more than fifteen members.

See section; C.1.2
Complies x Explain
10. External directors, proprietary and independent, occupy an ample majority of the
board and the number of executive directors is the minimum necessary number,
bearing in mind the complexity of the corporate group and the percentage
interest held by the executive directors in the company's share capital.
See sections: A.3and C.1.3

Complies x Compiies in part Explain

if. Among externai directors, the reiation between the number of proprietary
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directors and independent directors reflects the proportion existing between the
share capital of the company represented by proprietary directors and the rest of
its capital.

This strict proportionality standard can be relaxed so that the weight of
proprietary directors is greater than would correspond to the total percentage of
the share capital that they represent:

1°.  In large cap companies where few or no equity stakes attain the legal
threshold as significant, but there are shareholders hoiding interests with a
high absolute value.

2°,  In companies with a plurality of unrelated shareholders represented on the
board.

See sections: A.2, A3and C.1.3
Compiies Explain x

NOTE: To the extent the Board of Directors is a small operating model {9 members), it is
impossible in practice for the numbér of Proprietary and Independent Directors to reflect
the proportion existing in the Company’s share capital. However, the proportion of
Independent Directors (44.44%) exceeds Recommendation 12 of the Unified Code for
Corporate Govemnance, which recommends that independent directors represent a third,

12. The number of independent directors represents at least one-third of the total
number of directors.

See section: C.1.3
Complies x Explain

13. The status of each director is explained by the board at the general shareholders'
meeting at which the shareholders are to make or ratify their appointment and
such status is confirmed or reviewed, as the case may be, annually in the Annual
Corporate Governance Report, after verification by the appointments committee.
Said report also discloses the reasons for the appointment of proprietary
directors at the proposal of shareholders controlling less than 5% of the share
capital, as weill as the reasons for not having accommodated formal petitions, if
any, for presence on the board from shareholders whose equity stake is equal to
or greater than that of others at whose proposal proprietary directors have been
appointed,

See sections: C.1.3and C.1.8
Complies x Complies in part Explain

14. When the number of female director is scant or nil, the appointments committee
takes steps to ensure that when new vacancies are filled:

a) Selection procedures do not have an implied bias that hinders the
selection of female directors;

b) The company deliberately looks for women with the target professional
profile and includes them among the potential candidates.

See sections’ C.1.5,C.16,C22. and C.2.4
Complies X Complies in part Explain

15. The Chairman, as the person responsible for the effective operation of the board,
ensures that directors receive adequate information in advance of board
meetings; promotes debate and the active involvement of directors during board
meetings; safeguards their rights to freely take a position and express their
opinion; and, working with the chairs of the appropriate committees, organises
and coordinates regular evaluations of the Board and, where appropriate, the
chief executive officer or top manager.
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See sections: C.1.19 and C.1.41

Complies x Complies in part Expiain

16. When the Chairman of the Board is also the chief executive or top manager of the

company, one of the independent directors is authorised to request the calil to a
beard meeting or the inclusion of new business on the agenda; to coordinate and
hear the concerns of external directors; and to lead the board's evaluation of the
chair.

See section: C.1.22

Complies Complies in part Explain Not applicable x

17. The Secretary of the Board takes particular care to ensure that the board's

actions:

a} Adhere to the letter and the spirit of laws and their implementing
requlations, including those approved by the regulatory authorities;

b) Comply with the company's By-Laws and the Regulations for the general
shareholders’ meeting, the Re'g'_ulations of the board and other regulations
of the company;

c) Are informed by those corporate governance recommendations included
in this Unified Code as the company has subscribed to.

And, in order to safeguard the independence, impartiality and professionalism
of the Secretary, the appointment and removal thereof are reported by the
appointments committee and approved by the full board; and that such
appointment and removal procedures are set forth in the regulations of the
board.

See section: C.1.34

Complies x Complies in part Explain

18. The Board meets with the frequency required to perform its duties efficiently, in

accordance with the calendar and agendas set at the beginning of the financial
year, and each director is entitled to propose items of the agenda that were not
originally included therein.

See section: C.1.29

Complies x Complies in part Explain

19. Directors’ absences are limited to unavoidahle cases and quantified in the Annual

Corporate Governance Report. And when there is no choice but to grant a proxy,
it is granted with instructions.

See sections: C.1.28, C.1.20and C.1.30

Complies x Complies in part Explain

20. When Directors or the Secretary express concerns about a proposal or, in the

21,

case of the directors, regarding the running of the company, and such concerns
have not been resolved at a board meeting, such concerns are recorded in the
minutes at the request of the person expressing them.

Complies X Complies in part Explains Not applicable
The full Board evaluates the following on a yearly basis:

a2}t  Tha aualitv and afficiansav af tha Raard'e anaratinn

a} The quality and officiency of the Roard's operation;
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22,

23.

24,

25,

26.

b} On the basis of a report submitted to it by the appointments committee, the
performance of the Chairman of the Board and the top manager duties;

c) The performance of its committees, on the basis of the reports furnished
by them,

See secticns; C.1.19 and C.1.20

Complies x Complies in part Explain
All Directors are able to exercise the right to request any additional information
they require on matters within the board's purview. Unless the By-laws or the
regulations of the board provide otherwise, such requests are addressed to the
Chairman or the Secretary of the Board.
See section: C.1.41

Complies x Explain
All Directors are entitled to ask the company for the advice they need te carry out
their duties. The company provides suitable channels for the exercise of this
right, which, in special circumstances, may include external advice at the
company's expense.
See section: C.1.40

Complies x Explain
Companies organise induction programmes for new directors to rapidly and
adeguately acquaint them with the company and its corporate govemance rules.
Directors are also offered refresher training programmes when circumstances so
advise.

Complies. x Complies in part Explain

Companies require that Directors devote sufficient time and effort to perform
their duties efficiently, and, as such:

a) Directors apprise the appointments committee of their other professional
duties, in case they might detract from the necessary dedication;

b} Companies lay down rules about the number of boards on which their
directors may sit.

See sections: C.1.12, C.1.13 and C.1.17

Complies Complies in part X Explain
NOTE: The Company has no rules about the number of boards of directors to which its
directors belong; this information is not deemed relevant to appraise their dedication. In
any case, the Appointments and Remuneration Committee off the Company is
entrusted with ensuring that directors are suitable, qualified and available to adequately
fulfit their duties.
The proposal for the appeointment or re-election of directors that the board
submits to the shareholders at the general shareholders’ meeting, as well as the
interim appointment of directors to fill vacancies, are approved by the board:

a)} At the proposal of the appointments committee, in the case of independent
directors.

b) Subject to a prior report from the appointments committee, in the case of
other directors.

See section: C.1.3
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Complies x Complies in part Explain

27. Companies post the following information regarding its Directors on their
websites, and keep such information updated:

a} Professional and biographical profile;
b} Other beoards of directors of listed or unlisted companies on which they sit;

c) Other boards of director's classification, specifying, for proprietary
directors, the shareholder they represent or to whom they are related.

d) Date of their first and subsequent appointments as a company director;
and

@) Shares held in the company and options thereon held by them.

Complies x Complies in part Explain

28. Proprietary directors tender their resignation when the shareholder they represent
sells its entire shareholding interest and also, an appropriate number of them,
when such shareholder reduces its interest to a level that requires a reduction in
the number of its proprietary directors.

See section: C.1.3
Complies x Complies in part Explain

29. The Board of Directors does not propose the removal of any independent director
prior to the expiration of the term set by the by-laws for which such director was
appointed, except where good cause is found by the Board upon a prior report of
the Appointments Committee. In particular, good cause shall be deemed to exist
whenever the director has failed to perform the duties inherent in the position
held thereby or comes under any of the circumstances causing the director to no
longer be independent pursuant to the provisions of Order ECC/461/2013.

The removal of independent directors may also be proposed as a result of
takeover bids, mergers or other similar corporate transactions that entail a
change in the equity structure of the company, when such changes in the
structure of the board follow from the proportionality standard mentioned in
Recommendation 11.

See section: C.1.2, C.1.9, C.1.19 and C.1.27
Complies Explain x

NOTE: Directors were removed during the 2014 financial year, in the context of listing
its shares on the stock exchange markets of Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia,
in order to reduce the number of Directors and render the Board of Directors more
operative, as wall as to include a new Chairman on the Board, acting as Independent
Director.

30. Companies establish rules obliging directors to report and, if appropriate, to
resign in those instances as a result of which the credit and reputation of the
company might be damaged and, in particular, they require that such directors
report to the Board any criminal charges brought against them, and the progress
of any subsequent proceedings.

If a director is indicted or tried for any of the crimes described in section 213 of
the Companies Act, the board examines the matter as soon as practicable and, in
view of the particular circumstances thereof, decides whether or not it is
appropriate for the director to continue to hold office. And the board provides a
substantiated account thereof in the Annual Corporate Governance Report.

See sections: C.1.42 and C.1.43
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H.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

Complies x Complies in part Explain

All directors clearly express their opposition when they feel that any proposed
resolution submitted to the board might be contrary to the best interests of the
company. And in particular, independent directors and the other directors not
affected by the potential conflict of interest do likewise in the case of decisions
that could be detrimental to the shareholders lacking Board representation.

When the Board adopts material or reiterated resolutions about which a director
has expressed serious reservations, such director draws the pertinent
conclusions and, if such director chooses to resign, sets out the reasons in the
letter referred to in the next recommendation.

This Recommendation also applies to the Secretary of the Board, even if the
Secretary Is not a director.

Complies x Complies in part Explain Not applicable

Directors who give up their position before their tenure expires, through
resignation or otherwise, explain the reasons in a letter sent to all members of the
board. Without prejudice to such withdrawal being communicated as a significant
event, the reason for the withdrawal is explained in the Annual Corporate
Governance Report.

See section: C.1.9

NOTE: The letters of resignation provided by Directors who were removed during 2014
are a consequence of a prior agreement with the Company, which is why this
recommendation is not applicable. However, in the future it is expected that any
Directors giving up their post will explain the relevant reasons in their respective letters
of resignation.

Complies Complies in part Explain Not applicable x

Remuneration paid by means of delivery of shares in the company or companies
that are members of the group, share options or instruments indexed to the price
of the shares, and variable remuneration linked to the company's performance or
pension schemes in confined to executive directors.

This recommendation shall not apply to the delivery of shares when such
delivery is subjected to the condition that the directors hold the shares until they
cease to hold office as directors.

Complies Explain x

NOTE: As part of the remuneration package assigned to the Chaiman of the
company's Beard of Directors, who acts as an [ndependent External Director, on 7 May
2014 the General Shareholders Meeting agreed, on an exceptional and non-recurring
basis, to grant RSUs for an amount of 100,000 euros.

The remuneration of external directors is such as is necessary to compensate
them for the dedication, qualifications, and responsibility required by their
position, but is not so high as to compromise their independence.

Complies x Explain

The remuneration linked to company earnings takes into account any
qualifications included in the external audit report that reduce such earnings.

Complies x Explain Not applicable
In the case of variable remuneration, remuneration policies include technical
limits and safeguards required to ensure that such remuneration reflects the

professional performance of the beneficiaries thereof and not simply the general
performance of the markets or of the industry in which the company does
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business or circumstances of this kind.

Complies x Expiain Not applicable

37. When there is an executive committee {hereinafter, "Executive Committee"), the

breakdown of its members by director category is similar to that of the board, and
its secretary is the secretary of the board.

See sections: ©.2.1 and C.2.6
Complies Complies in part x Explain Not applicable

NOTE: Article 38 of the Regulations of the Company's Board of Directors allows the
possibility of the Board Secretary not necessarily belonging to the Executive Committes.

38. The board is always kept informed of the matters dealt with and the resolutions

adopted by the executive committee, and all members of the Board receive a
copy of the minutes of the meetings of the executive committee,

Complies x Explain Not applicable

39. In addition to the audit committee mandatory under the Securities Market Act, the

board of directors forms a single appointments and remuneration committee as a
separate committee of the board, or an appointments committee and a
remuneration committee.

The rules governing the make-up and operation of the audit committee and the
appointments and remuneration commitiee or committees are set forth in the
regulations of the board, and include the following:

a) The board appoints. the members of such committees, taking into account
the background knowledge, qualifications, and experience of the
directors and the responsibilities of each committee, discusses its
proposals and reports, and receives a report, at the first meeting of the
full board following the meetings of such committees, on their activities
and the work done.

b) These committees are formed exclusively of external directors and have a
minimum of three members. The foregoing is without prejudice to the
attendance of executive directors or senior officers, when expressly
resolved by the members of the committee.

¢) Committee chairs are independent directors.

d) They may receive external advice, whenever they feel this is necessary
for the discharge of their duties.

e} Minutes are prepared of their meetings, and a copy is sent to all board
members.

See sections: C.2,1 and C.2.4

Complies x Complies in part Explain

40. Supervising compliance with internal codes of conduct and corporate

41.

governance rules is entrusted to the audit committee, the appointments
committee or, if they exist separately, to the compliance or corporate governance
committee.

See sections: C.23and C.2.4
Complies x Explain

The members of the audit commiftee and, particularly, the chair thereof, are

appointed taking into account their background knowiedge and experience in
accounting, auditing, and risk management matters,
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Complies x Explain

42, Listed companies have an internal audit function which, under the supervision of
the audit committee, ensures the smooth operation of the information and
internal control systems.

See section: C.2.3
Complies x Explain

43. The head of internal audit presents an annual work plan to the audit committee;
reports to it directly on any issues arising in the execution of such plan; and
submits an activities report to it at the end of each financial year.

Complies x Complies in part Explain
44, The risk control and management policy specifies at least:

a) The different types of risk (operational, technological, financial, legal,
reputational, etc.} the company is exposed to, including contingent
liabilities and other off-balance sheet risks among financial or economic
risks;

b) The determination of the risk level the company sees as acceptable;

¢} The measures planned in order to mitigate the impact of identified risks in
the event that they materialise;

d) The Internal reporting and control systems to be used to monitor and
manage the above risks, including contingent liabilities and off-balance
sheet risks.

See section E
Complies x Complies in part Explain
45, The audit committee's role is to:
1° With respect to the internal control and reporting systems:

a) Properly manage and disclose the main risks, if any, identified as a result
of supervising the effectiveness of the internal control of the company
and internal auditing.

b} Ensure the independence and effectiveness of the internal audit area;
make proposals regarding the selection, appointment, re-election, and
withdrawal of the head of the internal audit area; propose the budget for
such area; receive periodic information regarding its activities; and verify
that senior management takes into account the conclusions and
recommendations contained in its reports.

¢) Establish and supervise a mechanism whereby the employees may give
notice, on a confidential basis and, if deemed appropriate, anonymously,
of any potentially significant irregularities, especially of a financial and
accounting nature, that they notice at the company.

20 With respect to the external auditor:
a) Regularly receive from the external auditor information regarding the
audit plan and the results of the implementation thereof, and verify that
senior management takes its recommendations into account.

b) Ensure the independence of the external auditor, to which end:

i. The company reports a change of auditor to the CNMV as a

significant  event, accompanied by a statement of any

acLoinpannies

disagreements with the outgoing auditor and the reasons for the
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same.

i In the event of resignation of the external auditor, the committee
investigates the circumstances that may have given rise thereto.

See sections: C.1.36,C.2.3,C24and E.2
Complies x Complies in part Explain

46. The audit committee may cause any company employee or officer to appear
before if, and even order their appearance without the presence of any other
officer.

Complies x Explain

47. The audit committee reports to the board, prior to the adoption thereby of the
corresponding decisions, on the following matters specified in Recommendation
8:

a) The financial information that the company must periodically make public
due to its status as listed company. The committee should ensure that
interim accounts are prepared under the same accounting standards as the
annual accounts and, to this end, consider whether a limited review by the
external auditor is appropriate.

b} The creation or acquisition of interests in special-purpose entities or
entifies registered in countries or territories regarded as tax havens, as well
as any other transactions or operations of a similar nature whose
complexity might impair the transparency of the group.

¢) Related-party transactions, unless such prior reporting duty has been
assigned to another supervision and control committee.

See sections: C.2.3and C.2.4
Complies x Complies in part Explain

48. The board of directors seeks to present the accounts to the shareholders at the
general shareholders’ meeting without reservations or qualifications in the audit
report and, in the exceptional instances where they do exist, both the chair of the
audit committee and the auditors give a clear account to the shareholders of the
content and scope of such reservations or qualifications.

See secfion: C.1.38
Complies x Complies in part Explain

49. The majority of the members of the appointments committee -or of the
appointments and remuneration committee, if one and the same- are independent
directors.

See section: C.2.1
Complies x Explain Not applicable

50. The appointments committee has the following duties, in addition to those stated
in the preceding recommendations:

a) To assess the qualifications, background knowledge and experience
necessary to sit on the Board, defining, accordingly, the duties and
qualifications required of the candidates to fill each vacancy, and decide
the time and dedication necessary for them to properly perform their duties.

b) To examine or organise, in the manner it deems ap

___________ b Ze ol AL B
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ropriate, the

priate, maxe
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proposals to the board for such succession to take place in an orderly and
well-planned manner. '

¢) To report on senior officer appointments and removails that the chief
executive proposes to the board.

d) To report to the board on the gender diversity issues discussed in
Recommendation 14 of this Code.

See section: C.2.4
Complies x Complies in part Explain Not applicable

51. The appointments committee consults with the company's president and the
chief executive, especially on matters relating to executive directors.

And that any board member may reguest that the appointments committee
consider possible candidates to fill vacancies for the position of director, if it
finds them suitably qualified.

Complies x Complies in part Explain Not applicable

52. The remuneration committee is responsible for the following duties, in addition to
those set forth in the earlier recommendations:

a) To propose to the board of directors:
i The remuneration policy for directors and senior officers;

il The individual remuneration of executive directors and
other terms of their contracts.

iii. The basic terms and conditions of the contracts with
senior officers.

b} To ensure compliance with the remuneration policy set by the company.
See section: C.2.4
Complies x Compligs in part Explain Not applicable
53. The remuneration committee consults with the Chairman and the top manager of
the company, especially on matters relating to executive directors and senior

officers.

Complies x Not comply

OTHER INFORMATION OF INTEREST

1. If there are any significant aspects regarding corporate governance at the
company or at entities of the group that is not included in the other sections of
this report, but should be included in order to provide more complete and well-
reasoned information regarding the corporate governance structure and
practices at the entity or its group, briefly describe them.

2. In this section, you may also include any other information, clarification, or
comment relating to the prior sections of this report to the extent they are
relevant and not repetitive.

Specifically, state whether the company is subject to laws other than Spanish
laws regarding corporate governance and, if applicable, include such
information as the company is required fo provide that is different from the
information required in this report.

3. The company may also state whether it has voluntarily adhered to other
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international, industrial or other codes of ethical principles or good practices. If
so, identify the code in question and the date of adherence thereto.

N/A

This annual corporate governance report was approved by the Board of
Directors of the company at its meeting 24/02/2015.

State whether any directors voted against or abstained in connection with the
approval of this Report.

Yes [ ] Mo
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